
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AGENDA 
Board of Supervisors Room - County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards, Independence, California 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and, for convenience, via Zoom webinar. The Zoom webinar is accessible to the 
public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; 
(929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general 
public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item may do so by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will 
call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes.  
 
Remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In the event that the remote participation connection malfunctions for any reason, 
the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote access. Regardless of remote access, written public comments, limited to 250 
words or fewer, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us 

 
(2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 
878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is 
a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, 
the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

AMENDED 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 20, 2023 

 

(Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon 
sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
  

 Start Time 
 

8:30 A.M. 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue 
Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget Analyst Denelle Carrington, 
Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer 
Jeff Thomson. 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  
 

  3) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Initiation of 
litigation pursuant to § 54956.9(d)(4): 1 case. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

 4) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  5) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 
  

 

  6) Introductions - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board: 
Chief Information Officer Noam Shendar, GIS Analyst Grace Hall, and 
Correctional Officer Alejandro Lopez-Ruiz. 

  
 

  7) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  8) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 9) Film Commissioner Contract Extension for FY 2023-2024 

  County Administrator - Advertising County Resources | Nate Greenberg 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize staff to exercise the County's option to 
extend the current Film Commissioner agreement with Mr. Jesse Steele to June 
30, 2024, per paragraph 2.a. of the agreement, and adjust the rate according to 
paragraph 3.d.,pending Board approval of the 2023-2024 budget, and to send 
Mr. Steele notice of the extension. 

 

   

  
10) 

 
Amendment No. 3 to Contract with The Ferguson Group 

  County Administrator - Economic Development | Nate Greenberg 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between 
The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of Inyo for provision of Federal 
Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2024 in 
an amount not to exceed $101,000, contingent upon the Board's approval of 
the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
11) 

 
CAO as Authorized Representative for Federal Broadband-Related Grants 

  County Administrator | Scott Armstrong 
 

Recommended Action: Appoint the County Administrator as the Authorized 
Representative to facilitate the grant application process for two Federal 
Broadband-related grant applications: 1) USDA Rural Development (RD) 
Broadband Technical Assistance (BTA) Grant; and 2) FCC Affordable 
Connectivity Program (ACP) Outreach Grant, Round 2. 
  

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

   

  
12) 

 
Anne Sippi Clinic Contract Amendment No. 1 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between 
the County of Inyo and Anne Sippi Clinic Treatment Group of Bakersfield, CA, 
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

 

   

  
13) 

 
Appointments to the ESAAA Advisory Council 

  Health & Human Services - ESAAA | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: A) Appoint Rebecca J. Manross to the Eastern Sierra 
Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) Advisory Council to an unexpired two-year 
term ending December 31, 2023, and B) appoint Joel Ryan to the ESAAA 

Advisory Council to an unexpired two-year term ending December 31, 2024.   
 

   

  
14) 

 
Amendment No. 3 to TeleConnect Therapies Contract 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between 
the County of Inyo and TeleConnect Therapies of Avalon, CA, increasing the 
contract to an amount not to exceed $399,040 and extending the term end date 
from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval the 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
15) 

 
Addendum to Thomas Milam MD, Inc. d/b/a Iris Telehealth Agreement 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Approve Addendum to the contract between the 
County of Inyo and Thomas Milam MD, Inc. d/b/a Iris Telehealth of Austin, TX, 
increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $220,000 and extending the 
term end date from July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
16) 

 
Anthem HHIP Agreement 

  Health & Human Services - Fiscal | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve the agreement between the 
County of Inyo and Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan (Anthem Blue 
Cross) for the purpose of building partnerships and addressing housing and 
homelessness on behalf of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, servicing 
Alpine, Inyo, and Mono counties, in an amount not to exceed $120,668 for the 
period of November 1, 2022 to December 31, 2023, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign. 
 

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  
 

   

 17) California Health and Wellness HHIP Agreement 

  Health & Human Services - Fiscal | Marilyn Mann 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve the agreement between the 
County of Inyo and Health Net, LLC and California Health and Wellness Plan 
for the purpose of building partnerships and addressing housing and 
homelessness on behalf of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, servicing 
Alpine, Inyo, and Mono counties, in an amount not to exceed $78,417 for the 
period of January 1, 2023 to October 31, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget, and authorize the HHS Director to 
sign. 

 

   

  
18) 

 
Subaward Agreement with the California Fire Safe Council for $20,000 

  County Administrator - Emergency Services | Kristen Pfeiler 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve the subaward agreement with the 
California Fire Safe Council for $20,000 to be used for capacity-building, and 
authorize the Emergency Services Manager to sign. 
  

 

REGULAR AGENDA  

  
 

   

 19) Update on the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital District from Chief 
Financial Officer/Interim Chief Executive Officer Stephen delRossi 

  Outside Agency | Stephen delRossi 
30 minutes (10min. Presentation / 20min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  This is an informational item only. 
  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  20) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  21) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3834  

 

Film Commissioner Contract Extension for FY 2023-2024 
County Administrator - Advertising County Resources 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize staff to exercise the County's option to extend the current Film Commissioner agreement with 
Mr. Jesse Steele to June 30, 2024, per paragraph 2.a. of the agreement, and adjust the rate according to 
paragraph 3.d.,pending Board approval of the 2023-2024 budget, and to send Mr. Steele notice of the 
extension. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Your Board directed the development and issuance of a Request for Proposals for Film Commissioner 
services in 2022. A contract was offered to and accepted by Mr. Jesse Steele at the end of the RFP 
process. His initial term was from October 10, 2022 through June 30, 2023. The contract gave the 
County three options to extend the agreement for additional one-year periods as follows: 

• From July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 in an amount not exceed $61,500. 
• From July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 in an amount not exceed $61,500. 
• From July 1, 2025 through June 30, 2026 in an amount not exceed $61,500. 

 
Your Board is being asked to authorize staff to exercise the first of the three extension options. If 
authorization is given, staff will notify Mr. Steele in writing, per the contract. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund  Budget Unit 011400 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5535 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
There will be approximately $14,000 left on the FY 22-23 contract. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
TBD based on contract extension/renewal. 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board may decline to approve the extension and direct staff to develop and release a second 
Request for Proposals. This option is not recommended, as much progress has been made with Mr. 
Steele in developing a robust Film Commission responsive to both filmmakers and permitting agencies; 
creating a one-stop shop website and universal online permit; and developing new contacts within the 
film industry and among other film commissions. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Film Commissioner - Jesse Steele FY 22-23 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/8/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/8/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/12/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/12/2023 
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 6/14/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNryOF INYO
AND JESSE STE

filmthe

FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIO NER SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for
services of Jesse Steele

(hereinafter referred to as "Contracto/'), and in
covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed
the County's need for such services. The County makes no

WHEREAS, the County of

of Bio Pine
consideration
hereby agree

of the mutual promises,

is: Countv Administrator
under this Agreement will be based upon

as follows:

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the Contractor

whose titleto perform under this Agreement will be made by Nala Graanhorn

guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested
of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all, even if Couniy should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, state,
and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions
include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. INTIAL TERM AND OPTIONS.

The initial term of this Agreement shall be from October 10. 2022 to June 30,
2023 unless sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition, County siratt nave tfrree options to extenO
the Agreement for additional one-year periods as follows:

a.
b.
c.

From
From

Julv 1. through
through
through

June 30,2024
.lrrlv 1 .hrne 3O.2025

From Julv 1.2025 June 30. 2026

County may exercise such options by giving wriften notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days before
the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension thereof.

The notice shall specifiT the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same terms and conditions as stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDER.ATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set
forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by Contractor
at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per diem
which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor shall
not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or other

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(l ndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 1 of 22 05t29t2019



type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not be entitled,
by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, retirement
benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves of absence
of any type or kind whatsoever.
D. Limit upon amount payable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the Coung to
Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
$ fortv-eioht thousand and 00 Dollars ($ 48. 00 ) (initialterm);
$ sixtv-one thousand five h dred and no/100 Dollars ($ 61.500. (option 1);
$ sixtv-one thousand five h dred and no/100 Dollars ($ 61.500 (option 2);
$ sixtv-one thousand five h dred and no/l00 Dollars ($ 61,500.00) ) (option 3); for a
total of $ two hundred thirty-two thousand and five hundred and no/100 Dollars (g 232,500.00)
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or
reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract
limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted willcoverthe period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County willwithhold California State income taxes from payments made underthis Agreement
to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual payments to
Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00)

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contracto/s obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of these
services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in
full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be

00) )

00) )

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page2of 22 o5t29t2019



procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide County,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federal
funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement Programs
issued by the General Services Administration available at. http://www.sam.gov.

6. OFFICE SPAGE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7 COUNTY PROPERW.

A. Personal Propertv of County. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's
possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total,
which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or intellectual
properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or
manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of this
Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANGE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise
any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be considered
an employee of County. It is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall not under
any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture.
As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 3 of 22 o5t29t2019



B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's control
with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
Iimitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various provisions
of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions. Contractor shall
maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement.
Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute photographs,
microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which County
determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. Further, County
has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenruise evaluate the work performed or being
performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government
Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the California Code of
Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.1. BS-352) and all
amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement without
cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel
to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County. Further,
Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 4 of 22 05t29t2019



15. DEFAULT.
lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by

County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written
notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of '1996,

and Sections '10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from
the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain,
or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement,
not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term
of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse
party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this Agreement has gained
access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILIW.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be declared
invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or county
statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereof, shall
not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are severable.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 5 of 22 05t29t2019



21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the option
to cancel, reduce, or modifr7 this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying Gontractor
of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of this
Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two (22)
(Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including change
of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be required, or
may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the
respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Corrnfu Ad Department

Address
City and State

P.O. Drawer N

Contractor:
Jesse Steele Name

Address
City and State

561 W Crocker

lndeoendence. CA

Bio Pine CA

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 6 of 22 05t29t2019



AND

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

JESSE STEELE
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH|S _ DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO

Dated:

AP AND LEGALITY:

APP D AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

AP NEL REQUIREMENTS

nelServices

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

County Risk Manager

,/ 's$nfiture'{rte grctc

CONTRACTOR

By By L%<
Print or Type Name

Dated 10. 1-VT^

Cou

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

PageT of22 o5t29t2019

10/11/2022

11th October 2022



AND

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

JESSE STEELE
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH|S _ DAY OF r-

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By

*rctcDated:

AP

Dated

Print or Type Name

10.7-VT

APP

\

-rX

AND LEGALITY:

D AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

DAS NEL REQUIREMENTS:

tr-J.-
nnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

PageT of22 05t29t2019



AND

ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

JESSE STEELE

FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSI SERVICES

FROM: October 10,2022

TERM:

TO June 30- 2023

SCOPE OF WORK:

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities

The Contractor shall act in the capacity of lnyo County Film Commissioner. As the lnyo County
Film Commissioner, the Contractor must perform the duties necessary for the County to maintain
a formal relationship with the California Film Commission and ensure the County's continued
participation in the California Film Commission's Film Liaisons ln California, Statewide (FLICS)
Program.

Film Commissioner duties include, but are not limited to:
r Maintaining a working knowledge of the County and local business and government

practices.
r Maintaining a working knowledge of local commercial and non-profit resources available

to provide services to film productions.
. Staying informed on production issues in lnyo County communities and conveying this

information to producers.
. Serving as an experienced troubleshooter for producers and the communities in which

they work.
o Knowing how to secure permission to film on public (USFS, BLM, LADWP, NPS) and

private property within the county.
. Being familiar with potential filming locations within the county and associated land tenure

and ownership.
. Remaining sensitive to the needs of all communities within the county.
o Developing and maintaining relationships with lnyo County's five sovereign Native

American tribes, as well as an understanding of the indigenous history of the area.
. Never soliciting or accepting fees, payments, donations, or other contributions for the

provision of Film Commissioner services or on behalf of any entity or organization unless
so authorized pursuant to and in conjunction with the County's film permit requirements.

. Adhering to the FLICS Code of Responsibilities, including avoiding actual or apparent
conflicts of interest between the official duties and services provided and private financial
interests.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 8 of 22 05t29t2019



. Developing, maintaining, and distributing - in print and electronic form - local available
crew lists; a local resources database, including photography of locations throughout all
regions of the County, in written and electronic form; and a current local production guide
in written and electronic form. (This information will be provided to the County and
thereafter uploaded to the Film Commission website.)

. Providing film liaison services.
o Providing service and support to each production company from the initial contact to the

close of the production, including problem solving on film related matters.
. Acting as a liaison between production companies and all levels of government, including

the facilitation of permitting.
e Networking with regional and state organizations related to filming.
. Only using the title of lnyo County Film Commissioner when acting in an official capacity

pursuant to this agreement, and never for personal gain,
r Refraining from taking positions or engaging in activities, in an official capacity, contrary

to the established polices of the County of lnyo or which might othenrvise bring discredit to
the County - including lack of discretion or sharing gossip from shoots or denigrating other
productions and individuals.

o Working closely with County staff to ensure adherence to County policies and alignment
with County priorities, including regular meetings with County staff and/or Board members
to discuss mission, vision, and activities.

ln addition, the Contractor shall maintain an active membership in FLICS, and attend between
two (2) and four (4) FLICS membership meetings during the term of the contract. The Contractor
is responsible for preparing, maintaining, and administering all notifications and papenruork to the
California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film
Commissioner.

Furthermore, it is desirable during the course of this contract that the Contractor research and
work with County staff, including Public Works, to evaluate the current County permitting system
and recommend a more collaborative and streamlined process - possibly with the levying of fees
to support the lnyo County Film Commission.

(The Contractor shall also work with the current Film Commissioner, whose contract expires
October 31, 2022, to facilitate a smooth transition and sharing of institutional knowtedge, including
the transfer of any existing databases.)

The above-listed general duties will more specifically consist of:

A. Actively working to attract film production into all areas of lnyo County by:
. Developing and maintaining content for the Film Commission website.
. Working with County staff to develop a coordinated social media strategy that will

increase targeted social media engagement.
. Exploring new branding efforts.
. Publication of filming "success stories" as part of overall marketing efforts.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(l ndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page9 of 22 05t29t2019



Outreach to production companies, influencers, and film students and inviting them
to visit lnyo County.
Working closely with the County's Communications Liaison in release of public
information, including proofreading, editing, and general guidance.

(Travel will be limited the first year of this contract, with the main focus being to build up an online
presence and databases for film companies seeking additional information and asslsfance, and
to respond promptly and professionally to any and allrequesfs from production companies to
establish the lnyo Film Commission as an invaluable resource that will help companies succeed.)

B. Responding to production requests in a timely manner by:
. Maintaining a voicemail system for the Film Commission and responding to each

inquiry within 24 hours of receiving, or - in the event of vacations or other
unavailability - arrange to have a proxy call them back.

r Providing prompt and reliable service to productions from the first inquiry to the
last day of filming, using discretion and non-disruptive on-set behavior.

o Utilizing trusted, professional contracts in neighboring communities (such as the
former Film Commissioner) to respond in person to complaints and/or requests
when Contractor is indisposed.

C. Serving as liaison between film productions and the community by:
. Keeping up{o-date records and a comprehensive portfolio of all shoots in lnyo to

use as reference in future productions.
. Publicizing regular filming updates on social media and the website so residents

and visitors are aware of road closures and other issues related to productions.
o Encouraging productions to communicate with residents and businesses in

advance of any disruptive filming.
. Regularly updating the County Administrator of work on films in lnyo County.
. Delivering two written and two oral reports annually to the lnyo County Board of

Supervisors. (This will require coordination with the Assistant Clerk of the Board
to be placed on meeting agendas.)

r Building and maintaining relationships with public lands agencies, private land
owners, County and Tribal governments during each film shoot and
communicating as necessary any complications or issues.

D. Gompleting permits accurately and in a timely fashion by:
o Leveraging and building on existing working relationships with agency permitting

representatives.
o Meeting with permitting agencies on a regular basis to maintain good working

relationships, provide/receive updates, and troubleshoot any potential challenges.
. Guiding production companies through the permitting process, to help ensure

papenrvork and permits are done correctly and all requests by the permitting
agency are fulfilled to satisfaction.

r Working with permitting agencies, including lnyo County Public Works, on a
standardized permitting system to streamline the process and ensure uniformity

o

a

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 10 of 22 0st29t2019



among the agencies. (The end goal should be a single form available on the Film
Commission website that satisfies the requirements of all permitting agencies.)

E. Connecting producers with local assets and locations by:
. Using personal experience and knowledge to help direct companies to potential

locations. (The Contractor may enter into agreements/arrangements independent
of this contract with production companies for more comprehensive scouting
services.)

o Maintaining a list of location scouts to whom the Contractor will refer film
companies.

. Building a regularly updated portfolio of all professionals, possible filming
resources, and filming locations throughout the County. (This database will be a
living, growing resource.)

r Encouraging residents and business owners caterers, extras, still
photographers, mountain guides, pack stations, ranchers, extreme athletes,
seamstresses, etc. - to add themselves to the local filming resource database
housed on the Film Commission website. (This will include making sure listings
are appropriate and upto-date.)

o Encouraging the use of local talent and tradesmen - including youth with an
interest in various trades and/or the film industry.

F. Communicating best practices, including Leave No Trace, to productions by:
o Briefing crews on each production about the principles of "Leave No Trace" as well

as any safety concerns for either individuals or the environment.
o Providing pamphlets and sharing other applicable information prior to the start of

filming.
r Checking in on shoots as they are progressing to make sure all lnyo County rules

and regulations, as well as good stewardship practices, are being followed.
r Reaching out to appropriate County departments to learn about governmental

operations, rules, regulations, and practices.
r Making stewardship of lnyo County a top priority, including respecting, honoring,

and in some cases protecting its people and lands from potentially negative or
hazardous situations.

. Using diplomacy when communicating these practices.

G. Miscellaneous networking by:
e Traveling to other Film Commissions to meet and develop relationships with its

employees.
. Reaching out to regional and state organizations about filming in lnyo County as

well as learning tips and tricks to make lnyo County's Film Commission more
efficient.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 'l 1 of 22 05t29t2019



Section ll. Online Marketins

The Contractor is responsible for content development and management for the official lnyo
County Film Commission website.

The Contractor shall also create and maintain County-owned lnyo County Film Commission
profiles and accounts on Facebook, Twitter, and lnstagram using an lnyo County email account.

With regard to the content posted online, the Contractor must.
o Adhere to the terms of use and codes of conduct established and published by the social

media platforms.
. Ensure content is not in conflict with County values and policies.
r Not engage in any argumentative or controversial behavior online while identified as the

lnyo Film Commissioner.

" Obtain approval of content from County staff prior to publication online.
r Share all social media account passwords/password updates with County staff.
o Not share these passwords with anyone outside of the organization without permission.
. Relinquish all control of social media accounts and the website at the conclusion of the

contract, or at the County's request.

Section lll. General Marketinq

ln addition to the marketing efforts mentioned in Section l, A, the Contractor will be expected to
work closely with the Bishop Chamber of Commerce and Visitors Center on promotional efforts,
messaging, and branding. The County has entered into a marketing contract with the Chamber,
and consistency and following a coherent strategy will be critical.

Section lV. Admi istrative Services

The Contractor is responsible for providing for all administrative functions necessary to support
the lnyo County Film Commission, including:

1. Maintaining physical office space, including a telephone line and payment of all utility
costs;

2. Maintaining and, as appropriate, publicizing, a physical mailing address or P.O. Box;
dedicated voicemail and email account; Film Commission website; and social media
accounts on the following platforms: Facebook, Twitter, and lnstagram.

3. Arranging for clerical support, and any other personal contract services, that may be
necessary to support the duties and responsibilities of the Film Commissioner.

4. Providing all office supplies and, as necessary, photocopying and facsimile transmittal
services.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 12 of 22 o5t29t2019



Section V. Reportins

The Contractor shall keep the County Administrator or his designee, and the lnyo County Board
of Supervisors apprised of its activities and accomplishments in the performance of the
Agreement. At a minimum, the Contractor shall:

1. Within 30 days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner
Services, the Contractor shall prepare all notifications and papenruork required by the
California Film Commission necessary to designate the Contractor as the lnyo Film
Commissioner. These documents shall be transmitted to the Office of the County
Administrator for review and approval in advance of their submittal to the California Film
Commission and, if necessary, for submittal to the California Film Commission by the
County. Any subsequent modifications that may be required to this documentation will be
processed in the same manner.

2. As soon as practicable, but no later than seven (7) days of receipt, the Contractor shall
transmit to the Office of the County Administrator any notices or other communications the
Contractor receives from the California Film Commission.

3. Within 60 days of execution of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner
Services, the Contractor shall submit to the Office of the County Administrator, in paper
and electronic form, the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources
database, including photography of locations throughout all regions of the County, that the
Contractor is required to develop, maintain, and distribute under the terms of this
agreement. These products will become property of the County, and must be submitted in

an electronic format acceptable to the County for viewing, reproduction, and posting to a
County website. As part of their submittal, the Contractor must identify all physical and
electronic locations where these resources are available.

4. As needed, and at least once every 12 months and one (1) month prior to the expiration
of the Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services, the Contractor shall
update the local crew lists, local production guide and local resources database, including
photography of locations throughout all regions of the County, and transmit this
information to the County as required in item 3 above.

5. Copies of all articles generated by the Contractor and published by local and/or national
and/or international media will be transmitted to the Office of the County Administrator with
the Contractor's next monthly invoice for services.

6. Make at least two (2) Verbal and (4) Written Reports a year: Verbal Reports in April and
October; Written Reports in July and January. The Contractor is encouraged to make
additional Verbal Reports to the Board of Supervisors as may be warranted based on
filming activity in the County. The Contractor will be responsible for contacting the
Assistant Board Clerk to arrange to be placed on the Board of Supervisors' agenda.
Written reports must include:

. A summary of accomplishments and works in progress.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 13 of 22 05t29t2019



. All production requests and lists of each type of production.
r ldentification and itemization of all productions in lnyo County since the

previous report.
o ltemization of all local resources used, including hotels, restaurants, and local

crew and talent with the estimated value of all.
. Discussion of all marketing done during that quarter as well as copies of all

physical properties (fliers, posters, etc.), and links to all new digital materials.
. Copies of current local cast and crew lists as well as production guides, local

resource database, and location guide.

Written reports shall include trend data across the year showing growth or reduction in these key
performance indicators. During the last year of the Agreement, a Final Written Report shall be
prepared and submitted no later than December 1st.

The parties agree that it would be impracticable and extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of
actual damages caused by a material breach of these reporting requirements. Therefore, the
parties agree that, in the event that Contractor fails to comply with these reporting requirements
and associated deadlines, Contractor shall pay County, as liquidated damages, the amount of
Contractor's monthly fee, as established in the Fee Schedule of the Agreement for the provision
of Film Commissioner Services, for each failure to comply, which amount will be deducted from
amounts due the Contractor.

Section Vl. Additiona I Marketinq Activities

ln addition to marketing the County as a filming location through active participation in FLICS and
its California Location Request Service and creating articles for the local, national, and/or
international media, the Contractor may perform, and be compensated separately for, additional
marketing activities. Any specific, supplemental marketing activities must be identified in the
Contractor's proposal and associated budget, and agreed to in the Fee Schedule included in the
Agreement for the provision of Film Commissioner Services.

Separately compensated marketing activities may include but are not limited to:

Attending appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive
presence at industry trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and
collateral material (e.9., artwork, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner and
show and/or the Association of Film Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations Show.

Creating pamphlets, fact sheets, flyers, and other printed marketing materials for special
events, initiatives, and promotions, in cooperation with the Bishop Chamber of Commerce
and lnyo County Communications Liaison.

a

a

All resource materials and promotional materials developed in conjunction with this Scope of
Work, including but not limited to the lnyo County Film Commission website, domain name,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 14 of 22 05t29t2019



artwork and hand-outs distributed at industry events, local crew lists, local production guide, and
local resources database (including photography of locations throughout all regions of the
County), in written and electronic form, shall:

A. ldentify the Office of the County Administrator as the venue where members of the film
industry and the community can register compliments or complaints regarding the
provision of Film Commissioner services, and provide the telephone number and e-mail
address for the Office of the County Administrator for this purpose.

B. Become the property of the County of lnyo

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(l ndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 15 of 22 05t29t2019



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND JESSE STFELE

FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

TERM

FROM: October 10.2022

SCHEDULE OF FEES

Section l. General Duties & Responsibilities. Online Marketinq. Administrative Services.
Reportinq

ln consideration for the services and work identified in Section l. General Duties &
Responsibilities, Section ll. Online Marketing, Section lll. General Marketing, Section lV.
Administrative Services, and Section V. Reporting of AttachmentA: Scope of Work, the contractor
shall be paid a flat fee of:

. $4,500 for the period of October 10,2022 through October 31,2022

. $4,500 per month for the period of November 1,2022 through June 30,2022

. $4,500 per month for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30,2024

. $4,500 per month for the period July 1 ,2024 through June 30, 2025

. $4,500 per month for the period July 1 ,2025 through June 30, 2026

The monthly fee is negotiable on renewal of contract beyond initial term

Section ll. Additiona I Marketinq Activities

For the specific marketing activities the Contractor is required to perform, and identified in Section
Vl. Additional Marketing Activities of Attachment A: Scope of Work, the contractor shall be paid

the actual cost of the specific activity, documented by paid receipts, in an amount not to exceed
the amount identified below for each activity:

Attend appropriate industry events, and maintaining a professional and attractive
presence at industry trade shows by engaging the use of creative booth space and
collateral material (e.9., artwork, hand-outs, etc.), including the COLA awards dinner

1

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 16 of 22 05t29t2019



and show and/or the Association of Film Commissions lnternational (AFCI) Locations
Show:

. $2,500 for the period October 10,2022 through June 30, 2023

. $2,500 for the period July 1, 2023 through June 30,2024;
, $2,500 for the period July 1 , 2024 through June 30,2025
. $2,500 for the period July 1, 2025 through June 30,2026

Creating pamphlets, fact sheets, flyers, and other printed marketing materials for
special events, initiatives, and promotions, in cooperation with the Bishop Chamber of
Commerce and lnyo County Communications Liaison.

. $500 per fiscal year through June 30,2026

Section lll. Travel and Per Diem

The Contractor's travel and per diem expense shall be paid in accordance with Section 3.
Paragraph B. of this Agreement. These costs include all mileage, lodging and food expenses
associated with all of the general services and work requested by the County in this Agreement,
as well as the specific marketing activities requested by the County in this Agreement.

The Contractor's travel and per diem expense reimbursement shall not exceed

. $4,500 for the period October 10,2022 through June 30, 2023

. $4,500 for the period July 1 ,2023 through June 30,2024

. $4,500 for the period July 1 ,2024 through June 30, 2025

. $4,500 for the period July 1 ,2025 through June 30, 2026

Section lV. Contract Totals

Total for October 10,2022 through June 30, 2023: $48,000
' Flat monthly fee ($4,500 x 9): $40,500. Additional Marketing Activities

./ lndustry events. $2,500./ Pamphlets: $500

' Travel and per diem: $4,500

Total for July 1 , 2023 through June 30, 2024: $61,500

. Flat monthly fee ($4,500 x 12): $54,000. Additional Marketing Activities
,/ lndustry events: $2,500
'/ Pamphlets: $500. Travel and per diem: $4,500

2

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page17 ol22 05t29t2019



TotalforJuly 1, 2024through June 30,2025: $61,500

. Flat monthly fee ($4,500 x 12): $54,000. Additional Marketing Activities
,/ lndustry events: $2,500,/ Pamphlets: $500. Traveland per diem: $4,500

Total for July 1 , 2025 through June 30, 2026: $61,500

. Flat monthly fee ($4,500 x 12): $54,000. Additional Marketing Activities
./ lndustry events: $2,500
,/ Pamphlets:$500

. Travel and per diem: $4,500

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 18 of 22 05t29t2019



f

AND

ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

JESSE STFFI F
FOR THE PROVISION OF FILM COMMISSIONER SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: October 13. 2022 TO: June 30. 2023

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 124
(lndependent Contractor - Term/Options)

Page 19 ol 22 05129t2019



Attachment C: Insurance Requirements for Services & Proiects
where a professional license is not required

(See Risk for review before use for Airport, Technology, Heavy Equipment/Construction, Environmental Hazards, or
Medical/Legal)

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance
of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

L. Commercial General Liability: ISO Form CG 00 01 covering general liability on an "occurrence"
basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury, and
personal & advertising injury with limits no less than S1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general
aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
project/location (lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit. For contracts involving work with or service to minors (i.e., people
under the age of 18 in California), sexual assault and misconduct ("SAM") coverage is required
with limits no less than those listed in this paragraph for other types of loss. The general liability
policy shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. Proof of additional
insured status must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance showing general liability
coverage limits. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code 1), or if Contractor
has no owned autos, hired (Code 8), and non-owned autos (Code 9), with limit no less than
S1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. May be woived with signed ond
doted letter on Contractor's letterhead certifying that no vehicle or mobile equipment will be
used in the execution of the agreement. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below,

3. Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than 51,000,000 per accident for bodily injury
or disease. May be waived with signed ond doted letter on Controctor's letterhead certifying
that Contractor hos no employees. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above,
lnyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of
insurance and coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Additional lnsured Stotus: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the
form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or
if not available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 25, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if
a later edition is used).

County of lnyo lnsurance Stondords for Services/Projects where o professionol license is not required
(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal)

updoted 20220601



Attachment : Insurance Requirements for Services & Proiects
where a professional license is not required

(See Risk for review before use for Airport, Technology, Heavy Equipment/Construction, Environmental Hazards, or
Medical/Legal)

Primory Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 2001,04 L3 as respects lnyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by lnyo
County, its officers, officials, employees, orvolunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
"following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional
lnsureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Notice of Cancellotion: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

Woiver ol Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County. lnyo
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention
may be satisfied by eitherthe named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess

liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds 525,000
unless approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the
lndemnified Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SlR)

provision that limits the satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfo the SIR or deductible. lnyo County
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification.

Acceptobility of lnsurers; lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the
state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Made Policies; lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning

of contract work.

County of lnyo lnsuronce Standords for Services/Projects where o professionol license is not required
(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal)

Updated 2022060L



Attachment : Insurance Requirements for Services & Proiects
where a professional license is not required

(See Risk for review before use for Airport, Technology, Heavy Equipment/Construction, Environmental Hazards, or
Medical/Legal)

2, lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years
after completion of the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase
"extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verilicotion of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by lnyo County before work commences. However,
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. lnyo
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk,
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Subcontroctors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that lnyo County is an additional insured
on insurance required from subcontractors.

Duration ol Coverage; CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years

for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of
insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

Special Risks or Circumstances: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circu msta nces.
-end-

County of lnyo Insurance Standords for Services/Projects where o professional license is not required
(Not For Airport, Technology Services, Construction/Heavy Equipment, Environmental Hazards, or Medical/Legal)

updated 20220601"



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3850  

 

Amendment No. 3 to Contract with The Ferguson Group 
County Administrator - Economic Development 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
County Administrator Nate Greenberg, County Administrative Officer 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of Inyo for 
provision of Federal Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2024 in an 
amount not to exceed $101,000, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On June 26, 2018, your Board approved a three-year contract with The Ferguson Group, LLC for the 
provision of Federal Advocacy Services on behalf of the County. The Ferguson Group was one of nine 
firms submitting proposals to the County in response to a formal Request for Proposals. A review 
committee comprised of two members of the Board, the Inyo County Public Works Director, Inyo County 
Counsel, and County Administrator independently reviewed and then met to rank and score each 
proposal. The Ferguson Group emerged from the process as the highest-ranked respondent. 
 
The original contract, for a total amount not to exceed $303,000 ($101,000 per year), expired June 30, 
2021 and was extended another year by Amendment No. 1 approved in May 2021. Amendment No. 2 in 
2022 extended the contract for yet another year. Included in the contract is a provision that allows the 
County, in its sole discretion, to annually elect to continue the agreement for another 12 months beyond 
the original term. The contract also provides the County and The Ferguson Group the option to extend 
the contract for another five years, at the end of the original 36 months, on terms mutually agreed upon. 
For now, your Board is asked to extend the contract with The Ferguson Group another 12 months, after 
which a five-year extension will be considered. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 010202 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
There will be almost $18,000 remaining on the FY 2022-2023 contract.  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
TBD based on contract extension/renewal. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment, modify the contract amendment, or 
direct the issuance of another RFP. None of these alternatives are recommended. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
The Ferguson Group engages federal agency officials and staff as well as the County's congressional 
delegation to obtain funding for priority projects identified by your Board. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Ferguson Group Contract 
2. Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 1 
3. Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 2  
4. Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 3 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/14/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/14/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















































































































AMENDMENT NUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GROUP. LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDEML ADVOCACY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and The Ferguson Group,
LLC (hereinafier referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Federal
Advocacy Services dated June 26,2018, on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 119, for the term from
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formaiities as such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. Paragraph 2. TERM. is amended to read as follows

"The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2018 to June 30,2A22,
unless sooner terminated as provided below."

/// NOTHING FOLLOWS \\\

The effective date of thls Amendment to the Agreement is July 1,2A21.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 1 19
Page 1

04t30t2020



ATTIIENDMENT NUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GROUJTLLq

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEOERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF r _.

COUNTY OF INYO

By:

W. RogerGrvinn, CEO

Dated

Type or Print

05127DA2l

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County

AS TO PERSONNEL REOUIREMENTS

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

By:

M/^#4
County Risk @6!er

Gounty of lnyo Standard Conlracl - No 119
Page 1

04t30t2020

7th July 2021

07-07-2021



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Supetwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 27't day of June 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

CAO-Economic
Development -
Ferguson Group
Contract
Amendment No. 2

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to approve Amendment No.
2 to the contract between The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of lnyo for provision of
Federal Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1,2018 to June 30, 2023 in an
amount not to exceed $101 ,000, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget, and authorized the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

IVITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 2 l"
ooy ofJ-uneJ}22

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
C lerk oJ the Board of Supervisors

fd*X U'1Att,ta.'-

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO EconomicDevelopment
Other:
DATE: June 24,2022

By:



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Economic
Development

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: June 21 ,2022

FROM: Assistant Clerk of the Board

SUBJECT: Amendment 2 to Contract with The Ferguson Group LLC

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract between The Ferguson Group, LLC and County of
lnyo for provision of Federal Advocacy Services, extending the term from July 1,2018 to June 30, 2023 in an
amount not to exceed $101 ,000, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal year 2022_2023 Budget, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

On June 26,2018, your Board approved a three-year contract with The Ferguson Group, LLC for the provision of
Federal Advocacy Services on behalf of the County. The Ferguson Group was one of nine firms submitting
proposals to the County in response to a formal Request for Proposals. A review committee comprised of two
members of the Board, the lnyo County Public Works Director, lnyo County Counsel, and County Administrator
independently reviewed and then met to rank and score each proposal. The Ferguson Group emerged from the
process as the highest-ranked respondent.

The original contract, for a total amount not to exceed $303,000 ($101,000 per year), expired June 30, 2021 and
was extended another year by Amendment No. 1 approved in May 2021. lncluded in the contract is a provision
that allows the County, in its sole discretion, to annually elect to continue the agreement for another 12 months
beyond the originalterm. The contract also provides the County and The Ferguson Group the option to extend
the contract for another five years, at the end of the original 36 months, on terms mutually agreed upon. For now,
your Board is asked to extend the contract with The Ferguson Group another 12 months, afterwhich a five-year
extension will be considered.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
N/A

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract amendment, modifo the contract amendment, or direct the
issuance of another RFP. None of these alternatives are recommended.



Agenda Request
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Ferguson Group engages federal agency officials and staff as well as the County's congressional delegation
to obtain funding for priority projects identified by your Board.

FINANGING:
Funding for this contract is included will be included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget under Advertising
County Resources.

ATTAGHMENTS:
1. Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 2
2. Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 1

3. Ferguson Group Contract

APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Leslie Chapman

Created/lnitiated - 61 1312022
Approved - 611412022
Approved - 611412022
Final Approval - 61 1 612022



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and

The Ferguson Group. LLC hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for
the Provision of lndependent Contractor Services dated June 26, 20L8 , on County of lnyo Standard
Contract No. LL9, for the term from Julv 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021 .

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in
written form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original
Agreement to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows

t. Paragraph 2. TERM is amended to read as follows:

"The term of this Agreement shall be from July t,2OLg to June 30,2023, unless sooner

terminated as provided below."

Paragraph 3.D. Limit Upon Amount Pavable Under Agreement is amended to read as

follows:

"The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work
performed under this Agreement in each fiscal year during which this Agreement is in effect,
including incidental expenses, if any, shall not exceed StOt,OOO (hereinafter referred to as

"contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or
reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including
incidental expenses which is in excess of the contract limit."

///NOTHTNG FOLLOWS\\\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July t,2022.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same. county of tnyo

Standard Contract - No. 719

Page 1

2



By

AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GROUP. LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

16 onv or June 2022

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:

Dated: W. Roger Gwinn, CEO
Type or Print

June 1 6.2022

APPROV LEGALIW

County

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 119

PaBe 2

Dated:

06/16/2022



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON 9ROUP. LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and The Ferguson Group,
LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Contracto/'), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Federal
Advocacy Services dated June 26,2018, on County of lnyo Standard Contract No. 119, for the term from
July 1 , 2018 through June 30, 2021 .

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreemenl, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. Paragraph 2. TERIU. is amended to read as follows

"The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2018 to June 30,2022,
unless sooner terminated as provided below."

/// NOTHING FOLLOWS \\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1 ,2021.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 'l 19
Page I

04t30t2020



By:By:

ATUENOMENT NUiIBER 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
THE FERGUSON GFqU?rLLQ

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL AOVOCACY SERVIGES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
7th DAY OF )o21

COUNTY OF

7-07-2021
W. Rogel Grvinrr, CEO

Dated:

Type or Print

ost17l202t

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

t*--rr^^
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County AiAii6irr_
AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

ffiie,
County Risk @fgbr

County oflnyo Standard Cont.scl - No 119
Pege 1

04/3OaOa0



In the Rmms of the Board of Saperuisars
Courty of Inyo. State ol Califbrnia

I, HEREBY CERTIFY. that at a meefing of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the Couilty Administrative Center in lndependence on the 26th day of June 2018 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

CAO - TFG, LLC
Federal Advocacy
Services

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve a contract
between the County of lnyo and The Ferguson Group, LLC for the provision of Federal
Advocacy Services on behalf of the County, for the period of July '1, 2018 through June 30, 2021
in a total amount not to exceed $303,000 ($101,000 per year), subject to the Board's approval of
future County budgets, and authorize the County Administrator io sign, contingent on all
appropriate signatures being maintained. Motion carried unanimously.

WIT'NESS ny hand and the sea! of suid Board this 2dh

tay oy June, 2018

KEWN D. CIRL.NCI-/1Q
Cle* o{the Board qfSupewtsor

u. ...;.-"

Routins

Purchasing

Pe$onnel
Audilor
CAO X
Other:
DATE: June 26, 2018



AGENDA REQUEST FORM
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

COI-INTY OF INYO
X Consent n Departmental flCorrespondence Action

n Scheduled Time for f] CloseO Session

Clerk's Uso
NUMBER

tA

I Pubtic Hearing

D lnformational

FROM: County Administrator

FOR THE BOARD MEETING OF: June 26,2018

SUBJECT: Federal Advocacy Services Contract

D E PA RTMENTAL R ECO KT M E N DA TI ON :

Request your Board consider a contract between the County of Inyo and The Ferguson Group LLC for the
provision Federal Advocacy Services on behalf of the County, for the period of July 1, 2018, June 30, 2021 in a
totalamoturt not to exceed $303,000 ($101,000 per year) subject to the approval of future County Budgets, and
authorize the County Administrator to sign contingent on all signatures being obtained.

SAMMARY DISCUSSION:

As reportecl on June sttt, the County issued a Request For Proposal for Federal Advocacy Services focused,
primarily, on securing federal funding and grants for an array of public works and economic development
projects the County is planning or may pursue in the tbture. The RFP also noted that although not the
primary purpose of the engagement, from time-to-time, the Federal Advocacy Services required by the
County may extend to policy and regulatory matters, A copy of the RFP (without attacirments) is included
here.

The RFP resulted in nine (9) proposals being submitted to the County by the June lltl'deadline. A review
committee comprised of two members of your Board (Supervisors Griffiths and Pucci), the Inyo County
llublic Works Director, lnyo Clouriry Counsel, and the Inyo County Adniinistrator independently revicwed
each preiposal. and mcl on.lunc l4tr'to score and rank each proposal based on the svalilation criteria and
using the cvaluation proees$ sp*cilied in the RFP.

The Ferguson Group emerged from this process as the highest-ranked respondent, and its proposal (along
with the RFP) are incorporated in the scope of work of the contracl being presented today for your
consideration.

If your board approves the contract, staff will begin to working with TFG to prepare federal funding and
legislative priorities for your Board to consider at a meeting with TFG representatives later this summer.

ALTERNATIWS:

Your Board could choose not to approve the contract, modify the contract, consider submittals made by other
respondents, reject all proposals, or direct that the RFP be reissued. None of these altematives are
recommended.



Agenda Request
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLWMENT:

If engaged, the federal services advocate will engage federal agency officials and staff, and the County's
congressional delegation to obtain funding for priority projects identified by your Board.

FINANCING:

Funding for this contract is included in the Fiscal Year 2018- 20i9 Preliminary Budget considered by your
Board next week, and will need to be provided in future year's budgets.

DEP ART M ENT H E A D SIGIVA IURE; 2E 06- /t -.\orV(Not to be signed until all approvals are
(The Original plus 20 copies of this document are required)

COUNTY COUNSEL: AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND ORDINANCES AND CLOSED SESSION
reviewed and approwd by county counsel prior to submission to the boad efuk.)

REI-ATED ITEMS (Musf be

Approved:

AUDITOR/CONTROLLER: ACCOUNTINC'IFINANCE AND RETATED ITEMS (Musf be reviewed aN aryroved by lhe auditor-contmller piot to

I

submission tothe boad elork.)

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR: PERSONNEL AND RELATED ITEMS (Must be reviewed-afrifapproved by the director of personnel seivices prior to
submission to the board clerk.)

06-/*;vx/

z\ l'l'l{()\'.,\ l.S



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO
AND THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo {hereinafter referred to as "County") has the need for the federal
advocacy services of The Ferguson Group, LLC (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), and in
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1 SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County those services and work set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.

Services and work provided by the Conkactor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from July '1 , 2018 to June 30, 2021, unless sooner terminated
as provided below.

J. CONSIDERATION.

A. Qqmoensation, County shall pay to Contractor the sum of eight thousand ($8,000) dollars
per month for performance of all of the services and completion of all of the work described in Attachment A
on a monthly basis.

B. Travel and per diern. Contractor will be reimbursed a maximum of five thousand dollars
($5,000) per fiscal year for the travel expenses or per diem which Contractor incurs in providing services
and work under this Agreement.

C. No addtligtal patgtde&lian Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, fiom County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary,
wages, or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor
shall not be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance
benefits, retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other
paid leaves of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit unon amount pqyable under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by
the County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
three hundred three thousand dollars ($303,000) {hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County
expressly reseryes the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or
work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 119 modified
ilndependeni Contractor)

Page 1

$242416



E. Billing and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work performed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. This statement will
be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be submifted will
cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last day of the
preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were performed and
describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the last day of the
month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1i Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold
any federalor state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to
Contractor under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is

anticipated that total annual payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one
thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars ($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all
taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County
has no responsibility or liability for payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal
Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting,
Contractor shall complete and submit io the County an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS)
Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a limely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange hisiher own schedule, but
will coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement
will be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

s. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured
by Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenvise may be
required. Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates,
and permits in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to,
driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates,
and permits will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor
will provide County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses,
certificates and permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where
there is a dispute between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are
required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such
determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 119 modified
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 2

03242016



B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: hlJp:llWulU.s..afn.gov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETG.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personaj.nfoo-ertv_ -of County.* Any personal property such as, but not limited to,
protective or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County
pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive
property of County, Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while
they are in Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to
such items, partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Prqdu ts of Contractofs Work and Serviges. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes,
computer programs, computer disks, computer lapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films,
audio-visual presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks,
copyrights, or intellectual propedies of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or
are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at
the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination
of the Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County,

8. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

Contractor shall provide Statutory California Worker's Compensation coverage and Employer's
Liability coverage for not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for all employees engaged in services or
operations under this Agreement, The County of lnyo, its agents, officers and employees shall be named as
additional insured or a waiver of subrogation shall be provided.

9. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

IO. STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is io be

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 119 modified
(lndependent Contractor)

page 3

03242016



considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement
shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship
or a joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement,

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

11, DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless County, its agents, officers, and employees
from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses, and other costs, including
litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with, the performance of
this Agreement by Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers, or employees. Contraetor's obligation to
defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and employees harmless applies to any actual
or alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to tangible or intangible property, including ihe
loss of use. Contractor's obligation under this paragraph extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability,
expense, or other costs which is caused in whole or in part by any act or omission of the Contractor, its
agents, employees, supplier, or any one directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose
acts or omissions any of them may be liable.

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold the County, its agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any
requirement in this Agreement for Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Contractor, its
agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees,lrising out of,-oriesulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acts of County, its officers, or employees.

12. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Recqrds. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion
of this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as reguired by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 1 19 modified
(l ndependent Contractor)

page 4

03242016



13. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlaMully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent
to cancel to County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor, County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior written consent of County.

{6. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County witl pay to Contractor all amounts
owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent detault. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of
this Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twentythree (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without lhe County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 1 19 modified
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5

43242416



and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this
Agreement.

20. POSTAGRFEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal
benefit, gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of
this Agreement, noi to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person
who, during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who
has been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, Coung has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
three (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in wriften form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOTTCE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 1 19 modified
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 6

43242A16



County of lnyo;
Cou nty Administrative Officer
PO Drawer N,
lndependence, CA 93526

Contractor:
The Ferguson Group, LLC
1901 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Suite 700
Washington D.C.2006

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT-

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 119 modified
{lndependent Contractor)

Page 7

43242A16



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

TERM

FROM: July 1, 2018 TO: June 30, 2021

SCOPE OF WORK:
SEE ATTAGHED:

A. lnyo County Request for Proposals; and
B. Contractods Proposaldated June 11,2018.

ln the event of any conflicts between these documents, the order of precedenee shall be (1) the express
terms of this Agreement, (2) Contractor's June 11,2018 Proposal, and (3) lnyo County's Request for
Proposals.

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 119 modified
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 9

03242A16



A AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND THE FERGUSoI{ GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

, THE PARTIES

couNwoF tNYo

THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS

ry
d

- 26 -2at Dated

APPROVED FORMAND LEGALIW:

TOACCOUNT]NG FORM:

NEL REQUIREMENTS;

RANCE REQUIREMENTS

County of lnyo Standard Conlract No. - 1lg modified
(l n dependent Contrac,tor)

page g

v,
or

ASTO

Servlces

0324201A





RHSEIVED
l$18 JUl'| -8 Pt{ }: 5 t

Proposal ts the Ccunty ot#ruysr',$Flifsrnia
for Federal Advacacy serufEei' 

"l:11,,"

Table of Contents

Cover Letter
Recent Engagements

Our History
TFG Focus

Commitment to California
Firm Experience and Client Successes

Economic Development
Housing and Community Development
Public Safety and Social Services

Water Resources and lnfrastructu re
City of Los Angeles Work

Key Personnel
lnyo County Advocacy Team

Work Plan
TFG's Approach
Federal Agenda Development
Advocacy

Communications
Examples of Client Communications
Grant Services

Approach and Likelihood of Success
Final Mile Fiber Optics
Water Systems
Outreach Strategy
lnformation Required from the County

Ability to Contract and Exceptions
References
Compensation Proposal
Services for the City of Bishop Services

1.

2
2

2

2

3

3

4
4
6

6

7
7

!2
L2

L2

13

t4
15

t7
18
18

19

20

2L

2L

2L

22

22



Proposal to the County ol lnyo, CA for Federal Legislative Servic-es G 2

Recent Engagements

Our History

The Ferguson Group LLC (TFG) is a bipartisan government relations consulting firm founded in 1982 in

Washington, DC, We provide federal advocacy services to approximately 94 public and private entities in 22

states, including counties, cities, public works agencies, and joint powers authorities. We also advocate on

behalf of national organizations focused on federal issues directly impacting local government: the National

Association of Towns and Townships, the Manufacturing Alliance of Communities, and the Perfect Storm

Communities Coalition.

For 36 years, TFG has represented local communities on federal issues in Washington, DC, where the firm is

headquartered. TFG is unique in that, in addition to our main office in Washington. DC, we maintain local and

regional offices in key locations to better serve the interests of clients located in those areas, including

California. The address and contact information for our main office is:

The Ferguson Group, L.L.C.

1901 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W

Suite 700

Washington D.C.2006

{202) 331-8s00

gr.ttw.$1glele$9j]glQ!iulQr-1]

TFG Focus

TFG provides federal government relations services to forward-thinking local Bovernments seeking to advance

or protect their interests at the federal level. We have a demonstrated track record of responding to our

clients' needs while also identifying and developing strategies to address emerging issues and opportunities.

We focus primarily on issue areas of direct interest to lnyo County, including but not limited to the following:

r Community and economic development.

r Telecommunicationsandbroadband.

r Water and wastewater infrastructure development, planning, funding, and financing.

r Land use issues as impacted by federal policy and permitting.

r Transportation policy and funding, including transit, highway funding, and rail safety.

o Public safety, law enforcement, and fire services.

o Clean Water Act, Endangered Species Act and Safe Drinking Water Act regulations.

r Housing, homelessness, and social services, including veterans' affairs.

o Municipal government finance and revenue protection.

Commitment to California

It is important to note our Congressional and agency relationships are not limited to offices "inside the

Beltway." We work regularly with key officials and staff in Congressional district offices and federal agency

staff in local and regional offices. TFG has particularly strong ties to California. Our first clients were in



The Ferguson Group
Advocacy. Consulting. Grants.

June 11, 2018

Mr. Kevin Carunchio
County of lnyo
Office of the County Administrator
P.O. Drawer N
lndependence, CA 93526

Dear Mr. Carunchio:

On behalf ofThe Ferguson Group, LLC {TFG), I am pleased to submit the enclosed proposal to the County of

lnyo, CA for Federal Advocacy Services, Headquartered in Washington, DC, TFG specializes in representing

local governments before Congress and the Administration. We pride ourselves on our ability to serve public

sector clients of all sizes, which keeps us among the top independent lobbying firms in Washington.

For over 35 years, TFG has been the preeminent provider of federal government relations advocacy to local

governments seeking to advance or protect their interests in Washington's complex legislative and regulatory

arenas. Our knowledge of Congress and the Administration, and how they can work collaboratively with local

governments, provides our clients with a unique strategic advantage that sets them up for success. As the

Congressional ban on "earmarks" continues to be enforced, TFG has successfully adapted to changes in the

federal budget process and has expanded the Brant services we provide our clients. As such, our clients

consistently enjoy a positive return on their investment in federal lobbying services.

Most importantly, TFG has particularly strong ties to California. Our first three clients in 1982 were California

cities and, over the years, we have developed an unparalleled working knowledge of how to effectively

represent California communities in Washington, DC. Our California presence gives us a unique opportunity to

engage in unmatched levels of communication and collaboration with the County. Most notably, we have

identified Kristi More to serve as the lead lobbyist for lnyo County's team. Her direct and personal knowledge

of your history, heritage, and goals will enable her to represent the County in Washington like no other

lobbyist could.

I attest to you that the information provided in this proposal is accurate, and that I am authorized to execute

binding legal documents on the firm's behalf. TFG is a firm committed to building strong, prosperous

communities across the country, and we hope to put our expertise to work for lnyo County. lf you have any

questions, please do not hesitate to call me directly at (202) 331-8500 or contact me via email at

{fiW!!l't@llg&rt.c.orlr. Please note the firm's mailing address on this letterhead. Thank you for the

consideration.

Sincerely,

k.k
cEo

I'irsfli:u:rrrGror:i,:.1!r . 1901 PennsylvaniaAve. NW . Suite700 ' Washington, DC20006 . 202.331.8500



Proposal to the County of lrtyo, CA lor Federal Legisiative Services

California and remain clients of the firm today. We have maintained offices in California continuously since

1991, and over the years we have developed an unparalleled working knowledge of the opportunities,

challenges, and needs facing California local governments. Our California connections benefit our clients,

particularly in recent years, as decision making authority within many relevant federal agencies has been

entrusted to local and regional offices ofthe federal agencies.

Firm Experience and Client Successes

After representing local communities for 36 years, TFG's list of accomplishments and successes on behalf of

our clients is quite extensive. The following examples are provided as case studies for work we have

performed over the past five years that is relevant to the County's goals and priorities. We chose to highlight a

few examples of our work on economic development, housing, public safety and law enforcement,

transportation, and water resources projects, which we believe most directly relate to the goals of lnyo

County. Expanded information on additional client successes can be provided upon request.

Economic Development

TFG has a long history of successfully identifying federal programs and finding creative opportunities to secure

funds for community and economic development projects. Almost every aspect of TFG's representation of

local governments touches on economic development. From improved transportation and water

infrastructure, to downtown revitalization projects, to increased community services and housing options, we

have helped bring significant resources to our clients to help them build their local economies.

SutteJ County, California - Stakeholder-Based Economic Development lnitiatlve. TFG worked with Sutter

County staff, the County's elected officials, and the local Economic Development Corporation to launch the

SutterForward initiative. SutterForward expands on the Economic and Demographic Analysis Report that TFG

provided the County, and incorporates input from stakeholders, local businesses, and citizens into the

economic development strategy. As the facilitator of the SutterForward initiative, TFG leads public stakeholder

meetings and working groups, and will conduct a Talent Gap Analysis to identify job training and education

goals that will help support the current and future workforce in the County. The SutterForward process also

analyzes projects identified in the County's General Plan and incorporates them into a strategic federal

funding and grants work plan that will help support the economic and workforce goals of the initiative.

Cumberland County, ME - Food Systems Plannlng. Cumberland County secured 525,000 in FY 2015 planning

funds from USDA's Local Food Promotion Program. TFG assisted the County in identifying and scoping a

project, as well as drafting and submitting the narrative. The project will produce a food system plan that will

examine 15 existing rural food economies, the present state of local agriculture, and current initiatives at the

local level. The resulting plan will identify the highest potential opportunities for increasing local food sales.

loudoun County, VA - General Servlces Admlnistration. Prior ts 2AO7, Loudoun County was included in the

Washington, DC per diem non-standard rate area (NSA). The County is now designated as its own NSA with a

significantly lower per diem rate. Working with the County and with Congressional support, TFG partnered

with the U.5. Department of Transportation, the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority (MWAA), and

the local travel and tourism board to help GSA develop an appeals process for how a particular per diem

boundary is set. After significant work with both political and career personnel at GSA, we are awaiting

publication of the final rule on such an appeal.

@ 3



Proposal lo the Coirnly of inyc, CA for Ieder.rl legisi.:tive 5ervicl-s

Housing and Community Development

TFG continues to advocate for federal resources to support housing and community development priorities in

local communities, including Section 8 project reserves, Federal Housing Administration loan threshold, and

funding for Department of Housing and Urban Development {HUD} programs (i.e, CDBG, McKinney Act and

HOME).

City of Newark, New lersey - Training and Education Center. The Newark, NJ Housing Authority approached

TFG for assistance in funding the construction of Weequahic Park East Training Recreation Education Center

(TREC), a state-of-the-art, 28,000 square foot facility capable of providing space for educational classes,

community meetings and fitness activities. TFG helped the Housing Authoritydraft, edit and apply to the

HUD's Capital Fund Education and Training Community Facilities program. The Housing Authority's $S million

grant was the largest single award provided by this HUD program in recent years.

City of Oceanside, California - Veterans Housing, The City of Oceanside, CA sought assistance from TFG to

address the specific needs of both homeless and low-income veterans in their community. The veteran

population was on the rise and the Oceanside Housing Authority was struggling to provide adequate services

to this population, TFG assisted by working with the City and several local organizations to gather data

specifically on housing assistance needs for military veterans and their families separating from active duty

from the U.5. Marine Corps at Camp Pendleton and,/or the U.S. Naval lnstallation in San Diego. TFG then

coordinated a meeting with key officials at HUD, which resulted in identifuing additional federal partners to

engage and provide details on available federal resources. The City's Housing Authority applied for HUD

Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing {VASH) vouchers to distribute to qualified Oceanside-based veterans and

was awarded 40 vouchers for the first time. Due to the success of the housing authority's efforts to provide

vouchers to the veterans, they were subsequently awarded an additional 45 tenant-based vouchers the

following year.

City of Roseville - Homeless Asslsiance and Veterans Assistance. The City of Roseville has undertaken a

positive and forward-thinking effort to develop an understanding of regional homelessness to find meaningful

ways to address this important issue, especially as it relates to homeless veterans. TFG helped coordinate

meetings with top officials at HUD and the Veterans Administration (VA) to discuss Roseville's efforts and to

find ways to work with HUD and VA to assist those in need. The City and VA continue to make positive steps

forward, including facilitating easier meetings for veterans with caseworkers by providing meeting space at

City facilities.

Public Safety and Social Services

TFG staff are experts in Department of Justice (DOJ) and Department of Homeland Security (DHS) programs,

which provide funding for local governments. Our work is focused on assisting our clients in the preparation of

grant applications and developing working relationships with key DOJ and DHS officials.

Charles County, MD - Hiring funds for Sheiiffs Office. Shortly after being hired by the County in 2016, TFG

prepared for the Charles County Sheriff's Office a COPS Hiring grant application, The Sheriff's Office was

awarded $gZS,OOO to hire three Sheriff's deputies. This was the first successful grant application for the

Sheriff's Office after numerous attempts.

Loudoun County, VA- Personal Protective Equipment. ln 2016, the Loudoun County Fire, Rescue and

Emergency Management Department received a $2,000,000 award from the Assistance to Firefighter (AFG)

@ 4



Proposal to the County of lnyo, CA for Federal Legislative Services

Grant Program. The award allowed the Department to purchase Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA)

for firefighting personnel. TFG assisted the County throughout the entire grant process.

Clty of Fairfield, CA - Retention of Police Officers. When funding became available through the DOJ's COPS

Hiring Program to hire and retain police officers, the Fairfield Police Department had just suffered through a

two-year period that saw nearly 18 full-time positions eliminated. TFG worked with the Fairfield Police

Department to submit an application to this grant program and gathered political support for the funding

request. The Department was awarded 51.8 million in grant funding, which enabled it to retain five officer

positions that were slated to be cut in the upcoming local budget.

Transportation

TFG has been involved in federal transportation issues since our inception. ln fact, our first clients engaged us

to specifically address federal and local transportation issues they were facing. TFG has helped our clients

secure billions of dollars in federal authorizations, appropriations and grants, and has been involved in every

highway authorization bill enacted by Congress.

El Paso County, CO -TIGER Planning Grant. TFG helped El Paso County, Co, secure a S1.2 rnillion TIGER

planning grant. TFG professionals worked with the County from the project's inception to application

submission to craft a winning application with significant political support. To accommodate Fort Carson's

ongoing expansion, El Paso County is working with the U.S. Army to reopen a gate to provide alternate access

to the base's military training infrastructure. The roads leading to this gate are in substandard condition and

are unable to support expected traffic resulting from the reopened gate. The project will develop conceptual

design and preliminary engineering for rehabilitation of the two roads impacted by the reopening. TFG

continues to assist El Paso County on the implementation of the TIGER grant project and is working with the

County, regional partners, DOT, and the Congressional delegation to position the project for future TIGER

funding.

Butte County Association of Governmen$ CA - Translt and Maintenance Facility. TFG helped the Butte

County Association of Governments (BCAG) secure one ofthe largest grants ofthe fiscal year from the Federal

Transit Administration's State of Good Repair grant program. The $18 million was used to construct the Butte

Regional Transit Operations and Maintenance Facility, which ailowed BCAG to expand transit operations in the

County. TFG assisted BCAG throughout the entire grant application process including advance preparation for

the project, generation of political support, ilraft of the grant application, and final review. The project

represented the seventh-largest award in the nation and the highest award for a rural community,

Clty of Greenville, NC - New lnterstate Deslgnatlon. TFG worked with Greenville's Congressional Delegation,

the U.S. Department of Transportation, the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT), and the

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) to get a road leading into

Greenville designated as a future interstate highway. The City is the largest in the state of North Carolina that

does not have direct interstate highway access. We coordinated with all parties to secure a Memorandum of

Understanding between NCDOT, the Governor's Offlce and the Federal Highway Administration that the

project will meet interstate standards within 25 years. On a parallel track, Greenville's bipartisan

Congressional Delegation introduced a bill that designates the road a future interstate. TFG facilitated this

effort using our Congressional, federal agencyr AASHTO, and state and local relationships. Future lnterstate

587 was approved by then-Transportation Secretary Anthony Foxx on November 2L,2016.

5



Fr'li.:lrei i.r tilc a{l!t,tiy,ti:i:'i,,-;. i-A iil lr'ijlr',:i i-t{ii::iiliVit 5<ilr.,ir:!.t, G 6

Water Resources and lnfrastructure

TFG has extensive experience with water resources issues, particularly water infrastructure development,

planning and implementation, flood control, harbors, ports, environmental restoration, and shore protection.

ln addition to securing federal funding assistance, TFG's water resources practice provides strategic counsel in

the legislative and regulatory arenas.

San Luis Obispo Countn CA - Los Osos Wastewater Facility, The community of Los Osos is required to

improve wastewater facilities to prevent polluted waters from leaching from thousands of private septic

systems into Morro Bay National Estuary. The County was originally barred from competing for grant funding

under USDA's Rural Utilities Service (RUS) grants and loans because Los Osos exceeded the regulatory

population limit. TFG worked with the County to accurately define the area of benefit and worked with the

County's Congressional Delegation to secure legislation providing a population limitation waiver to Los Osos.

This action allowed the County to compete for USDA funding, resulting in the largest Recovery Act grant and

loan provided by RUS. ln addition to environmental and water supply benefits, the project provides

opportunity for economic development by way of planned and approved build-out of the area served by the

project.

Multiple Clients - Development of WlFlA. On behalf of our water clients, TFG was active in advocating for

legislative language in the Water.Resources Reform and Development Act (WRRDA) that created a new Water

lnfrastructure Finance and lnnovation Act (WlFlA!, TFG advocated for a program that allowed our clients to

participate in financing opportunities that are affordable and fit their needs. We also wanted to ensure that

the State Revolving Fund (SRF) programs were not diminished by a new WIFIA program. lnnovative financing

tools, like WlFlA, will create opportunities for public agencies to save money by providing access to federally-

backed, low-cost, long-term financing. The savings to a local government from WIFIA are significant. WIFIA can

reduce the annual debt service cost for financing public works water projects by an estimated 20 percent or

more compared to traditional municipal financing.

North 8ay Water Reus€ Program, CA - Water Reuse Fundlng. TFG worked with the North Bay Water Reuse

Program, a regional group composed of seven public utility agencies in Napa, Sonoma and Marin Counties, to

secure 53.8 million in federal competitive grant assistance through the Bureau of Reclamation's WateTSMART

program. The funds are being used as part of a program to recycle up to 3,757 acre-feet of water per year for

beneficial uses in agriculture, irrigation and habitat restoration. ln Napa, thefundingwill help complete a

pipeline project that will provide up to 1,000 acre-feet of water per year for irrigation uses and agriculture.

The Sonoma County portion of the funding will complete a 3.5-mile pipeline near the Sonoma-Napa County

border that will deliver recycled water to help restore 640 acres of former salt ponds. The Salt Marsh project is

one of the largest wetland restoration projects in the West,

City of Los Angeles Work

TFG, nor any of the individuals identified for the lnyo County advocacy team, have ever performed any direct

services on behalf of the City of Los Angeles or the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power. ln the

interest of full disclosure, TFG staff, outside of the lnyo County advocacy team, represent the Southern

California Public Power Authority {sCPPA), which is a joint powers agency, representing 11 publically owned

electric utilities and one irrigation district - one entity of which is the Los Angeles Department of Water and

Power. Our work for SCPPA is solely focused on power-related issues.



Proposal to the Counly of lnyo. CA for Federal Legislative Services 7

Key Personnel

lnyo County Advocacy Team

TFG's approach to staffing is to assemble a team of individuals who, by education, training and professional

experience, are best positioned to provide the greatest value to the client. One team member is selected as

the client manager and serves as the primary point of contact, oversees distributlon of work, and ensures

quality work product for the client. TFG's professional team works closely together and draws from the

expertise of other TFG professionals who are not specifically assigned to the client to provide incomparable

service to the client.

Understanding the County's current federal priorities and needs, TFG proposes the following Team for lnyo

County. Full resumes can be supplied upcin request. ln addition to your designated team, the County will have

access to all members of TFG's professional staff. Biographies of all members of the firm can be found on our

website at wg!$befgggggnggou p,co{n.

Krlstl More

Managing Partner for Strategic Development

Kristi will serve as the team leader and main point of

contact to the County.

Team Member Responsibilities

Roger Gwinn

Chief Executive Officer

Roger will assist the County on water and natural

resource issues wlth a specific emphasis on federal

funding for water infrastructure.

Jennifer lmo

Managing Partner for Client Services

Jennifer will assist the county on transportation issues

with a specific emphasis on the Federal Aviation

Administration and airport services.

David Hoover

Senior Advisor

David will assist the County on all issues related to

broadband, communications, and fiber infrastructure

and deployment.

Stephanle Missert

Senior Associate

Stephanie will assist the Client Manager on all of the

County's priorities with a particular specialty in rural and

natural resou rce issues.

Heidi Schott

Senior Associate

Heidi will be responsible for overseeing all grant

preparation, development, and submission for the

County. 5he will also support the County on economic

development initiatives.



Pri;.rc:rl lr-r iir* i,Lrurrl.y' r]t lily{}, i.A lor ledri..rl Lrg::l.,rLivi, !rrv:r*: @ 8

Kristi More
Managing Partner for Strategic Development

Kristi More joined TFG in 2000 and specializes in transportation, water, economic

and rural development, agricultural, and federal funding for local governments. She

is a former staff assistant for a California state representative; intern for the District

of Columbia Office of the Corporation Counsel, concentrating on legal and legislative

issues concerning the abuse and neglect of children and the elderly; and intern for the California Cattlemen's

Association, focusing on land, water, and air quality concerns surrounding the beef industry.

Kristi is based in TFG's Northern California office and primarily works on behalf of local governments and

public agencies in the Western United States. Since joining TFG, Kristi has concentrated on expanding the

firm's services to small, rural areas. Born and raised in a small, rural county in California (population 20,000)

that is abundant in natural resources and federal lands, Kristi understands the delicate balance rural counties

face when trying to address the needs of their citizens. Kristi has worked to develop working relationships

between Congress, federal agencies, and her rural clients. These relationships have benefited rural

communities through direct appropriations and authorizations, as well as contributed to the Congressional

offices gaining a better understanding of the unique problems and needs of rural America. Kristi also serves as

the Federal Director of the TFG-managed Agricultural Floodplain Management Alliance, an organization of

local governments, organizations, farmers, and businesses focused on preserving the agricultural industry in

the nation's floodplain.

Her representation of rural counties has resulted in almost 5120 million in federal funding, authorizations, and

loan authority for projects related to 911 Dispatch Centers, local library upgrades, sewer and storm drain

rehabilitation, economic development, drug-endangered children programs, local and regional transportation

infrastructure, drinking and waste water treatment, and regional interoperable communications.

Kristi received her B.A. in Political Science from the University of California at Davis. Kristi also serves on TFG's

Management Committee as the Managing Partner of Strategic Development.

Roger Gwinn
Chief Executive Officer

Roger Gwinn, TFG's CEo, oversees the management of the firm and overall

operations, including the delivery of client services and the development of new

offerings to address the evolving needs ofclients. Roger represents public agency and

private interests specializing in energy, water and environmental policy issues, water

resources, community development, and technology. A nationally-recognized wAter infrastructure expert,

Roger is known for creating and executing innovative and successful strategies to meet the challenging and

complex needs of clients.

Recognized by lnfluence Magazine as one of Washington's six "Top Gun" appropriations lobbyists, Roger

joined TFG in 1993, Roger spent 15 years on Capitol Hill, serving two members of Congress and as an associate

staff member on the House Committee on Appropriations.

Roger leads the firm's representation of large-scale, regional water resources, environmental protection and

economic development initiatives. Roger helped launch federal efforts to support restoration and protection

of the Puget Sound and, ultimately, the Pacific Coastal Salmon Recovery Fund, which has steered just under $1



@ 9Proposal to the County of lnyo, CA for Federal Legislative Services

blllion to this multi-state ecosystern restoration effort since FY 2000. He has worked with dozens ot

communities nationwide to help them secure hundreds of millions of dollars in federal funds for storm water,

wastewater and drinking water system improvements. For example, he helped one rural community secure

more than S80 million in federal assistance to help defray the local construction costs of a new regional

drinking water facility. ln addition, Roger has led the firm's representation of regional scale water reuse

projects, including one where seven public agencies in three counties are collaborating on a comprehensive

regional water reuse program to help address water quality concerns and the water supply needs of

agriculture, urban areas and the environment.

A long-time advocate of federal support for low-cost, long-term financing for water, wastewater and storm

water infrastructure projects, such as the financing that has been provided in the recently proposed Water

lnfrastructure Finance lnnovation Act {WlFlA), Roger leads TFG's efforts to improve existing policies and enact

new legislation to broaden access to federal grants and create new financing options to help deal with the

complex water challenges of today and tomorrow.

Roger was a member of the inaugural class of the Stennis Congressional Staff Fellows Program. He is among

the founders of eCivis, the nation's leader in online grants information and grants management for local

governments. Roger earned his B,A. in Political Science from North Carolina State University.

Jennifer lmo
Managing Partner for Client Services

Jennifer lmo, a partner at TFG and member of the firm's management committee,

represents municipal governments with a focus on community and economic

development, transportation, public works, criminal justice, and public safety. ln

addition, she serves as the Federal Director of the National Association of Towns and

Townships, a lcical government advocacy group that represents the interests of

nearly 10,000 towns and townships across the country. ln April 2OtL,TFG launched the General Aviation

Airport Coalition, a national coalition of general aviation airports, and Jennifer serves as the organization's

Executive Director.

Jennifer provides strategic consulting and federal advocacy services for her clients, helping them find

innovative ways to address local issues and fund local priority projects. As a result of her successful

strategizing and strong relationships with Congressional offices, Jennifer's clients have secured more than

$tOO million in federal appropriations, authorizations and competitive grants in the 12-plus years she has been

with TFG.

Additionally, Jennifer fosters productive relationships between her clients and various federal agencies. On

behalf of the National Association of Towns and Townships, she led an effort to secure bipartisan

Congressional and administrative support for an initiative that repealed a costly unfunded mandate on state

and local governrnents related to road sign replacement. ln addition, she facilitated a working relationship

between the Department of Labor's Employment and Training Adm'inistration and a local government to

develop a program for displaced workers who lost their jobs in furniture and textile plant closings. She also

negotiated an agreement between the Federal Transit Administration and a community that enabled county

leaders to spend Congressionally-appropriated funds immediately instead of having to wait for the lengthy

disbursement process, ensuring that an important project was not delayed.



l:i;1r_:::i la; liti: it-:r::r:..' l{ jrt!i:, 1y:1 i:,;. iilij:..r;! i li,:,, ..t.... -: i.'[.!.\ @ 10

Jennifer lobbies Congress on a variety of legislative issues of interest to local authorities. She works closely

with groups like the National Association of Counties and the National League of Cities to affect legislation that

touches many aspects of local government. She has spoken at numerous conferences and webinars on a

variety of local issues, focusing primarily on helping communities access federal support for local priorities and

initiatives.

She earned her B.A. in Political Science and Psychology from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill,

and her J.D. from Wake Forest University.

Savid Hoover
Senior Advisor

David Hoover is a Senior Advisor at The Ferguson Group, providing strategic counsel

on technology and telecommunications policy issues. Hoover is an accomplished

government relations and public policy executive with more than 20 years of

experience leading advocacy campaigns, conducting research, analyzing federal

policies, and building relationships with members of CongresS, federal agencies, industry and public interest

Sroups.

Prior to joining TFG, David served as vice president of legislative affairs at NTCA-The Rural Broadband

Association, where he planned and implemented federal legislative strategy on behalf of the association's

more than 800 independent, community-based telecommunications companies. Previously, David was

director of government affairs at CTIA-The Wireless Association, where he lobbied on a variety of issues

including spectrum, taxes, telehealth, and universal service. He also served as policy director for the trade

group.

Earlier in his career, David was director of research at NCTA - The lnternet & Television Association and also

covered the telecom and media industries as an analyst with The Precursor Group6, Legg Mason and the

Schwab Washington Research Group,

David earned a Master of Arts in Telecommunications from Michigan State University's College of

Communications Arts and Sciences and a Bachelor of Science in Journalism from Ohio University's E.W. Scripps

School of Journalism.

Stephanie Missert
Senior Associate and Manager of Policy and Regulatory Affairs

Stephanie Missert is a Senior Associate and Manager of Policy and Regulatory Affairs

at TFG. She serves as a federal legislative analyst and advocate for the firm,

specializing in federal funding, policy and regulations for public, private and

nortprofit clients.

Stephanie concentrates on the identification of federal, state and foundation water resources funding

opportunities, and is dedicated to ensuring local resources are used effectively to achieve local priorities. She

is also one of the firm's experts in national flood policy and legislation. Stephanie has worked with TFG's

Grants Team to apply for and secure federal grants through the US Department of Homeland Security, US

Department of Justice, US Department of Agriculture, US Department of Transportation, US Department of

F
\.



Proposal to the County of lnyo, CA fpr Federal Legislative Services

the lnterior, and US Environmental Protection Agency. Stephanie worked with TFG's Grants Practice to

develop the TFG Grant Funding Guide, a report TFG provides to clients which evaluates potential funding

opportunities for identified projects. Finally, Stephanie serves as the intern coordinator for the firm.

Prior to joining TFG, Stephanie worked for United States Senator Kirsten Gillibrand in the western New York

regional office. Stephanie graduated magna cum laude from Niagara Universitywith her B.A. in History and

Minor in Economics, focusing on late 20th century American domestic and foreign policy. She is a member of

Phi Alpha Theta, the National History Honor Society.

HeidiSchott
Senior Associate and Manager of Grant Services

Heidi Schott is an integral part of the TFG's Grants Team. She specializes in grants

services for public agencies and nonprofit organizations on a wide variety of funding

and program operations.She undertakes complex policy and research analysis on

housing, public safety, economic and workforce development, education, transportation, environment and

water resources issues. She has been successful leading, developing, advising on and writing competitive grant

proposals since joining the firm. She also has experience administering HUD entitlement programs, having

drafted Consolidated Plans, Annual Action Plans, Environmental Record Reviews, and Analysis of lmpediments

to Fair Housing reports for clients.

Heidi's grant experience is significant, having successfully secured funding from DOT, DOJ, HUD, DHS, USDA,

and EPA. ln 2015, she assisted clients to secure approximately S11 million in grants and loans. Some of her

2016 accomplishments include a $2 million FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant for Loudoun County, VA; a

5999,600 DOJ Body-Worn Camera grant for Los Angeles County, cA; a 5222,663 USDA Farmers Market

Promotion Program grant for College Park, GA and a 5250,000 USDA Rural Community Development lnitiatives

grant for Southeast Rural Community Assistance Project. Her success in 2015 includes a $g,Z miltion in HUD

Lead Hazard Reduction Demonstration Grant for the City of Harrisburg, PA, as well as a $375,000 DOJ CoPs

Hiring Program Grant for the City of Woodland, CA. Also in 2015, Heidi wrote and secured a $25,000 USDA

Local Food Promotion Program Grant and 5438,001 in DOJ Grants to Encourage Arrest Policies and

Enforcement of Protection Orders for Cumberland County, ME, and a $238,435 in FEMA Assistance to

Firefighters grant for the Town of Buxton, ME, ln 2014, Heidi won over $14 million in USDA funding for our

client, the North Carolina Electric Membership Corporation, and a 5250,000 grant for the Midway City

Sanitation District for Air Quality lmprovement. Additionally, in 20!4, Heidi wrote and won a $1.2 million

TIGER planning grant for El Paso County, CO; a 5572,524 Department of Justice (DOJ) Second Chance Act

Grant, and a $97,000 USDA Local Food Promotion Grant for Cumberland County, ME.

Heidi received her B.A. in European History from the University of Victoria and her Masters in Public

Administration, with a concentration in Public Management and Economic Analysis, from George Washington

University.

G 11



Ptcrpor;:l 1l lltrt ( otrttly oi ilty(), { A ior iedrtral lelSislativr:5e rvices G 72

Work Plan

TFG's Approach

TFG has reviewed the Scope of Work included in the RFP and will perform all tasks identified if selected to

represent the County. To provide further detail, the following diagram provides a general overview of TFG's

approach to developing a client's federal advocacy strategy, which is centered on three activity areas; Agenda

Development, Advocacy and Communications. A summary of the tasks identified in the diagram follows.

Federal Agenda Development

Conduct Strateglc Assessment of Opportunlties. TFG will meet with County officials to learn about your

priorities and help you define the County's desired federal goals and objectives. This will allow us to develop

an in-depth understanding about priority projects, and to meet with local leadership, staff and partners, as

determined by the County. We explore all aspects of the County's priorities to ensure that you are positioned

to take advantage of all opportunities. and that you are aware of any potential threats to your interests.

Develop Federal Agenda and Strategy. TFG will develop a Federal Agenda that outlines the County's federal

priorities, as well as the strategy to advance those priorities. Once approved by the County, the Federal

Agenda serves as TFG's work plan, but remains flexible enough to be revised and improved upon, as needed.

Making timely adjustments keeps the Federal Agenda current and enables the County to take advantage of

new opportunities and to better manage any new challenges that arise. The FederalAgenda is reviewed and

revised annually, if necessary, in preparation for the next session of Congress.

FederalAgenda
Development

. Strategic Assessnrent
. Develop l-ederal Agenda

. Prepare Briefing Materials

Communications
.TFG is an extension of your staff

.Regular Reporting
.Constant communicatiorr with

you and with Washington

Advocacy
.Meetings in Washington, DC

.lnfluence Line item Funding, Policy,
and Federal Grants
.Track Legislation



Proposal lo the CounLy oi lnyo, C/r for Federal legislative Services

Advocacy

Preparlng for Meetlngs in Washlngton, DC. TFG will work with the County to prepare the materials needed to

advance your Federal Agenda, and successfully advocate the County's priorities. Developing persuasive, easy-

to-understand messages that promote a well-articulated Federal Agenda are critical to achieving results.

Effectlve Bipartisan Advocacy, TFG strongly believes in a bipartisan approach to federal advocacy - most

community needs and issues are not partisan. This approach has enabled our firm and our clients to smoothly

transition into working with whichever party holds the majority. lt also enables us to work cooperatively

within a state's Congressional delegation, which is often bipartisan - like the California delegation.

Legislative and Regulatory Services. TFG will shepherd the County's legislative priorities through the entire

legislative process, including bill introduction, when applicable, committee hearings, markups, and votes, We

will ensure that you push your legislative priorities at the critical time. ln Washington, DC, timing often marks

the difference between achievable results and a missed opportunity. This process is particularly important

when trying to include local priorities in the federal budget or to avoid cuts to critical federal programs. TFG

consistently monitors legislative and regulatory action that can be either beneficial or harmful to our clients'

priorities. We help our clients engage directly in the legislative and regulatory processes to ensure their

support and/or concerns are known.

Enhance Relationships. Our team has working relationships with lnyo County's Congressional Delegation. We

also have productive working relationships with key Congressional committee chairmen and staff;

Administration officials within the Executive Office of the President; and key appointed officials and civil

servants within the federal agencies. Additionally, we have existing relationships with stakeholder groups,

trade associations and issue-oriented coalitions including, the National Association of Counties (NACO), U,S.

Conference of Mayors, National League of Cities, and the American Public Transportation Association. Through

these contacts, we remain actively involved in the development of legislation and regulations, as well as the
preparation and adoption of the federal budget, annual appropriations bills, and competitive grant

applications. By leveraging our contacts, we will enhance the County's existing relationships. ln addition, by

maintaining regular contact with the County's Congressional Delegation, we will keep them abreast of your

priorities and when new issues arise during the legislative year. Just as we assist the County in promoting your

priorities, TFG assists federal officials and their staff in identifying and undertaking activities to achieve the

County's goals and objectives, being sure to reserve credit for the elected officials where it is due.

ln addition, through our representation of the National Association of Towns and Townships, TFG has

developed close working relationships with coalitions and organizations focused on rural communities. Those

groups include the Campaign for a Renewed Rural Development, run out of NACo, and the REBUILD RURAL

coalition, run out of the Farm Credit Council. TFG will utilize the connections we maintain with these groups to

enhance our representation of the county on its rural issues. We will also work to help build relationships

between these groups and the County.

Schedule Washington, DC Meetlngs, TFG practices a cooperative team approach in which the County is an

integral part of the education and advocacy process in Washington, DC. We are committed to helping you

become your own best advocate and will work closely with you to identify the best timing, audience and

message when you are in Washington, DC. TFG encourages our clients to make at least one trlp to

Washington, DC to meet with their Congressional delegations and relevant federal agencies, and sometimes

an additional trip is warranted depending on the progiess of an issue.and/or project.

@ 13



Proposal to the Coun{y cf lnyo, CA for Fedcral Legislative Services

TFG's team will prepare meeting materials, provide recommended talking points, brief you in advance, discuss

political strategies, and answer all your questions to help you optimize your effectiveness during advocacy

meetings and otherwise. Knowing how to deliver the right nressage to the right people is essential to

successfril advocacy and a cornerstone of TFG's clients' success.

TFG will nrake all arrangements for the mosl effective use of your time, resources and effort. We will

coordinate meetings with Menrbers of the lnyo County Congressional Delegation, other targeted Members,

Congressional and committee leadership, and key federal agencies where it is important to laise the County's

profile and to advocate effectively for the goals and objectives in the Federal Agenda. We personally guide you

through these visits in Washington, DC, assist with related logistics, and provide all the necessary follow-up.

As noted previously, our Califsrnia presence also allows us to schedule and attend meetings with key federal

agency officials and staif as well as Congressional offices in local and regional offices in California and the

West. Tlris allows our clients to utilize all avenues and all contacts to reach their goals locally, regionally, and

nationally.

Communications

Regular and efficient communication is essentiai to successful working relationships with our clients. We

provide regular status reports, including monthly and year-end reports, to the County to review the status of

each priority project and issue on the County's federal agenda. Based on your needs and availability, we can

also convene regularly scheduled conference calls. Personalized reports to our clients include grant sumnraries

and profiles that provide tips on how to be successful; topic-specific furrding guides that review available grarrt

and loan opportunities; legislative trackers that review pending bills related to a certain topic; and policy issue

briefs that pt'ovide historical background and new developments on regulatory and administrative issues.

ln addition to more personalized updates from your advocacy team, the Couniy will benefit from the following

communications: every Monday, TFG releases a Weekly Legislative Update and a Water and Natural Resources

Update that provide a brief synopsis of relevant action thai occurred the week before, as well as an outlook of

what to expect from Congress and/or the Administration in the coming week. These outlooks include

information on Congressional committee meetings and hearings. On Fridays, TFG provides a list of grant

solicitations that were published that week, and we distribute quarterly grants reports that announce

upcoming grant opportunities. TFG also develops comprehensive reports on major events coming out of

Washington. For example, over the last several months, TFG prepared speciai reports for our clients on

pending legislative matters after the Thanksgiving break, the release of the Presjdent's FY 2019 budget

request, the announcement of the White House infrastructure plan, and the recent passage of the FY 2018

omnibus appropriatiorrs bills. We tailor these reports lo focus on specific issues and areas of importance to

local governments.

TFG periodically hclds webinars on a variety of legislative issues that are important ts our municipal clients,

such as: transportation, sustainability, public safety, and housing. We also hold webinars on specific federal

funding opportunities to help clients understand and navigate the parameters of major federal grant

programs. These webinars feature TFG subject-matter experts, but also regularly include federal officials and

other key experts, who provide insight into federal programs and strategies for increasing the conrpetitiveness

of client applications. Webinars are provided at no cost to TFG clients and all webinars are recorded and made

available to clients after they are conducted, so that clients may circulate the presentations to colleagues.

rH 14



Proposal to lhe County of lnyo, CA for Federal Legislalive Services

Examples of Client Communications

The following snapshots are provided as examples of our weekly client communications. Additional samples

of specific client work can be provided upon request.

Weekly Lcsislative Undate

Tll. flqrar{Srirn ilrl.alnllLrflt. Tll.Ho6rrrloofiri(l.. rurpr.sln
AGt (H.R.

!m). rl{!h ?o,d r.d|a. !t.irlc, rupfill thl! !t pflhe msr ftdr.l lru JllqlcJrl3t|
.lllErr rd rcqrEr rlti{Lt srfr. treFodtin rrrlr- Ffi llr. ilrn-dr ol tr
r.*, ilr llE til rCr 6!'.Iralit Sln'3 Tl|l Eordllt lo Hrb lllyl|lril Acl Cl.R.
{S}, dJclt.xqar il.8tnltalh|tnih . dul n |bl qr*tltravblor }t 0FF.arl
R.f$n ||un fi oo.Ef,r* Mt talrt rstrg qrifttdt: lln TfiLtt Ulr.ntrr, F rtl
ll!.{*. Jfldrilcfir, r.duldrr a-uRUl loTry Aslol zolt(H.R. rA1l'}, d*hiqld
inr{or.rca'r loarlrllltthdilltr hFlliitlr YtAr trlntCcr.l|l fi Efilio.li ra
OE Firscad Sfififf OnrSl Gotrd frnplJrltl.'tl lll o'f 2017 01.R. ,l6t). rd*t I1rdr
llr Dodd.frrl^cl ao{Nir tGFatIcil$Jify OraifiCanol{FsOC},rrhil*4.'nhhe
rrtdlr lo rltFd . U3. a r 6cln rtr* i|rrid s
Rafi va. !o €arrllar in.tFsgdrll..lt d

loU

15

fu srl.0ora ld.6 i.midir.fl(.lir llcthrn
l,d gon ar FruG&l{ Irr Sre $it-o ufi an tll.^L
Sot Tnilftlig tcl d l0l7 G'R. ttuD. r,l*{l p.Eort
p.Er'fig .lf, loil loln *rrrttopucdr sinir
Oyrtrimrfr tf gufrrBr rd ref.mo of viclinr d
td.fll. r.ffin (8.J. Ra ta) thsft trr lrlqrd
loafla - Yrril lltll ll'ra .lt !flr rr{r.b.t !t Co0
WrfuGLl.

Hq'l axt Sorlr nTodrfdr il l[ ttllre lo omdtlr
td

rtog!+ rlfilllg n n'' Snqh Filry, t3. livh{

lernnf,l il 6lr !4. Hfrrar h.irr n.t dE lh. tlrl
l,lcl.llt r{ir. rilr a uotc !t tnlrl|llrt, irAr Srrll. r{lr

ql ilflrdry. Fr.lilrlt Tirnp ia trtl,J io flfr tlllp.l
fa(lrnhd llrrcll'Ecmlfr.tt 9fie.. ql T6(llf
Prir.. rr<a&nmr.lL s*trr,r rl Urltt Hclrr-

Cabinet Sscrelarie$ T€ctl& to S{oare C.ommittoe to Sell
In*astrncinre Plan

on tteli r4. fi,r Tnrnp Atnrlatrrtict r..{$rb ll fid t*ra sr gJlda cfimG+,
Scion lld Trup.tltin Gofifill* lo ddn l rlal ra firt-riil Tiltf3 sEMn fii,
wliclt trg llatrad ar a$t Faha.t- Ttr trrie, sll.li -ild to ctr-l. in vrtsr,l
hll.elnElur io&y illmnr Frpad bt tll. l&r3arlt fr.r. f.llfid Taat0,l$or S.!fllry
Ehi. Cir, Gqnmrr. g.c..lly l,Ilrlr R{ar. lr!a. scilry S.rl(lj Acdr1 Aglqtl'r
s.cilllll son.Ir F.Rlrr, I'ld E sly SgrlT mr rarl. 'trlt. tiesl ltlr ifrcrrsr..l rl $.
ll.JiE n.r hil to try Lr lh. Fo?ilI. ill.t l'll nlt t+rrr lur f.l lo !fradtr ffiilfiflt
fi. Itlq ttr h.fal, Cilurlt- Oiatnll Jo|ln tlrn (i-SO) l!5 r?!tI, "lln n rofln
ottl.'offfliE thrt$E
rllly.oasrt p*t{.
ol rt|lrffLr,..Ard 16

rodt.fltl.ry rfli t Frl trg.orJ. J.crl 9rcll|+ lor rogll rll. xl
tll.Flriht'r t*iE alosl, ilailta tooana Fr.l a rificfrlrqr!

Farrn Bill Teilrg $tell€d in the Bonse

llta frrn !a t ry fo. mrthltrilotr h 20t1, It cdlr[rdr d !10l n rll gfldr tfll
dl trxl, irtri loii B.nfillE ,ll|lf,l{ to rnrh? t0arblhn h flrdt aAF1 llfir.{l., lrrl
yr* rs6l'f|ifll ral hlo r rllr0 a tlr Hcrlr dlr O'locrir ltpsl.l p6t.L cuu lo tit
trod rtlnpl pro|r5l, lbo tmrm lr 3t{ P. RFrrtlrir. C.fr ktJlott @lll$, {rHulr
$rfcll|lt Go.nfiilt'' lot D.moc'rt, rid llrrtdry dul t sdd lraarl ltb c.-{u.r' ,aqsrr
rhd h. rllf 

'edati0oc 
l'lfl Ct&ilIt $ldrdCilrrf {n-Dq gi|.| rrntrr un t ft ofill.

p.!!.|.d ful't !al. Jofl9 wi[r s6l r|tnrlr lld lilp.el rltllrtrJllt. fll. Glt-nr! otfufy
lFg.d lo rd.et ana fIln ta tlll h p.rglrlin for nrLT lt ff.ft o{ lladl 12 tr ilfrll te

Ilnclullnl! cllinoe.lh. Lgblrllfli our d Esnrnf lI rticn ial frt r tlf'ldcfltr, !d llul
uir rl|to.l Lsn lll. Oiocrdic CBll fir tra Hflrar i0... It

oEr iltr ny .ffi.'rrrtfu.r iltll wur llol !lf?o.EF of lll. blbbb.l, Glr-rnt Cmr*:y
worrd md rcrr Orrloarata volG lo rvoir ddr.l fi llta llqta lhcr. Rd uqe...

Eouse Passes Secnre Ou: $ehools }rogram Reauthorization

Or ltrsi l{. $. Hqrr. pdr.d lhr S{uLnl. Tr*lE, rtd Offclr Pru,lrrre {sfofl Sclsa
Itoltlc. Acr oa 2010 0!E lS99 !t I volr ol ig4- ttr ra ic/d ,lrdisb OOJ'i s.srr
orrscll.t l.o|lm rl lTll oron nrly fs FYr 201T2@t. llrlb r5o rr.Ehn.f $.
STOPScll6ltrirhc.A3l nin gfllr tt tHo lat&il{lrtfiL.hrlrr.dtlln rrn}
tllr S.ltdrgTOFlll irqrd f,rfllolb mctgrrll ftrrirl, l4rtrrlff. ELE!!g-

$enate Passec Md-Frank treform BiIl
Or Hl.cn l/t, tt Ssuta ellrad |tra Eccl.nic OEf,ft. Rrgddrt n{, ard Gdltun.r
Prot.ctl$
fl$llrliE

lll. I H& nl bm* ffiI Ood.l+fl* Acl

('r :11..11,,.,',tOlt.i I ( tttt l,,r,l.

\,\'er:k in ll:r'ieu"

A.t bt r $ot. df

il"*st{!3



Pt ol:c:.:l it; ll11' 1-1,",,1U r;l iit"lr;, {A f r.,:r lr,'rjr'r;il legttlalive 1t-rvirts G 16

GrentrbyAgcnct
a.::ir c.1.- :l! i: l : !i:r
i,.{i,i4':'*:ti ::i ...,ril _i

tte tFG 6rer,!s Updel€

W,Egl*s *fe&Rt and
land.ttxt grenls at Dler€sl

lD I txC Awefinprt tlr.t

agn€nllv6*. Fs&ilinal
Nutr4*n',''riturf gdlils

',ou 
ree t ttn srB4 phese

cordact,qrr rhal ,llrnager
OT

,hnt(pbaatg. P G

Diictdt of E rvioilr*''l.
GcaDdnbs l6rurr

Setr&gs, ss..a*j$il
a d ea4 $r-8500

Tl* FrryurcrGnoqp
llot P#lsytuiliaAvr. NW

Sdre 7(F
\4rrelriEiofl . DC AXXXI

2Ut-33r4500

Nern' Grant Opportmfiies
Announced

I)ep artnrenl ef [ntr*ri or

FY nla WrffiAnf 8E * Ptolfit, W.*
.rrd Et qy EfFdflay 8lllrE -th F4ocr ol
thir fllorrrn b lo r$po.t ,.oF:l! ll|rt |'.rdl h
guanlitarbb end suslri|rd wrl.r srrri[s. Br{Ecls
rrr?podd lhmu$r tht pogam wl ccrcrw rnd
si. y.rl.. mofl dtici$tly, iE rltr th. flodscfilt
of ny.l{ofovilr. mili|lta ccrfict rLt ll lllrs at r
thn ftl of frtolr vrllr €.{rllel, Gt$h f]tD.'r to
mrtr rd<lilimrl qr.lrnn inF!{lr'r3llr ir {!.
folqr, rnd rccofiplsi stll.' bJlllitr UlfI
cool.itlrl.lo wrlrr ropfy drllfy h tllr rr€atqr
U.clcd gt lrs. E$iHa rgfiutr hchd. rid.s,
loda.n ldts, iri0.'lin &|.i.:tr, wd(drlriclr, s
otlr.r dfll'{ail'ln vrili wrt.r o. porrl' d.Iury
rl,lto.iiy. Erb--ly L rnli.l to r00tcilr loc$td
n lh! n.lt$!r Unfrd Stncr ori*rit*ir.
rprcifi:{y fthu, C{iqnir, C*r.to, ldtro.
lblc.r, t{oftlflr. fil$rEl(., l.lordr, trks
}llfco, No.lh O.tolr, O*lrhornt, Ollgo.l, Sosln
D.Idi, T.cE, Ul$, Wlrli{to.r, li/lonq,
ftntiiclll gtmo., O{tm, tln No.tlll.r itrirlu
lsbDds, rn.1tn Vryfi lslil{E Afptcllirr muit
!e rsunitt.d by Hry 10, 2018. q!Q!.r!.r: Ior.nor.
hfgmrtkr.

lffttr Elndercy ftolesE - Tt! Fryfi. d 0l.3
plE|rarl ir to toFf.d rm.l-rcrh o.r-li.{ilnnd
rerlurfficislcy pisllclr lill rld( t! lnd3mnt
$0.,k itrotiFGl ttuuugfi p.urinr drr.iE rfisl3

sqr'rfl. l,d ljt. rrrll' mofl dfictnlf , mniFl.
corficl &t h l'rlr lt r l{ir riil of tuton yrllr.
coofict, 3d $c.{rplrn olll.r t flrflr tlrst
contrilulr to errtff ruggly illuiny h thl vrarlslr
UoilGl sllt.. EtitrL |p0rclnlr ilcllxL rrrtl'.
tfili.n irit€, ifllrlln dirtdclr, yrd.r.tirl.ietr, o.
dr^, ^at--aLF r..al r....^r / 

'nos 
4&.^-r

FY ?J11 Wllrfll/ARl Grutr Frognn : Wtw
l&lltrd,eg $rmgl Grrnr - Ttr ptrpocc ol lhis
t.ogrllt b ro Fo*ttucly ddoElr r,rlif i$c{l
rtI$-U rd iEnE. w.ls m]lrgirnr'rl
no(.ltf by rlfpdiE th. drrrhp.nerl of urrler
r'latclilg slrll.|tes ltrt vrl l!l*,lrh or cxpend
it[L. mrtdt fi r,llar mrlcliE elivilit
latsrli rJ-rg ertirilrilr. Wrls mrtrlr
!d$ur vr-E buyr.r atd rdl.t crn tr urd to
trlwrt rerJr mrrl drnyldr dfh-olly il trfll|
o{rlrflttgl., th3$y illrB lo rilv3il rrtr(
cdlfisle E{!th rpt*!I||5 irclde rtrrl6. lrtdirn
trt r. .lt|.ti.n drllitr, yr.lcr (lirlftG, F qlh.r
oag[lErfinl ntlt natr€a povrradllslr),
&llro.ity Etfrlty h lnilGd lo lpflclotr locit.d
h ltr rel'llrr Unald $dr! o.lcfilo.icr,
rpccilErfy Aiimr, Cllffl.l, Cob.rdo, ldrto,
Itnrg. }lootru, Nd.lrke, Nanrdr, Ncll
Usilo, llqtt D*orr, Olbllomr, Oi$o.l, So|rtn
D*olr, Trxes, ULh, Wlr[il{to.r, lVyomng,
Anr:,i:flt Sa'ror, Grryn, lhr Nodlsr Medrne
lihflb, ad thavqF lrbrxlt. A9plc$ir.lr mutt
!c flS.nittad by Jr*y 17, 20t8. glglE lor fio{l
hf{nnrtixr

Ilep arfi nrnt cf J tl-s ti ee

FY Afi Sgtoldlzld $svicer .ad ll€rmring
h, Clrttd .rrd Youh Vicdmr of 8u
IrefioHag - ftr prp*r! ol lltis Frogrem is lo
tuffEl,l .l(slt !o erovi'l mrolo.ill! rrluic.t for
clflilfln lnd yollh $ho $a yhtimr of qomm.rcrl
rGxq.t ud.itatln rfll do0r6ric aor trrftioliE
(CSEDSTI. Prqrc!3 vril FGl.fll ftxlln
ractinizdaofl ot clddrxl rh.oogfi mllllofiq, rupport
rlflicar, ff{ cofr|filllity rrrrlafiafr tclarilhr.
P,ni..!F mllil p.!ni!. di'lcl rrflhr to yogl! ep lo
tix rg. ol tr. Elitblr rpf*crnir ilctid. strl.,
lofll rill T.ibrl gavunrnl.tlr, aa!*lrmt:
irltalutiff . oo.l{nofil oilroizlliror r.d for+ofit
o.lrrhtzli'lr. Apf{crllrru mull b. rubnitllrt b}
Mry 15, 20t8. cftt lere hr mo.r hfodnrlixr.

FV 20rA Lo',/ lrl9 E lbrcJlt.'li Cdm. Gl,n
ladligae Cu'il/. lnrrgPdon laidrdva. Tltr
prr.por. .t thi! pr{eflm b lo srcou,rla locrl
iurLdhlbrtl io vrart ?ilh liir E{rrl.u ol Alcofiol,
Toblcco, Fallrllnr rd Explosavcr (A'lF] Cutncl!
lo utl# ilefgenc€, t€chnololl, rlld commulrily
sElgim.lll to telihry itcfltiit fi..atnr u33d
url&rtury rnd ltnar rourc€, rfit tfllcli\rrly
!.p9r6olr p*rpat.rlors rn{trgcd in vbLfll



:-)ic1:,:,r;i irr i j:r:' i::iri:iy li i:r'.;<;. i-ii fcr' f ll:tr:i I tgiii;::iv:: ta.':viat,,-r @ 17

E
".:'Ij:sSllteo

:

:::'::.:;: r: ! il: -;;':

Hljhlights of the
FY ZOl8 Omnlbuc
Approprlatlonr
Pcckrga

.effi.dOh.tElmt

Table of Contents
hr'&l* 1

Htu *r|tur. br h*Fnt H dht tudasx,d r.H {nk -.. t

$ fr
:{ lctt

h*it Lriu.,Fs.i. *r.r. Frt.d.a at.4t

r?e $nah!.i-rd dturk (Ni
Irbs@hr s&iccFr htni!
OtGitbm
ffirhEF|*

: tu rMs i. tt4 raF{irdie r lxr[l
&d@hMfur

*a-ftFfrrr.l&ld-.

xltce.bl.nq ot nlfl t{*ol[b{!tr*r.'ttul.eotl
Sldt ter ad t t
otFri..svd.Br
@iaqFltrd
atdF-tffi6r
D6cx-t.e s'tut hr\ tr.lirr

fu Cktt * wEOdFrR.{ tdtlrJ Qrui

D?.b.**k !t{dl
u t &?t acf !r liain {ae4@dr!&&

oidd.Fst
GdhbshM.alaql
.hr. t..tvatinirij
tsd@(#;drc!- ii!. iri{:j
tr1 r J,ilrr;{ 4r!i. fri,i-i! l,r: i. \'1t'.'r"i.
l -,tr. Ljq.:!.t- s9t'i:. iil{

ffit:Owdadffik.4. .- -.-

hd hr!..g &.{Fd Atsq ltdrl

tDF6-{hgitedodn
ri-itdd c@n4.r! &ffi rler'it

t
t

s

@

l:: t:.*ri*:ti*::
0r u6 rt,l0rl, @{r.snlMch r,rrr?rl.3ldsr lrl ha6E l*lDllou
.diE.ppnFder t'r, ril arutuH+rFfdnhr l.a ilr, tr.6r'e aird h

'ler F{.nd.il F tu ni.ba.? .t F uu (h5n $prh F p. aoral &?i*fy
tbtF.iBle..d!ifffi c6a dild ftitbtm

d!finr6$i{a.Ms{ar}Mlliihtrwmtrd.riErrrr&.t-lrtdrt h
xer ruitq f ur@6!drr oru16 DidFt!tu.h.bu c r..is !y. y* dlX-
rat Bti.!aprEet[ktu.nrtnmin!isrdsro:!!trda,5t.t2 tol6l
la6,r rldt$adil!F iE da o, d41r i an, d! 84r, h mruloo v
ckFr &n$ loBlb* ctde.nr+ a{b! EG grLd FdF* snir,
E ddffif a6-ca E 4r q. d!, r**l (slaur tu i[ r narr oddu hrl E rc rt.
e.r iJr r drrh6i. t h xe urak scr.6nrr E.rn iltr trAn r.t. ponr F

&flil h..*_E6rd tstknadf rd.. il€'rloP{a.'ul, rd[a.^
eCdd.l tlo Utu frr ..rm. .d tlt dlm lft ld4d rP.di^! n hflF in ffitt
rpelit L h wldyi&&lQ i6D. i 5:' s. !.gal,r ! *t rf ! *r' v -t ral Lrc! t' $l
ilargr h 6r.* I|odt rn {lK{ hE tclnd b fint ha o.*ca .Piatu-. h
@c!ftt.xdirMn htr ituumdtt4!ilbnin4''at.6nrd
m oaoir ddr Df h.t.5 i^ h.lrit, pfl !66{ rd h. .6R.mr tslsr.il! at t?s rh
pE*cet1 t d&nro Ft!.nff tEt!ilftd?.n ktodn6tr. F i6r *ts
@.i.hdc&bit.lrnsh1'6r.rHr.' k!rn?6iffitu4 hElfdA.ts
itu. c ??..'i.dcf tl! drto b'. vd.n d h@. F.!raD- k'Jsita P.!sro
brL H i6feiryr|.d.q r.br. qw fr.nt!tifrIrNtu.

i!n6d.!ot{6 d?ir q6. orii!{.h pad*. hBb i.Fqalb rr!.rFn!rc i. ?sr
riaafr dddFeAr, h &srrd tuu 

^t:.of'rt'rnrcdnir4.

ta
at
t!

ll
TI

,tl

la
1t
tt
1t



Proposal lo lhe Colnty ol lnyo, CA fcr Fedeul Legislative Services

Grant Services

As part of the Federal Agenda and strategy, there likely will be a significant grants component. TFG's Grants

Office will support the team representing lnyo County to ensure all relevant cornpetitive grant opportunities

are explored. As previously mentioned, the County will receive a weekly list of newly published federal

competitive grant solicitations and a quarterly outlook to give you enough time to prepare for upcoming grant

opportunities. TFG's team provides the following key competitive grant services:

Opportunities Analysls. TFG provides a comprehensive approach to developing project priorities and

identifies the best funding opportunities for those projects. We provide a full report of funding options and a

recommended action plan that will improve award rates.

Project Evaluation. The project evaluation focuses on identifying funding opportunities for your specific

projects. TFG will prgvide a list of funding opportunities along with recommendations about the best approach

based on the project.

Strategic Advice. Once an opportunity is identified and you decide to move forward, we guide you in

positioning the application for success. Central to our success is knowledge of the underlying program

authorizing legislation and priorities of the grant-making agency.

lnslde Track. We help put you face-to-face with program officers and decision makers within funding agencies.

TFG gives our clients a competitive advantage: we pitch your projects while developing relationships with key

agency officials and staff while gaining valuable insight on agency priorities related to specific grant

opportunities.

Approach and Likelihood of Success

TFG thoroughly reviewed the issues and priorities outlined in the RFP, as well as the history of lnyo County.

Please note that TFG has experience working on projects similar to every one of the projects identified on the

list of Current Funding Needs in Section lll of the RFP. As requested, we are outlining our recommended

approach for two of these projects, including the Final Mile Fiber Optics project and the Water Systems

project.

Managing expectations is a very important part of our client representation. We approach every project/issue

wilh the expectation that it will succeed, but do not like to predict the likelihood of success. There certainly

have been occasions where our clients have not succeeded in attaining a project or issue goal. We don't stop

there, but find out what we could have done to be successful and make the necessary adjustments to

ultimately achieve the best result for our clients.

Final Mile Fiber Optics

Working in conjunction with the County and interested stakeholders, TFG will plan to review, apply and

advocate for both grant, loan, and loan-guarantee opportunities at both the federal and state level that fund

"final mile" broadband planning, deployment, and adoption in the County. TFG staff has a lengthy history of

demonstrated expertise and success in applying for these funds, as well as established relationships with the

administrators and staff of these programs, especially within the U.S. Department of Agriculture {USDA}, the

U.S. Department of Commerce, and the Federal Communications Commission. TFG staff will work with

@ 18



Proposal io the CountT ol lnya, CA for Federal legirlaliv* lr:rvice:

representatives from municipal government, tribal authorities, and broadband providers in the County to

create a cohesive strategy that ultimately identifies the funding options that are best-suited for these local

entities, create the most beneflt for the region, and have the greatest likelihood of success.

Possible Sources of Funding. TFG specifically recommends these four federal programs for funding broadband

deployment in the County. Two lending programs within the USDA Rural Utilities Service (RUS) - the

Telecommunications lnfrastructure Loans and Guaranteed Loans and Broadband Loans and Guaranteed Loans

- support the construction, maintenance, improvement, and expansion of telephone service and broadband in

rural areas or towns with a population of 5,000 or fewer. Eligible applicants include most entities that provide

telecommunications in these qualified rural areas. Funding is available in the form of cost-of-money loans,

guaranteed loans, and hardship loans. Of worthy note, RUS has the discretionary authority to apply provisions

of the Substantially Underserved Trust Area {SUTA) statute to both programs, Those provisions include:

offering interest rates as low as2/o, waiving non-duplication requirements, waiving matching or credit support

requirements, extending repayment terms, and giving eligible applications the highest funding priority. SUTA

was implemented to assist tribal governments with their infrastructure needs. However, non-tribal applicants

can also request SUTA consideration.

Community Connect Grants provide financial assistance to eligible applicants in the provisioning of broadband

service to all premises in currently unserved, lower-income, and extremely rural areas. Grant funds may be

used to finance the construction, acquisition, or leasing of facilities, including spectrum, land or buildings to

deploy service to all participating critical community facilities and all required facilities needed to offer such

service to all residential and business customers located within the proposed funded service area. The

application window for 2018 has closed, but opportunities to apply occur annually, usually during the second

quarter, and we can work with the County to be prepared for the next solicitation. An estimated 15 awards

ranging from $100,000 to $3 million will be granted in FY 2018.

The considerable interest in rural broadband access issues by policymakers in Washington, DC, has led to the

creation of a new grant opportunity within the 2018 Farm Bill that includes sizable funding for network

deployment. With the 2014 farm bill expiring on September 30,2A18, Congress is considering reauthorization

of the RUS broadband loan program and other broadband-related provisions in the 2018 farm bill, as well as

appropriating funding for these programs. ln addition, the House and Senate have included funding ranging

between 5425 million and 5550 million for a new rural broadband pilot grant program. This is in addition to

the 5600 million already allocated for that purpose by Congress in the 2018 Omnibus spending bill,

The RUS is currently drafting the eligibility criteria for these funds. The Omnibus broadband pilot stipulates

that rural telephone and broadband service providers, rural electric cooperatives like Valley Electric

Association that serves parts of lnyo County, private firms, nonprofits, and governments are all eligible for the

funding. As with existing RUS projects, eligible deployments are those that serve rural areas with populations

of 20,000 or less, that currently lack sufficient access to broadband service with speeds of at least L0 Mbps/1

Mpbs, and that are not currently served by an RUS borrower.

Water Systems

Addressing drinking water and wastewater needs of rural communities is always challenging. TFG has vast

experience assisting communities in meeting their water supply and delivery needs and often helps clients find

creative and innovative ways to address those needs in a cost-effective and efficient matter. The communities

in lnyo County face a variety of water service issues ranging from water supply infrastructure to overall access

E 19



Praposal !a thc Cor:n:v ai lryo, CA fu:r Fe dcrll Legislative Service-s

to clean and reliable sources of water, To start, TFG would work with County officials, as well as officials from

impacted jurisdictions, to outline all projects and issues related to the County's water systems. This collective

list would serve as a driving point for developing a strategy to systematically address each issue and project.

Often, showing the whole picture helps strengthen the overall story for each individual component and can

help establish a consistent line offederal resources and funding.

Possible Sources of Fundingl lnyo County's rural designation, as well as the economic standing of some

communities, opens the door to opportunities for federal funding in the form of technical assistance, direct

grants, and loans from USDA and the Economic Development Administration (EDA). The Rural Utilities Service

programs for water and wastewater infrastructure can be utilized to secure long-term, low-interest loans for

large-scale water infrastructure projects. USDA direct grants are often awarded independently or in

conjunction with these loans, in particular for more economically depressed areas. Similarly, EDA's Community

Facilities program helps local communities through technical asslstance, grants, and loans plan for and

construct water infrastructure projects that help enhance and support local and regional economies. Both

USDA and EDA rely significantly on the advice and work of their local, regional, and state offices in determining

what projects will receive funding. Application periods for USDA and EDA are typically rolling and the best

approach is to start working with local and state offices to develop support for projects before applying for

funds. Of particular interest, TFG has found great success recently in working not only directly with the CA

USDA office, but also with program officials at USDA in Washington, DC to identify creative solutions and tap

in to underutilized programs for project funding.

Depending on the nature and size of the overall project, opportunities for funding also exist under the new

Water lnfrastructure Finance and lnnovation Act (WlFlA) program through the Environmental Protection

Agency and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Similar to the State Revolving Fund {SRF) programs, the WIFIA

program provides subsidized financing for large dollar-value projects, However, the minimum project size for

small communities with a population of 25,000 or less is reduced from 520 million to $5 million. While the

program can only fund a maximum of 49% of the total project cost, other federal funding can be acquired to

bring the total federal share to up to 80%. TFG was instrumental in obtaining the Congressional authorization

for the WIFIA program and is currently working with clients whose projects were selected in the first round of

funding. The letter of interest process for the next round of WIFIA funding is currently open with a deadline of

July 31, 2018.

Likewise, TFG is leading the effort to help create a similar low-interest, federally-backed loan program for the

Bureau of Reclamation. Ou r work includes working with other communities and Members of Congress to pass

legislation creating the authority for the new program. Once authorized, the program would provide

opportunities for non-Federal sponsors to gain access to low-cost, long-term financing similar to that under

WlFlA. The financing would be available to support a wide variety of water supply-related projects, including

groundwater and surface water storage projects and water reuse. The loan program enhances existing grant

programs under the Bureau of Reclamation's WateTSMART program and creates an additional funding

resource for communities in the west to fund water resource projects.

Outreach Strategy

ln general, TFG will apply the work plan strategies previously outlined in this proposal to address each of these

projects. TFG will leverage its existing relationships on Capitol Hill, within the federal agencies, and with other

national- and state-level organizations to secure resources for lnyo County. ln doing so, TFG staff will schedule

introductory and follow-up meetings with the offices of Sen. Diane Feinstein (D-CA), Sen. Kamala Harris (D-

20



Proposal to the County ol lnyo, CA for Federal Legislative Services

CA), Rep. Paul Cook (R-CA-08), as well as officials and staff from targeted federal agencies. lnformation

gleaned from these meetings will be used to strengthen advocacy initiatives and build political support. For

the Final Mile project, TFG will work with the County to identify community leaders from local anchor

institutions (CAls), businesses, government, and other stakeholder groups to effectively advocate as a

"coalition" for "final-mile" funding at both the federal and state level. ln coordination with the coalition, TFG

staffwill create "talking points", draft Congressional letters, and media collateral (e.9, OpEds), as needed.

lnformation Required from the County

The County will provide or help facilitate the collection of the information that will help strengthen funding

applications and proposals for each project, This information includes documentation that matching funds are

available when needed for certain federal or state loan, loan guarantees, or grant programs; lists of potential

local and regional supporters ofthe projects such as business and neighboring public agencies; public rights-

of-way, zoning regulations, and related information as needed; and any other historical documents that help

support the County's requests to Congress and the federal agencies.

@

Abillty to Contract and lxceptions

TFG has reviewed the County of lnyo Standard Contract #L19 included in the RFP and finds no exceptions to

the proposed terms. TFG can meet all requirements identified in Contract #119 including those outlining

insurance needs as referenced in the supplemental email to the RFP provided by Mr. Carunchio.

References

TFG provides lnyo County with the following three references for which we have performed federal advocacy

services.

2I

a Ms. Sharl McCracken
Chief Administrative Officer

County of Butte, CA

ADDRESS: 25 County Center Drive, Suite 200, Oroville, CA 95965

rclrr: (530) 552-3305

rMA r r : ln1cc,{-Lcke1l1{-brt_tJS,qpg11y.[C!

Client since 2004.

Mr. Wade Horton
Cou nty Administrative Officer

County of San Luis Obispo, CA

AoDREst; L055 Monterey Street D430, San Luis Obispo, CA 93408

rxorut: (805) 781-5011

ruarr:'vlrorton@co.slo,ca,trs

Client since 2009.



G 22Proposal ler lhe Coirnly cl lr:yo, CA lor Ft:dt-ral le;lislalive 5ervir.e:

Mr. Mark Wolinski

Government Relations Administrator
City of Roseville, CA

ADnRssg: 3lL Vernon Street, Roseville, CA 95678

nxarur: (916) 774-5779

r:v:ntt : rlrw_clin.ski@tore-villq,c ..!1.1

Client since 2001.

a

Ccmpensati*n Pr0pssal

Serviees far the City of Sishsp Services

TFG spends the time necessary - and typically much more - to bring success to our clients. Our retainer

contract approach to professional fees provides budget stability for our clients and gives your lobbying team

the freedom to concentrate on achieving measurable results rather than focusing on billable hours. As a

retainer client, the County will always have at its disposal TFG's diverse complement of staff experts in the full

range of federal issues to help navigate this new and changing federal environment.

Fixed Fee: 58,000 per month forthe duration ofthe three-year contract period outlined in the

RFP.

Services Provided: Assumes the equivalent of approximately 18 hours of partner-equivalent time per

month. A full retainer contract also provides the County with access to all TFG staff

and federal grant services.

Expenses; Reirnbursable expenses, including out-of-town travel (pre-approved by client), in-

town travel {taxicab), long-distance telephone charges, facsimiles, document

reproduction, overnight delivery and in-town courier services, would not exceed

55,ooo annually.

TFG stands ready to work closely with you to refine and tailor our retainer fee based on your needs. The

figures included in this cost proposal depend on the final scope of services decided upon by the County.

TFG understands the strong interplay between cities and counties, particularly those in rural areas. More often

than not, rural cities and counties face the same issues, and success in addressing those issues is reliant on a

coordinated and cohesive strategy. Forthis reason, TFG applauds the notion of lnyo County potentially

combining forces with the City of Bishop to address mutual priorities and projects. More importantly, TFG can

assist both the County and City in developing a unified federal platform to address not only regional needs,

but individual priorities for the County and City. ln fact, TFG has a history of joint contracts for communities in

rural areas, and they remain some of our most successful clients.

While each of our contracts is set up independently, when two entities combine as a regional effort, we

typically provide a discount to our normal retainer fees and enter in to one contract. TFG proposes to do the

same in the event the City of Bishop elects to partner with lnyo County on advocacy efforts. Under this

scenario, our work plan and scope of services would remain the same. The only difference, is that we would



Proposal t.o the (.ounty of lnyo, CA for Federal Legisiative Services

be establishing a set of regional priorities as well as detailing individual projects of importance to each partner

The approach to advocacy would be a combined effort, creatirig efficiencies and synergy for all parties.

Our proposed compensation under a regional partnership with the City of Bishop would change marginally

with an estimated increase of approximately 52,000 - 53,000 per monlh. The combined compensation for the

regional contract would then range between S10,000 - S11,000 per month with an anticipated equal split

between the City and the County, or whatever arrangement works best between the City and County. A

scenario like this would reduce the County's monthly fees by approximately $2,000 - S2,500, or about 25% -

30%, without the County experiencing any reduction in service. Contractually, the simplest format would be

one contract between the County and TFG with a separate MOU or reimbursement agreement established

between the City and the County. However, TFG is also not opposed to entering into two separate

agreements, one with the County and one with the City, both at the discounted rate.

lf selected to represent the County at the federal level, and the option of adding the City of Bishop to the

Courity's advocacy efforts comes to fruition, TFG proposes all parties meet to discuss goals, priorilies, and

projects to determine the best path forward on a regional agenda and work plan. We pride ourselves on the

flexibility of our working arrangements with clients and would put that flexibility to use for both the County

and City.

@ 23



COUNTY OF INYO

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

For

Federal Advocacy Services

Deadline for Submission:
Jr{ge I l, 2018

Submit Proposals to

County of Inyo
Office of the County Administrator
P.O. Box N I 224 N. Edwards Street

Independence, Californi a 93526



Countv of Inyo, Calitbrnia
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP

I. OVERVIEW

The County of Inyo invites proposals from qualified individuals and firms to provide the County
with long-term Federal Advocacy Senices focused, primarily, on securing federal funding and
grants for an array of public works and economic development projects the County is planning or
may pursue in the future. However, from time-to-time, due to federal land tenure patterns
described below, the Federal Advocacy Services required by the County may extend to policy
and regulatory matters.

To provide the County with an opportunity to meet its objective of being able to consider
entering into a contract for Federal Advocacy Sewices with an individual or firm deemed
responsive to its needs prior to the end of the County's fiscal year on June 30, 2018, the deadline
for receipt of proposals is 5 p.nr. June ll. 2018.. Similarly, if responses to this Request For
Proposals indeed result in the County identifying, in iE sole discretion, an individual or firm
deemed responsive to the County's needs and with whom a proposed contract can be
successfully negotiated, staff anticipates requesting the lnyo County Board of Supervisors to
consider approving the contract at its meeting on June 26,2018.

The County desires that any agreement resulting from this Request For Proposals establish a
long-term relationship with the selected respondent. Accordingly, unless otherwise proposed in
responses submitted and agreed to in the resulting contract, the County expects the term of the
contract will be for a minimum of 36 months (June 26, 2018 tbrough June 30,2021, contingent
on the approval of future County Budgets and the County, in its sole discretion, annually electing
to continue the agreement for another 12 months). At the conclusion of the initial 36-month term,
the contract will provide the County and Contractor the option to extend the contract for another
five years on terms mutually agreed upon subject to approval by the Inyo County Board of
Supervisors.

Finally, although not a requirement to be considered for the provision of Federal Advocacy
Services to the County of Inyo, and certainly not expected to be made effective by or prior to
June 26,2018, respondents to this Request For Proposals are invited to consider submitting
proposals that identify how their proposal, and any resulting contract, might be modified to
provide similar Federal Advocacy Services to the City of Bishop, subject to separate
consideration and approval by the City of Bishop City Council. The City of Bishop is the only
incorporated city in Inyo County, and encompasses an area of 1.9 square miles; boasts a
population of approximately 3,832 people; and operates on an annual budget of over $7 million.
Ideally, respondents contemplating a proposal that provides for this option will submit a response
whereby a portion of the scope of services proposed to be provided exclusively to the County for
an agreed upon fee structure can subsequently be allocated to the City, upon agreement by the
Bishop City Council and Inyo Board of Supervisors, with the City paying the County a prorated
share of the contract costs. In providing for this option, the County is admittedly seeking to
leverage the effort associated with its issuing this Request For Proposals, and the economies of
scale associated with any resulting contract, to create a possible "two-for-one" arrangement that



Clounfi of Invoo Clalifornia
F'EDERAL ADYOCACY SERVICES RFP

could allow the County of Inyo and the City of Bishop to share in the fixed-costs for Federal
Advocacy Services while allowing each entity the ability to receive these services acting
independently or in concert. (

Alternately, respondents inclined to submit a proposal that includes the optional component for
providing similar services to the City of Bishop, may choose to structure this part of their
response as a separate scope of work with separate fee schedule to be agreed upon between the
respondent and City of Bishop, by separate contract. However. respondents erubfrkine on this
approach must. in their Eoposal" clearly demonsrate the cost-benefit of_the tn,o separale
qcrrfrflcl.v atTltngengnt. to both the Cotmty and the City to receive any consicleration in the
application of the scoring criteria identified below.

II. ABOUT INYO COUNTY

Inyo County, California? was organized in 1866 from land set aside from Mono and Tulare
counties. The County was originally named Coso County, and the town of Independence is
designated as the County seat. The County is characterized as rural and frontier, and is located in
the central-eastem part of the state. Comprised of more than 10,142 square miles, Inyo County is
geographically the second largest county in California, and the ninth largest county in the
continental United States.

Inyo County features an unparalleled variety of natural wonders and stunning vistas, recreational
opportunities, cultural amenities, and rich native, pioneer, mining, water, and movie making
histories. The County is home to Death Valley National Park, and surrounded by the 1.9 million-
acre Inyo National Forest. The County boasts the lowest point in the Western Hemisphere, Death
Valley's Badwater, at a depth of 282 feet below sea level; and, Mount Whitney, the highest peak
in the Lower 48 states, towering at an elevation of 14,505
feet; as well as the oldest living things on Earth in the
Ancient Bristlecone Pine Forest.

According to census information, the population of lnyo
County in 2016 was estimated to be 18,326 (a decrease of
about l%o over the 2000 census). The census also reports a
median household income of $47,000, or 26Yo below that
of the California median, and a median value of owner-
occupied homes of $184,700, or 55olo below that of the
California median. Census data indicates 7,973 Inyo
County households in 201 6.

While its vast size and low population translates to a
population density of less than 2 people per square mile, the majority of Inyo County's
population, 85ol0, resides in the Owens Valley which runs north and south through most of the
western part of the County. While the County seat is located in Independence, located in about
the middle of the Owens Valley, the County's population center is approximately 45 miles to the
north in Bishop, California. The greater Bishop area has a population of approximately 12,000.

2



f]ounh of [n1'o, California
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP

As noted above, the City of Bishop is the only incorporated city in the County of Inyo, and has a
population of 3,832. The County is home to five federally-recognized Indian tribes, as well as

most of the land associated with China Lake Naval Weapons Station which has its headquarters
to the south in Ridgecrest, in Kem County.

In spite of its size, only l.7o/o of the land in Inyo County is privately owned. This limits the
County's economic output and means for economic growth. The County's largest economic
drivers are tourism and hospitality, government services, and agriculture. (A U.S. Locations And
Resources Report recently prepared for the County by the Department of Commerce's
SelectUSA Program is included with this Request For Proposals as Attachment A and provides
additional economic data for Inyo County,) This land tenure pattem, desuibed in more detail
below, also results in low tax revenue which, in turn, limits the funds available to the County to
provide basic public services or undertake critical infrastructure projects.

Public lands managed by the Federal Government account for 92o/o of the County's land mass,

67Yo of which has been federally-designated as wildemess. Over 100 years ago, the City of Los
Angles acquired most of the land (and water rights) in the Owens Valley, and the City - through
its Department of Water and Power- controls 3.9o/o of the land in Inyo County. Los Angeles
owns 8570 of the land in the Owens Valley, and this figure rises to 98% of the land in and around
Owens Valley communities; making growth almost impossible. The State of Califomia owns the
remaining 2.4o/o of land in the County.

The Fiscal Yew 2017-2018 County Budget is approximately $98 million dollars, with almost
$60 million residing in the General Fund.

The County currently sends a delegation comprised of members of the Board of Supervisors and
the County Administrator to Washington, D.C. two to three times a year, and has developed
good working relationships with congressional representatives and their staff, as well as various
agency officials and staff - most notably in the Commerce and Interior departments. Until
recently, the County has typically adopted an annual Legislative Platform in January. However
the Board of Supervisors' last update of the Legislative Platform occurred in 2014, and it is
included as Attachment B to this Request For Proposals. Staff intends to bring an updated
Legislative Platform forward for consideration by the Board of Supervisors once the process for
selecting a Federal Advocacy Services consultant is completed.

Limited regional commercial air service is currently provided at Mammoth Yosemite Airport,
located about 40 miles north of Bishop in Mono County. However, the larger Bishop Airport - a
former military airport with three nmways - is poised to obtain Part 139 Certification and begin
providing more robust commercial air service to the region. The County has and expects to
continue benefitting from Federal Aviation Administration discretionary funds for airport
improvements. And, Mammoth Resorts has recently expressed its intent to begin directing its
commercial air service subsidies to the Bishop Airport.

Digital 395, a publicly-funded, 583-mile, fiber optic "middle mile" project running in parallel
with US Highway 395 from Carson City, Nevada, to Barstow, California, provides the Owens
Valley with world-class technology infrastructure. The $109 million project was funded with an

3



( hu n fy o I' I nvo, f--alilb rnin
F'EDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RF'P

ARRA grant of $82,263,000 and $26,837,000 in CASF funds from the Califomia Public Utilities
Commission. However, the same market forces (e.g., low population density) that required
Digital 395 to be built without private sector investment continue to limit private-sector
investment in building-out the "final mile" necessary for communities to begin realizing the
benefits of the state-of-the art digital infrastructure.

Increasing commercial air service to the Eastern Sierra and completing the final mile of the
Digital 395 fiber optic network are critical elements in efforts to diversift and grow the Inyo
economy.

NI. CURRENT FUNDING NEEDS

Inyo County's vast geography is exceeded only by its aspirations and potential opportunities.
The infrastructure needs and economic development initiatives identified below are in various
stages of development and provide a representative sample of some of the funding needs the
County hopes to address by working with a consultant to provide effective Federal Advocacy
Services. The County's funding priorities will continue to evolve and be refined based on timing,
need, and Board ofSupervisors approval.

Water Systems. The County operates three water systems serving the communities of Laws,
Independence, and Lone Pine; all in need of critical capital improvements. Water service to the
town of Independence is currently provided by a temporary transmission main. The cost of
replacing just the Independence transmission main is $600,000, and replacing the Lone Pine
transmission main is estimated as costing $3,000,000. Beyond these specific critical projects,
large portions of the Lone Pine, lndependence, and Laws water systems have a substantial
amount of deferred maintenance/replacement work that need to be completed.

Additionally, several community water systems operated by other entities do not meet clean
drinking water standards. For example, in Tecopa - located in the southeastern part of the
County - residents and visitors have to obtain filtered drinking water from a vending machine.

Final Mile Fiber Optics. The 2l't Century Obsidian Project, described more fully in Attachment
C, is a County initiative to create a public-private partnership resulting in a publicly-owned, open
access, fiber-to-the-premises network for the greater Owens Valley. The County is currently
negotiating a design-build-operate contract with the developer of the Digital 395 Project. The
cost of the Project, including providing fiber to every premises in the City of Bishop and on four
Indian reservations, is $44 million.

Cellular Communications Towers. Cellular communications along the 395 corridor in the
Owens Valley and, as can be imagined given Inyo's topography, throughout the County are

spotty. In part, this is due to land tenure pattems and various bureaucracies' limiting locations
that private entities can easily acquire or lease. This impacts public safety and quality of life, and
limits economic development opportunities. To remedy the situation, the County has
commissioned a cellular tower mapping project to identify the optimum locations throughout the
Owens Valley for next generation cellular infrastructure. The County believes that, as a

4



{iount1, of Inyo, Califirrnia
I.EDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RF'P

government agency, it may have an easier time acquiring better sites for cellular transmission
towers and, once these sites are identified and acquired, the County will require funding to
develop the tower sites. Inyo County is open to pursuing this infrastructure need as a publicly-
owned open access network, or as a limited public-private partnership.

Lone Pine Town Street Rehabilitation & Reconstruction Project. The County is seeking over
$3,000,000 to rehabilitale and reconstruct 2.75 miles of streets in Lone Pine, including adding
bike lanes.

NEPA for Federal Easements for County Roads. Ongoing ambiguity over the status of
County-maintained roads on federal lands, most notably lands managed by the Forest Service,
have led the County and Forest Service to identifu the need for a comprehensive NEPA process
that would evaluate these roads for the pu{poses of granting the County long-term or permanent
easements for these routes.

Other Surface Transportation Needs. Like most jurisdictions, lnyo County has a tremendous
backlog of road and bridge maintenance work that needs to be addressed to maintain the integrity
of this infrastructure. This includes several mountain routes to trailheads and recreation facilities
in Inyo National Forest. It also includes plans to expand the system of bicycle routes throughout
the region, and dreams of restoring runs of narrow gauge railroad tracks.

Historic Mount Whitney Fish Hatchery. Deeded by the community to the State of California
to raise Golden Trout over 100 years ago, the California Department of Fish & Wildlife has
discontinued use of this facility, which includes an architecturally-iconic hatchery building, 40
acrss of gtotrnds, and water rights. The County has been in discussions with the State to acquire
the property, but unceriainties regarding the status of soil contamination following the removal
of underground storage tanks years ago has slowed progress to transfer the facility. The State is
worried about exposing itself to possible liability by waking the proverbial sleeping dog, and if
the County assumes ownership, it will need to be prepared to address at this time open-ended
(albeit perceived to be limited) on-site remediation. In addition to funds for potential clean-up, if
the County proceeds with acquiring the property, it will seek funding for an economic reuse plan
and implementing its results.

Other Economic Development Initiatives. In the past year, the County has undertaken several
economic development studies/analyses that, in addition to encompassing some of the projects
identified above, are expected to provide sign-posts to inform an overarching economic
diversification and enhancement strategy for which the County will seek funding to implement.

IV. MINIMUM SCOPE OF WORK

In requesting and evaluating proposals for Federal Advocacy Services, the County of Inyo
intends to rely on the expertise of the respondents, as experienced professionals, to recommend
and demonstrate the most advantageous and cost-effective means of assisting the County in (1)
identifying, prioritizing, pursuing and obtaining federal funding for a myriad of public works and
economic development projects the County has identified, or may identi$' in the future, as

5



Counfy of Inyo, Califbrnia
X'EDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP

necessary andlor desirable; and, (2) to informing and advocating for the County's Legislative
Platform as well as specific legislative and regulatory initiatives.

At a minimum, the Consultant selected to provide Federal Advocacy Services will be expected
to agree to, and successfully implement the following Scope of Work. [n preparing proposals,
respondents are encouraged to identify efforts and activities they will agree to undertake in
addition to this minimum Scope of Work:

1 Funding Priorities. On an annual basis, work with the County to understand and analyze
its funding needs for public works and economic development projects and initiatives, as
well as ongoing and enhanced delivery of public services, that results in priortizing the
County's key funding needs in a manner that best aligns with federal budget
opportunities.

2. Legislative Platform. Review and provide input to inform the County's development of
its annual Legislative Platform. Work with the County to identify and remain cognizant
of the highest federal legislative priorities of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors.
Monitor and provide information to the County about federal legislative issues related to
its Legislative Platform and, particularly the Board of Supervisors' top legislative
priorities. Communicate County interests to, and receive feedback from, elected and
appointed officials. Areas that may be covered by advocacy services include but are not
limited to: transportation and transit, agriculture, economic development, health and
human services, homeland security, housing, environmental protection, energy and water
resources.

3. Identi{ication and pursuit of funding opportunities. Once funding priorities have been
established, continuously monitor and identi$ likely funding sources. Assist the County
in effectively pursuing, preparing and obtaining federal funding and grants.

4. Preparation of effective briefing materials. Once funding and legislative priorities have
been identfied, work with the County to develop specific briefing papers or other
materials for high-priority items and an agenda for all other items. These briefing papers
will be used to educate and win support for funding and legislative/regulatory priorities
from key federal agency staffand appointees and legislators.

5. Meetings with key federal officials. As requested or recommended, organize meetings
in Washington, D.C. for County officials with members of Congress and staff of the
Washington delegation, key Adminishation officials, staff from the federal agencies, as
well as other relevant Congressional committee members and staff. The visits will
support the County's federal funding, legislative, and policy initiatives. When
appropriate, also organize meetings with county officials and federal congressional and
federal agency offices in Califomia.

6. Maintain visibitity of County funding needs and legislative issues. Conduct frequent
follow-up meetings and contacts with the County's congressional delegation, key staff for
the House and Senate leadership and committees, and staff and officials from relevant

6



County of lnyo, Calilirrnia
F'EDERAL ADVOCACY SERYICES RFP

federal agencies in order to ensure that the County's issues and requests remain a high
priority.

7. Coalition-building services. Facilitate the identification and building of strategic
relationships between the County and the National Association of Counties, as well as

other associations, organizations, and entities that will assist the County in achieving its
funding and legislative priorities.

8. Monthly written statements of work. At a minimum, provide monthly written updates
to the County's contract manager detailing the activities undertaken during the previous
month on behalf of the County of Inyo, and reporting on the status of funding and
legislative priorities.

9. Regular phone calls and briefings to the County. At least monthly, and more often
during critical times in the legislative and funding processes, conduct phone briefings
with County staffand officials to report on projects and initiatives that are underway.

10. Availability. Maintain phone and email contact with County representatives to provide
information on emerging issues and to field inquiries from County Supervisors and
executive staff.

11. In-person visits. Make in-person visits to Inyo County throughout the year to discuss the
County's federal strategy, including: briefing staff and the Board of Supervisors on
funding and legislative priorities, and facilitating visits, tours, briefings, and press events
involving members of the congressional delegation and staff.

12. Annual Report. Annually, and at least 30 days prior to the time by which the County
must decide whether to continue its engagement for F'ederal Advocacy Services, provide
an annual report reviewing accomplishments and recommending possible changes in
priorities or the process, including to this Scope of Work, in the future.

V. PROPOSAL{SUBMITTAL}RNOUIREMRNT$

The response (submittal) to this Request For Proposals must, at a minimum, contain the
following sections:

1. Cover Letter. A cover letter introducing the individual's or firm's interest in this project,
and including the legal name, address, email, telephone and fax numbers of the individual
or frrm, signed by the person delegated to legally bind the individual or firm to the
proposal.

2. Recent Engagements. Desuibe the individual's or frrm's client engagements within the
past five years performing similar work involving federal lobbying and funding efforts.
Additionally, respondents must disclose any work ever performed by the individual or
firm on behalf of the City of Los Angeles or the City of Los Angeles Department of
Water and Power.

7



Counh of Inyo, California
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP

3. Key Personnel. Identify specifically the key personnel who will be assigned to work
with the County of Inyo, and describe the work they will perform on behalf of the
County. Submit biographies and pertinent experience of the key personnel proposed to
perform the work.

4. Work Plan. Provide a work plan that demonstrates the respondent's understanding of the
County's requirements and needs, and the respondent's ability to successfully accomplish
the Scope of Work identified in Section IV, as well as any additional services the
respondent may want to propose for consideration. The work plan should clearly
delineate the services the County will receive for the compensation proposed.

With regard to the work plan's relation to the specific minimum components of the Scope
of Work descibed in Section IV, the work plan must, at the very least:

a) Identify the respondent's recommended process for determining, and intervals for
updating, the County's funding and legislative priorities.

b) Quantify any limits on the number of funding priorities, and limits on the number
of legislative priorities, and time dedicated thereto the individual or firm will
pursue on behalf of the County of Inyo in any given year (or other specified
timeframe) corresponding to the fixed fee identified in the respondent's
compensation proposal. Identify the means, ild any cost associated with
switching or adding to funding and legislative priorities during the year (or other
specified timeframe).

c) Describe the level and nature of work that will be performed by the responding
individual or firm, and that which is expected to be performed by the County, in
preparing briefing materials, funding requests and grant applications for the fixed
fee specified in the respondent's compensation proposal. Identify and clearly
distinguish additional preparatory services the respondent can provide for an
additional fee.

d) Detail how, and the frequency with which the individual or firm will ensure the
County's funding and legislative priorities remain effectively visible to key
federal officials.

e) Suggest, based on initial knowledge of Inyo County and its funding and
legislative priorities, which immediately-obvious coalitions and relationships the
respondent would recommend the County pursue, and the assistance the
respondent will provide.

0 Identify the maximum number of Washington, D.C. visits and meetings the
respondent will coordinate, and the minimum number of in-County visits the
respondent make for the fixed fee specified in the respondent's compensation
proposal.

I



(loun$' of In!'o, California
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERYICES RFP

5. Approach and Likelihood of Success. Select any two of the illustrative County funding
priorities identified in Section III and describe your approach for assisting the County in
obtaining these funds, and the realistic likelihood of success. Identify possible sources of
funding, information required from the County, information and services to be provided
by the Consultant, steps in the process including communications and in-person meetings
between the County and Consultant, and the County, Consultant and federal officials, and
reasonable measures of success.

6. Ability to Contract and Exceptions. This Request For Proposals, and the submittal
presented by the respondent with whom the County may choose to contract as the result
of this process, will be incoqporated into the agreement submitted to the Inyo County
Board of Supervisors for approval. The respondent must provide a statement as to the
individual's or firm's ability and willingness to enter into County of Inyo Standard
Contract #119, and note any exceptions. A sample of Standard Contract #119 is attached
as Exhibit I, which may be modified to incorporate provisions described in this RFP or
the resulting negotiation of proposals. Only those exceptions to Standard Contract #119
identified in the respondent's proposal will be considered during the negotiation process.

Alternately, if an individual or firm prefers to use its own contract form, the contract
must be included in the respondent's proposal and the County reserves the rights to
negotiate its own exceptions to the contract.

This section should also be used for the respondent to summatize any exception(s) to the
Scope of Work (Section IV).

7. References. Submit a minimum of three client references (preferably rural counties in
California or the West), with contact names and their phone numbers and e-mail
addresses, where similar services have been provided, and identify the duration of the
relationship.

8. Compensation Proposal. The proposal must clearly and simply identify the monthly flat
fee the individual or firm will charge the County for the services identified in the Scope
of Work and conesponding Work Plan, including any quantification of minimum and
maximum levels of service and engagement identified in the Work Plan (see 4a-4f
above), during the first 36-month term of the contract. Clearly identify any separate
expenses to be negotiated, and the cost for any additional services that may be requested
by the County or proposed by the respondent.

9. Services for the City of Bishop Services (Optional). As noted in the Overview Section
above, respondents to this Request For Proposals are invited to indicate their willingness
to provide similar or shared Federal Advocacy Services to the City of Bishop if, al a
Iater date, the City of Bishop City Council elects to avail the City of such services.
Although optional, respondents choosing to submit this optional proposal will be eligible
to receive up to five (5) bonus points as described in the Evaluation Criteria Section
below.

9



Oounfy of Inyo, (lalil'ornia
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RX'P

Respondents electing to provide this optional proposal for providing Federal Advocacy
Services for the City of Bishop working in concert with or independently of the Cotrrty
of Inyo should either:

a) Describe how the services specified in the Scope of Work and corresponding
Work Plan for the County of Inyo exclusively could subsequently be allocated
between the County and the City for the same cost specified in the respondent's
Compensation Plan. Under this scenario, the services would be provided under
the County's contract with the Consultant, and the City would reimburse the
County for its share of the services to which it has access.

OR

b) Propose a separate Work Plan and Compensation Plan to be implemented through
a separate contract with the City of Bishop, AND showing how both the City and
County will benefit - save money and receive more seryices than would otherwise
be possible - through this approach. Failure to clearly demonstrate the cost-
benefit to the County from this approach will result in zero bonus points being
awarded through the application of the Evaluation Criteria.

[Continued Next Page]

t0



County of Inyo, Califirrnia
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP

YI. SUBMISSION OF'PROPOSALS / DEADLINE

The deadline for receipt of proposals is 5 p.m. June 11, 2018. Submissions must be hard
copies and include one (l) unbound original and three (3) copies and be sent to:

County of Inyo
Office of the County Administrator - Federal Advocacy Services RFP

P.O. DrawerN /224 N. Edwards Street
Independence, CA 93526

Note: The U.S. Post Office will only deliver mail addressed to the P.O. Drawer, not the street
address. Postmarks will not be accepted. Facsimile and electronic copies will not be accepted.

Submittals received in response to this solicitation become County property and are subject to
public disclosure. Proposals will not be returned to the respondents, and any information a
respondent desires to be kept confidential should be excluded from any proposal.

[Continued Next Page]

l1



Counh of Inyo, {.lalilbrnia
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RJP

YII. EVALUATION CRITERIA

All proposals received by the submital deadline will be evaluated and scored by an evaluation
committee comprised of County representatives using the following criteria:

Criteria
Scoring
Points

Possible
Completeness. Was the proposal submitted on time, in triplicate, and does it include
the required components identified in Section V. PROPOSAL (SUBMITTAL)
REQUIREMENTS above?

Pass/Fail

Clarity. Is the proposal presented in a manner that is easy to understand and clearly
articulates the services that will be provided for the compensation sought; allowing
the evaluation committee to easily assess the overall value to the County?

10

Value of Funding Advocacy. How does proposed level of advocacy for funding
priorities (quantity, thoroughness, and completeness) compare to the cost of the
compensation being sought?

40

Value of Legislative Advocacy. How does proposed level of advocacy for
legislative priorities (quantity, thoroughness, and completeness) compare to the cost
of the compensation being sought?

l5

Quality of Proposed Work Plan. Is the proposed work plan feasible and thorough
and demonstrate the proposer's reasonable understanding of the County's needs and
challenges? Does the work plan represent an exceptional value to the County;
including the number of in-County and Washington, D.C. visits proposed for the
base fee?

20

Experience. Does the experience of the individual or firm, and key personnel,
indicate the ability to succesfully accomplish the Scope of Work? Do references
support this conclusion?

l0

Abitity to Contract. Do any exceptions to the County's proposed contract, or the
contract proposed by the respondent, reduce the likelihood of being able to
successfully negotiate an agreement?

5

MAXIMUM POSSIBLE SCORE 100

BONUS POINTS

City of Bishop Option. If the proposer has included an option for also providing
Federal Advocacy Services to the City of Bishop pursuant to Section V. Paragraph
9. Services for the City of Bishop Services (Optional) above, does this optional
proposal clearly demonstrate an added value to the County of Inyo and the City of
Bishop?

Note: The County is providing for this option as a courtesy to the City of Bishop and does not warrant the City
of Bishop will ultimately avail themse lyes of any proposed servicEs. That decision will bo made, if it is made, in
the sole discretion of the City of Bishop and Bishop City Council, and occur afte r the selected Consultant enters
into its contract with the County of lnyo.

t

t2



Clounfy of Inyo, California
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP

VilI. EVALUATION PROCESS

A review committee comprised of County representatives will evaluate all submitted proposals.
The evaluation will be based soley on the information conveyed in the proposal, including
information gleaned from client references provided by the respondent.

Proposals (submittals) will be scored and ranked by the evaluation committee based on the
Evaluation Criteria set forth above and an overall assessment of o'best valueo' to the County. For
purposes of ranking proposals, the total score that each proposal receives from each member of
the review committee will be totaled to arrive at an aggregate score for each proposal. If the
review committee is comprised of five (5) or more reviewers, the highest and lowest score
assigned to each proposal will be excluded from the aggregate score.

The evaluation committee may, in its discretion, request oral presentations/interviews with all
proposing firms/individuals or with the highest-ranked firms/individuals only, and/or may
request the presentation of revised proposals from the highest-ranked firms/individuals ("short-
list"), followed by an evaluation and ranking of the revised proposals.

The County reserves the right to proceed directly to negotiations with the highest-ranked
firmlindividual immediately following the initial presentation and evaluation of proposals, and
negotiate with multiple respondents. All contracts over $10,000 are subject to approval by the
Inyo County Board of Supervisors. Inyo County reserves the right to reject all proposals received
in response to this Request For Proposals. The County also reserves the right to waive variations
from the specifications that do not render a proposal non-conforming, and the County retains the
right to disregard non-conformities, non-responsive proposals or conditional proposals if in the
best interest of the County.

Successful negotiations with the highest-ranked respondent will result in a professional services
contract with a detailed scope of work, and including this Request For Proposals and the
respondent's submittal, being presented for consideration by the Board of Supervisors. See
County of Inyo Standard Contract #1I9. If the County is unable to negotiate a satisfactory
contract with the highest-ranked individual/firm, the next highest-ranked individual/firm may be
contacted for contract negotiation. This method will continue until a contract is successfully
negotiated or until all proposalsare rejected, in the best interests of the County.

fContinued Next Page]

l3



County of lnyo, California
FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERYTCES RFP

IX. CONTRACT TERM

Unless otherwise negotiated, the County expects the term of the contract will be for a minimum
of 36 months (June 26,2018 through June 30, 2A21, contingent on the approval of future County
Budgets and the County, in its sole discretion, annually electing to continue the agreement for
another 12 months). At the conclusion of the initial 36-month term, the contract will provide the
County and Contractor the option to extend the contract foi another five years on terms mutually
agreed upon subject to approval by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors.

X. RFP OUESTIONS & INOUIRIES

Any inquiries regarding this solicitation must be made in writing in the form of an e-mail,
addressed to Kevin Carunchio, County Administrator, at kcarunchio@.inJ{oqqunty,u5, with
"FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP QUESTION" in the subject line. At its sole
discretion, the County may respond to inquiries made in this manner and received no later than 5
p.m. on Thursday, June7,2018.

Any County responses to inquiries regarding this RFP will be simultaneously emailed to all
potential respondents who, as of the time of the County's specific response, have been included
on a Notification List. To be placed on the Notif,rcation List and receive responses to inquiries
the County may issue, or be notified of changes to this RFP, interested parties must notiS Mr.
Carunchio, via email with..FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES RFP NOTIFICATION LIST'
in the subject line, no later than 5 p.m. on Friday, June l, 2018. Receipt of the request will be
confirmed via e-mail as soon as possible. lnterested parties not receiving e-mail confirmation of
their request to be placed on the Notification List should contact Mr. Carunchio at (760) S78-
0292 to ensure their request has been received.

XI. FEDERAL SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIF'ICATION

Federal Executive Order 12549 prohibits federal, state and local public agencies receiving grant
funding from contracting with individuals, organizations, or companies who have been excluded
from participating in federal contracts or grants.

The purpose of this certification is for the conhactor/vendor to advise the County of Inyo, in
writing, of any current Federal Suspension and Debarment.

Debarment Certification. By signing and submitting a response to this competitive solicitation,
I certify that this firm and its principals are not currently suspended or debarred by any Federal
Department or Agency from participating in Federal Funded Contracts.

###

14



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1,2018 TO: June 30,2021

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract No. - 1 19 modified
(l ndependent Contractor)

Page 10

43242016



Specifications 2
fnsurance Req uirements for Professional Services

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract itrsurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to properfy which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF'INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
projecUlocation or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
(Not required if consultant provides wrilten verification it has no

employees)

l. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consuitant's
profession, with limit no less than $11000,000 per occurence.

lf the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Additlonal I nsu red Sfatus

1. The Entity, its offices, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 1A 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
2A 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other Insurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Covetage
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage
shall be p.rimary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each Insurance pollcy requlred above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation
Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any cndorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity. The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses
within the retention.

Acceptability of lnsurcrs
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made Policies
lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the dale of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of vro*.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Dale prior to the contract effective date,
the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shallfurnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verifo that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein.

Speeial Risks or Circumstances
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



Page 1
062912

AMENDMENT NUMBER     3      TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and
 The Ferguson Group, LLC  (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered 
into an Agreement for the Provision of Independent Contractor Services dated  June 26, 2018, on 
County of Inyo Standard Contract No.119, for  the term from  July 1, 2018  to June 30, 2021.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1. Paragraph 2. TERM is amended to read as follows: 

"The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2024, unless sooner terminated 
as provided below." 

2. Paragraph 3.D. Limit Upon Amount Payable Under Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

"The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work performed 
under this Agreement in each fiscal year during which this Agreement is in effect, including incidental 
expenses, if any, shall not exceed $101,000 (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County 
expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for 
services or work performed, including incidental expenses which is in excess of the contract limit." 

///NOTHTNG FOLLOWS\\\

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1, 2023.

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No.  119



062912

AMENDMENT NUMBER     3      TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND THE FERGUSON GROUP, LLC

FOR THE PROVISION OF FEDERAL ADVOCACY SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
   DAY OF , .

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:  

Dated: 

By:  
Signature

Type or Print

Dated:  

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Contract  - No.  119  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3838  

 

Appoint Authorized Representative for Federal 
Broadband-Related Grants 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director Scott Armstrong, Information Services Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Appoint the County Administrator as the Authorized Representative to facilitate the grant application 
process for two Federal Broadband-related grant applications: 1) USDA Rural Development (RD) 
Broadband Technical Assistance (BTA) Grant; and 2) FCC Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP) 
Outreach Grant, Round 2. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Federal grant application process requires that an Authorized Representative be identified when the 
online grant application is filed.  This request is intended to clearly identify the Authorized Representative 
for the County of Inyo for the purposes of these two Federal grant applications. 
 
1)  The US Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development (RD) Broadband Technical Assistance 
(BTA) Grant funds pre-construction work, such as last-mile network design work, similar to the State's 
Local Area Technical Assistance (LATA) Grant.  The minimum application amount is $50,000 and the 
maximum application amount is $250,000 for recipients of technical assistance.  This BTA grant, if 
awarded, will allow us to contract for last-mile network infrastructure design work in the Furnace Creek 
area, from Park Village near Cow Creek to the Xanterra resort, excluding most of the Texas Springs 
Campground and most of the Timbi-Sha village immediately south of Furnace Creek.  California Internet 
(Geolinks) was the CAF2 Auction Winner for both of the excluded areas, and as such, those areas are 
not eligible for funding under the USDA RD BTA grant.  The BTA grant online submission deadline is 
June 20, 2023.  We will be evaluating the pricing estimates in the LATA RFP responses that recently 
received to estimate the BTA grant request amount for the Furnace Creek area. 
 
2)  The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP) Outreach 
Grant, Round 2, funds outreach activities to increase awareness of and participation in the ACP among 
those eligible households most in need of affordable connectivity.  The minimum application amount is 
$50,000 and the maximum amount is $400,000.  The ACP Outreach Grant, if awarded, will fund activities 
and materials to conduct outreach for the ACP, including marketing and an as-yet-to-be-specified 
number of in-person sign-up events in both Inyo and Mono counties.  Adoption activities are specifically 
not allowed for reimbursement under the CPUC Consortia Grant guidelines, and this FCC ACP Outreach 
Grant will help fund broadband adoption activities in our region.  Activities funded by this ACP Outreach 
Grant must be conducted between November 2023 and November 2024.  The ACP Outreach Grant 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

online submission deadline is June 30, 2023.  Based on the number of in-person sign-up events that we 
determine will fit our region, we expect to request between $50,000 and $100,000. 
 
The Regional Broadband Coordinator is preparing applications for both of these grants. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Federal Grant Funding Budget Unit TBD 

Budgeted? If awarded, FY2023-2024 budget will be amended at 
Mid-Year 

Object Code TBD 

Recurrence One-Time Award, one year duration  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
None. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Potential Federal grant revenue up to $250,000 from USDA RD BTA in FY2023-2024, and up to 
approximately $100,000 from FCC ACP Outreach from November 2023 until November 2024, based on 
reimbursable work products. 
Additional Information 
These are reimbursement grants based on actual expenditures and costs incurred.  Budget numbers 
are provided for the upper limit in either grant. Inyo County will serve as the Fiscal Agent for these grant 
opportunities and new budget units will be created as needed to support these work efforts and 
effectively track the funding. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not appoint the County Administrator or anyone else as the Authorized 
Representative for these two grant applications, resulting in these two grant applications not being 
submitted.  Your Board could also appoint a Board member or another individual as the Authorized 
Representative, which would facilitate the grant application process.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Scott Armstrong Created/Initiated - 6/9/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/13/2023 
Scott Armstrong Approved - 6/13/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3820  

 

Anne Sippi Clinic Contract Amendment No. 1 
Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lucy Vincent Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Anne Sippi Clinic Treatment 
Group of Bakersfield, CA, extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent 
upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Anne Sippi Clinic Treatment Group provides specialized services that meet the recovery needs of 
persons with severe mental illness who are ready to step down from a locked facility to a less restrictive 
environment.  In the past, we have successfully placed adults in this facility who then stepped down to 
live independently or with family members.  The Department respectfully requests your Board's approval 
of this contract amendment to extend the term of service for an additional year. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund 100% Mental Health Realignment 
Funds 

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5508 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Planned expense 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract amendment.  Appropriate placements are difficult 
to obtain and there is no guarantee that another facility that offers proper care will be found.  Conserved 
adults would then remain in a locked psychiatric setting or may have repeated incarcerations. 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo County Courts 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Anne Sippi Clinic Contract Amendment No. 1 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 5/26/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/26/2023 
Lucy Vincent Approved - 5/31/2023 
Kimball Pier Approved - 6/1/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/6/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/6/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/7/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 
   

   

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO THE  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

ANNE SIPPI CLINIC TREATMENT GROUP 
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Anne Sippi Clinic 
Treatment Group (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the 
Provision of Residential Treatment Services dated June 28, 2022, on County of Inyo Standard Contract 
No. 157, for the term from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. 
 
 WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 
 
Paragraph 2 (Term) shall be amended to extend the term of the Agreement until June 30, 2024. 
 
Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new Schedule of 
Fees, which is attached hereto.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 





Approved by Board Directors 1 January, 2023 

 

Usual & Customary Daily Rate Sheet 
 

   ASC Clinic                                 Riverside Ranch 
   2457 Endicott Street                     18200 Highway 178 
   Los Angeles, CA 90032                              Bakersfield, CA 93306 

             

            Inclusive rate:  $230.00 per day 

 

              Services include but are not limited to: 

 Screening & Admission Assessment 
 Individualized Treatment and Care Plans 
 Medication review by Medical Director & multi-disciplinary 

Treatment Team 
 Group & Individual Therapy Services 
 Community Outings & Re-Integration 
 Educational Groups 
 Contracted Day Services Programs 
 Court & Conservatorship Evaluation, limited testimony by court 

certified, forensic psychologist 
 Referral Services 
 Quarterly IPP reviews 
 Summary Behavioral Reports 
 Local Transportation to Appointments 

 



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 28th day of June 2022 an order was duly made and entered

as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health - Anne Sippi
Clinic Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve the contract
between the County of lnyo and Anne Sippi Clinic Treatment Group of Bakersfield, CA for
the provision of residential placement for adults conserved under the Lanterman Petris Short
Act, in an amount not to exceed $81,000 for the period of July 1, 2022 through June 30,
2023, contingent upon the Board's approval the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign the contract and HIPAA Business Associate Agreement,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

IItITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 28'h

D"y ofJ_une-2_022

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
C lerk oJ the Board of Superv isors

f4*X U4A+'t,',ar*

Routins

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: HHS

DATE: June 29,2022

By:



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ANNE SIPPI CLINIC TREATMENT GROUP

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') may have the need for the
Residential treatment services of Anne Siooi Clinic Treatment Grouo
of Bakersfield California (hereinafter referred to as "Contracto/'), and in
consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by

C. Pier. Ph.D
the County to the
.. LMFTContractor to perform under this Agreement will be made by Kimball

whose title is: HHS Deputv Director of Behavioral Health Requests to the Contractor for work or
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The
County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or
work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement
incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all,
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shallbe from 71112022 lo 613O12O23
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION

A. Comoensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any gpe or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable under Aqreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

and no cents
81.000.00 (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County

expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or
work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request.
This statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 1 of 10

)

07t26t2019



to be submitted will cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the
last day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon
timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (Sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor
on the last day of the month.

F. Federal and Statetaxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from paynents made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,4se.oo).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, and municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenrise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits
will be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal
department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. '157

(lndependent Contractor- Residential Treatment Services)
Page 2 of 10

0712612019



Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERTY

A. Personal Prooertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contractor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractor's Work and Services. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination
of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 3 of 10
07126t2019



11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, certification and licensing
regulations, and directions. Records shall be permanent, either typewritten or legibly written in ink and shail
be kept on all patients accepted for treatment. All health records of discharged patients shall be completed
and filed within thirty (30) days after termination of each episode of treatment and such records shall be kept
for a minimum of seven (7) years, except for minors whose records shall be kept at least until one (1) year
after the minor has reached the age of 18, but in no case less than seven (7) years consistent with California
Code of Regulations, Tille 22 Section 75054, and 75343. All psychologist records shall also be maintained
on each patient for seven years from the patient's discharge date, or in the case of a minor, seven years after
the minor reaches 18 years of age consistent with California Business and Professions Code Section 291g.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, ancestry,
gender, sexual orientation, age, national origin, or mental or physical handicap. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. PATIENTS RIGHTS.

Contractor shall comply with applicable patients' rights provisions in W&l Division 5, Part l; Title 9,
California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 4; and other applicable law in the provision of services to
patients hereunder. Contractor shall adopt and post in a conspicuous place a written policy on patient rights
in accordance with Section7O707 of Title 22 ol lhe California Code of Regulations and Section 5325.1 of the
Welfare and lnstitutions Code. Complaints by patients or beneficiaries with regard to substandard conditions
may be investigated by the County's Patients' Rights Advocate, County or State Department of Mental
Health, or by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organization, or such other agency, as
required by law or regulation. Contractor is responsible for posting information on grievance and appeal
processes accessible to individuals and their beneficiaries receiving services at the facility. Contractor
shall make available for use by patients or beneficiaries at Contractor sites, without requiring either written
or verbal request, grievance and appeal forms and lnyo County Mental Health self-addressed envelopes.

14. CANCELLATION-

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days' written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days' written notice of such intent to
cancelto County.

15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 4 of 10
0712612019



Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days'
written notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts
owing to Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23 below.

18. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's wriften
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

21. SEVERABILITY

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 5 of 10
07t26t20't9



22. FUNDING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifuing
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
three (23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served or sent by prepaid first
class mail to the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
HHS-Behavioral Health
1360 North Main Stree_fSuile1[

ElEh.op, cA-Eg514-

Contractor:
Anne Sippi Clinic Treatment Group

Department
Address
City and State

18200 Hwy 178
Name
Address
City and StateBakersfield, CA 93306

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

ilil ilil

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor- Residential Treatment Services)

Page 6 of 10
07t26t2019



28th June 2022

Dan Totheroh

06/28/2022



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ANNE SIPPICLINIC TREATMENT GROUP

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

71112022 6t30t2023

SCOPE OF WORK:

See attached scope of work. Contractor is required to enter into a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement herein as
attached.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor- Residential Treatment Services)

Page 8 of 10
07t26t2019



TRANSMONAL SOCIAT REHABIUTATION PROGRAM

SERVICES AND REQUIREMENTS

SCOPE OFWORK

PROGRAM STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS

(Af To be certified as a Transitlonal Social Rehabilitation program shall provide:

(1) Services that provide a therapeutic environment in which clients are supported in

their efforts to acquire and apply interpersonal and independent living skills.

The program shall also assist the client in developing a personal comrnunity support

system to substitute for the programs supportive environment, to minimize the the
risk of hospitalization, and enhance the capability for independent living upon

discharge from the program.

The planned lenelh of stay in the program shall be in accordance with the client's

assessed need, with the goal of transitioning the client to a lower level care within
one (1) year; however, a length of stay exceeding a maximum total of 18 months is

optimal but not required.

The reasons for a length of stay beyond one (1) year shall be documented in the
client's case record.

(2) A minimum staffing ratio of at least one {1) full time equivalent direct care staff for
each 2.5 clients served.

Greater number of staff shall be present during times where there are numbers or
clients in programmed activities.

Staffschedules shall be determined bythe program based on the numbers of clients

in the program during specific hours of the day, level of care provided by the
program, and the range of services provided by the facility.

All scheduled hours in the facility shall be considered part of this required full-time
equ iva lent staffing ratio.

SERVICE REqUNEMENTS

(A) Structured day and evening services shall be available seven (71 days a week. Services

ln all programs shall lndude but not llmited to:

(1) lndividual and group counseling;



(2) Crisis lntervention;

(3) Planned activities;

(4) Counseling with available members of the clients family, when indicated in the
client's

treatment/rehabilitation program plan;

(5) The development of the community support systems for clients to maximize their
utilization

of non-mental health community resources, including educational opportunities;

(6) Pre-vocational or vocational counseling;

(7) Client advocacy, including assisting clients to develop their own advocacy skills;

(8) An activity program that encourages socialization, program and community
involvement,

which llnks the client to resources that are available after leaving the program; and

(9) Use of the residential environment to assist clients in the acquisition testing and or
refinement of community living and interpersonal skills.

(81 ln addltlon to the serulces in the Section (ll Al, Transltional Social Rehabilitation
Programs shall provide services that emphasize the development of vocational skills and
linkages to services offering employment or job placement.

III. MEDICAT REqUIREMENTS

Medical and psychiatric policies and practices of all programs shall be in writing and shall

include, but not limited to:

(A) A plan for the monitoring of medications by a person licensed to prescribe or dispense
prescription drugs;

(B) Screening for medical complications which may contribute to disability conducted by a
physician, nun;e practitioner or physician assistant and a plan for follow-up.

1. The screening for medical complications shall occur within 3Gday calendar days prior
to or



after admission.

2. lf a client refuses screening for medical complications, the program shall document

the
refusal in the client case record.

(C) Client education, provided by a licensed program staff or licensed consultants, about the
role of medications and their potential side effects, with the goal of client becoming

responsible for his or her own medication;

(D) Entries in client case records indicating all prescribed and non- prescribed medications;

(E) Provisions for program staff to discuss medication issues with a person licensed to
prescribe or dispense prescription drugs;

(F) Provisions for secure central storage of medication, including medication requiring

appropriate refrigeration when necessary; and,

(G) Encouragement to clients, when part of the treatment/rehabilitation plan, to be

personally responsible for holding managing and safeguarding all of their medications.

lV. Treatment/Rehabilitation plan and document requirements

(A) Each program shall have an admission agreement, signed on entry bythe client or an

authorized representative, describing the services to be provided and the expectations and

rights of client regarding house rules, client involvement in the program, and fees.

The client shall receive a copy of the signed admission agreement.

(B) There shall be written assessment of each client on admission that includes at the least:

(1) Health and psychiatric histories;
(2) Psychosocial skills;
(3) Social support skills;
(4) Current psychological, educational, vocational, and other functional limitations;
(5) Medical needs, as reported;

A copy of each executed assessment shall be provided to the Counffs Placement

Coordinator along with monthly invoicing.

(C) Program staff and client shall work together to develop a written treatment



rehabilitation plan specifying goals and objectives as well as a identifying the staff and client

responsibilities for their achievement.

Clients shall be involved in an ongoing review of progress towards reaching their established

goals and be involved in the planning and evaluation or their treatment goals. The plan shall

contain at least the following elements:

(1) Statement of specific rehabilitation plan

(21 Description of specific services to address identified treatment needs

(3) Documentation of reviews by staff and client of the treatment/ rehabilitation plan

at least
every 30 days.

(4) Anticipated length of stay needed to accomplish identified goals, and methods to
evaluate

the achievement of these goals.

(Dl lf an individual treatment/rehabilitation plan requires services to be provided by

another or agency, there shall be documented evidence in the client's case record of
communication between all persons responsible for the treatment /rehabilitation plan.

(E) The agency or program shall arrange for clients to attend community programs when

needs are identified in the treatment/ rehabilitation plan that cannot be met by the facility,

but can be met in the community

(Fl The admission assessmenf treatment/rehabilitation plan, and discharge summary shall

be prepared by staff who has received training development and preparation of these

documents.

1. Training provided for in this subsection shall consist of one or more of the following
presentation methods:

(a) Formal classroom instruction
(b) Oral presentation ;
(c) Videotape, film, or audiovisual presentation;
(d) Audio-tape presentation; or
(e) Performing the duties, on the job, under the direct supervision of the instructor

(G) Admission and discharge criteria of all programs shall be written and shall be consistent
with program goals.



(H) The program shall have written policies and procedures for orientating new clients to

the facility programs.

(l) The range of services provided shall be discussed prior to the admission with the

prospective client or an authorized representative so that program's services are clearly

understood.

v. CUENT INVowEMENT REqUIREMENTS

(Al Each client shall be involved in the development and implantation of his/her

treatment/rehabilitation Plan.

(B) Clients shall be involved, depending on capability, in the operation of the household.

This shalt include participation of the formulation and monitoring of house rules, as well as

in the daity operation of the facility, including but not limited cooking, cleaning, menu

planning and active Planning.

(C) Clients shall be encouraged to participate in program evaluations and reviews.

VI. PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT REqUIREMENTS

(AlThe program shall meet of Section 5453 (al of the Welfare and lnstittrtions (W&l)

Code.

(B) program location shall allow for access by clients to community resources and public

transportation.

UI. STAFF CHARACTERIS:NCS, qUAUFICATIONS AND DUW REqU|REMENTS

(Al The program shall meet the staffing requirements of section 5453 (bl of the Welfare and

lnstitutions Code.

(B) The program shall document the use of the multidisciplinary professional consultation

and staff when necessary to meet the specific diagnostic and treatment needs of clients.

(C) paraprofessionals and persons who have been clients of mental health services shall be

utilized as volunteers in the program when consistent with the program design and services

provided.

(D) All social rehabilitation facilities shall have a program director.



The program director shall be on the premises the number hours necessary to manage and

administerthe program component orthe facility in compliance with applicable laws and

regulations.

(E) The program director of a certified Transitional Residential Treatment Program or a

certified Long Term Residential Treatment Program shall have the following qualifications

prior to emploYment:

(1) A Bachelo/s Degree in Psychology, social work, or any other major which includes at

least 24

semester units in one or more of the following subject areas:

(a) Psychology

(b) SocialWork
(clsociology
(d) Behavioral Sciences

(e) Psychiatric Nursing; and

(2) One (1) year of full-time work experience in community program that serves clients

who have a mental illness. '

such experience must be in the direct provision of services to clients, of which four (4)

months must be in a position of supervising direct care staff.

(31 As an alternative to the Bachelor's Degree and experience required in paragraphs (1)

and (2) of this subsection, a total of three years of experience in providing direct services in

the community to persons with mental illness, of which six (6) months must be in a position

of supervising direct care staff, and graduation from high school or possession of a GED may

be substituted.

(F) All direct care staff shall have graduated from high school or possess a GED and have a

minimum or one (1) year full time experience, or its part-time equivalent, working in a

program serving people with mental disabilities,

Such experience must be in direct provision of services to clients.

lf the employee does not have the required experience, the program shall document a

specific plan of supervision and in-service training for the employee to perform the iob'

The plan should include but not be limited to the frequency and number of hours of training

the subjects to be covered, and a description of the supervision to be provided'



VII. ADMINISIRATIVE POUCES AND PROCEDURES

(A) The organizational entity legally responsible for program administration, under

applicable law and regulation, shall:

(1) Have written policies defining the purpose, goals, and services of the organization'

(2) Establish and maintain financial records in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles and annual budget'

(B) Each program shall be directed by a designated individualwho is responsible for its overall

administration and management.

(cl Each residential program shall have an individual(s) designated as the administrator of the

facility.

The program shall identifothe qualifications, experience, skills and knowledge required of

an individual who is designated the facility administrator.

These requirements shall at least satisfy the minimum requirements established by the

community care Licensing Division of the Department of Social services for this position.

(D) The agency of the program shall have a financial plan of operation that is consistent with

the goals and purpose of the organization and in accordance with generally accepted

accounting practices and legal requirements'

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENTS

The following will be required of residential facilities applying for certification as a Transitional

social Rehabilitation Facility. This will be an addition to the requirement as indicated above.

A. Staffing requirements

(1) Facilities must have psychiatric professional licensed staff either through direct

employment or contracted by the facility.

(2) Facilities must have nursing staff.

(3) Facilities must inform The county wlthin 24 hours of any staff changes that may affect this

contract.



(4) Facility will have adequate number of staffto monitor the clients during the sleeping

hours.

(5) The content of group or individual sessions shatl be within the scope of practice of the

individual providing that service.

(61 staff assigned to assist in physically restraining clients must receive prior training from

appropriate agencies.

(7) physical restraints placed on clients must be under direct supervision of a licensed mental

health professional.

B. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

(11 lf the legal owner/administrator of the facility is a Corporation, notes from meetings may

be requested by Department of Behavioral Health to the extent possible'

(2) Facilities shall have capabilities to transmit documents to and from the Department of

Behavioral Health.

(3) Confidentiality of client's records shall be maintained at altimes whether in written or

verbal fcirm in compliance with HIPPA and other federal, State or local regulations or statutes'

C. ADMINISTRANVE COMPTIANCE

(1) Administrator of Transitional Facilities shall inform the designated case managers 30 days

priorto the expiration of the Needs and Appraisal. The monthly invoicingthat CoNTRACTORS

submit to couNTY shall include a due date for each clienfs Needs and Appraisal'

(2) The Faciliry Treatment plan shall be developed and implanted within five (5) days after the

Needs and Appraisal is uPdated.

(3) The monthly summaries for each client must include progress notes from direct care staff,

licensed clinicians and psychiatrists including medication information'

(a) The facility shall develop and implement documentation demonstrating the client's

participation in astivities provided by the facility'

(5) The facility shall maintain record of the training providing to clients including attendance

of off-site day Programs.



(6) Training activities as outlined for clients shall be limited and measurable.

(71 Training for clients shall developed with the goal of stabilizingthe client in order to

transition to a lower level. Any services and training provided by the facility shall be approved

by the DBH designated case manager.

(g) Documentation shall be consistent with the goals identified in the Needs/Appraisal and

Facility Treatment Plan.

(9) Monthly notes shatl be made available to DBH staff review in a reciprocal manner between

DBH and the contracted facilitY.

D. SPECIFICSERVICES

(1) Training in hygiene and grooming may include hands-on assistance when needed'

(2) ln cases of incontinence, clients shall be physically assisted if needed'

(31 Training in budgeting shall include clients keeping and maintaining records of transactions'

(41 Clients shall be afforded the opportunity to learn cooking skills under the direction of

appropriate staff.

(5) Clients shall be encouraged o learn independent living skills with personal assistance when

warranted.

(6) Facitities shall provide special diets are prescribed by treating physician'

(7) Clients shall be trained to access support systems in the community.

(8) Facilities shall develop and implement plans for community re-integration'

(9) Facilities shall provide individual sessions to assist clients to develop appropriate skills in

social interactions using "Normal" settings.

(1O) Efforts shall be made to normalize the client's living arrangements at all times.

(11) Training shall be provided to clients to use transportation systems'

(12) Training in medication shall be provided to clients by licensed staff'



(13) lndividual sessions shall be implemented to counsel clients to attain general insight into

their mental illness by licensed staff'
ADD]TIONAL REqUNEMENTS

The contrastor for the Transitional social Rehabilitation Program will provide services for

clients who have severe and persistent mental illness who have experienced a decrease in

social functioning to the extent that they are in a crisis or need a therapeutic community to

facilitate movement to more independent living. The obiectives of the program are to

intervene in a crisis, support community integration, and severe as an alternative to

hospitalization. The goal is to rehabilitate the client in order to decrease the need for future

hospitalizations.

I. TRANSMONAL PROGRAM

To be certified as a Transitional social Rehabilitation Program, facility shall provide: A

therapeutic residential community including a range of social rehabilitation activities for

individuats who are in remission from an acute stage of illness' and interim support to

facilitate movement towards the highest possible level of functioning. clients may receive

day,outpatientandothertreatmentservicesoutsidethetransitionalresidence.Theplanned
length of stay shatl be in accordance with the client's assessed needs' but under no

circumstances maythe length of stay extend beyond 18 months'

Additional staff shall be on duty program hours to provide specialized services and structured

evening services. when there is onty one (1) staff on premises there needs to be staff on call

who can report for duty within 60 minutes after being contacted if needed' The staffing ratio

isone(1}fulltimestaffto2.5clients.TheTransitionatprogramisdesignedforclientswhoare
discharged from or are being admitted to State Mental Hospitals' lMDs or locked MHRG'

II. ADMISSION CRITERIA

Transitionalsocial Rehabilitation Program is an intense, high expectation program designed

to assist a person to deverop serf-herp ski[s thatwiil enabre them to function independently in

the community. The following is the admission criteria:

1. Alt clients must have received treatment or evaluation prior to admission and

haveacurrentopenmentalhealthchartwiththecountyofrecord.
2. All clients will have primary diagnosis of mental disability. (The psychiatric

diagnosis must reflect a severe, persistent mental illness or a maladaptive reaction

to a mental heahh crisis. The primary diagnosis cannot be dementia' mental

retardation, or substance abuse/dependence)'



3. Clients must be behnreen the ages of 18 and older.

4. Clients must be recovered from acute psychiatric symptoms, such as being

injurious to self or others, and/or destructive of property.

5. Clients must be in need of residential treatment services to assist them gain the
ability to function in a less restrictive living situation.



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ANNE SIPPICLINIC TREATMENT GROUP

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 71112022

See Attached Schedule of Fees.

TO 613012023

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 9 of 10
0712612019



6 61"- Nr?fr.

SC
TREAIMENT GROUP

Usual & Customary Daily Rate Sheet

ASelIinic
2457 Endicott Street
Los Angeles, CA 90032

Rrvcrsxlc xauch
18200 Highway 178

Bakersfield, CA 93306

Two Hundred Twenty Dollars ($220.00) per day

Services include but are not limited to:

'i* Screening/ Admission Assessments
i" Individualized Treatment and Care Plans

"l', Medication review by Medical Director & multi-disciplinary
Treatment Team

,i' Group Therapy Services/ Individual Therapy
* Community Outings & Re-Integration
* Educational Groups
* Contracted Day Services Programs

"3, Court & Conservatorship Evaluations/ Testimonies
* Referral Services
{" Quarterly IPP reviews
"1,' Summary Behavioral Reports
.i. Local Transportation to Appointments

Approved by Board Directors I lanvary,2022



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND ANNE SIPPICLINIC TREATMENT GROUP

FORTHE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FRoM:71112022 TO 613012023

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 10of10
07t26t2019



Attachment C= 2O22Insurance Requirements for Professional Services
Services related to transitional social rehabilitation

Contractorshall procureandmaintainforthedurationof thecontractinsuranceagainstclaimsforinjuries
to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the
work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees,

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1,. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an
"occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury
and personal& advertising injury with limits no less than S1,000,000 per occurrence, S3,O0O,OOO
general aggregate limit. For contracts involving work with or service to minors (i.e., people under
the age of 18 in California), sexual assault and misconduct ("SAM") coverage is required with limits
no less than those listed in this paragraph for other types of loss. The general liability policy shall
contain, or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. Proof of additional insured status
must be submitted along with a certificate of insurance showing general liability coverage limits.
See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less

than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision moy be woived
with signed letter on controctor's letterheod certifying that no outo or mobile equipment will be
used for/during the execution of the controct. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. Provision moy be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying
thot contractor hos no employees. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) lnsurance appropriate to the Contractor's
profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 53,000,000 aggregate.
Check with Risk Management if Professional Liability is required for the contract to which these
requirements are attached.

5. Cyber (sometimes known as "security and privacy'') Liability lnsurance, with limits not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 policy aggregate. Coverage shall be sufficiently
broad to respond to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement
and shall include, but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property,
including but not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy
violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The
policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties
as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.
Professional liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage.

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, lnyo
County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the
contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for Specialized Professional Services 2O2206t5



Attachment C= 2022 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services
Services related to transitional social rehabilitation

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Additional Insured Status: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in

connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an
endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 IO tL 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later
edition is used).

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20OL041-3 as respects lnyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by lnyo County,
its officers, officials, employees, orvolunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not
contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrello or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
"following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying
Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional lnsureds,
whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to
contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Notice of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be

canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

Woiver of Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss

under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has received a

waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County. lnyo
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention,
The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be

satisfied by eitherthe named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess liability
policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds 525,000 unless
approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole responsibility of
Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the lndemnified
Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund
the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SlR) provision that limits the
satisfaction of the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense costs, including the

2022 Counly of lnyo lnsurance Standards for Specialized Professional Services 20220615



Attachment C= 2O22 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services
Services related to transitional social rehabilitation

Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. lnyo County reserves the right to
obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification,

Acceptability of lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the
state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Made Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
L. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of

contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years
after completion of the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with
a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase "extended
reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verilication ol Coverage: Contractor shall furnish lnyo County with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and Endorsements
pages are to be received ad approved by lnyo County before work commences. However, failure to obtain
the required documents priorto the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's obligation to provide
them. lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance
policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. lnyo County reserves the
right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience,
insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all
the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that lnyo County is an additional insured on
insurance required from subcontractors.

Duration ol Coverage; CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not
limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance
must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

Special Risks or Circumstonces: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.
-end-

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for Specialized Professional Services 20220615



COUNTY OF INYO
HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Business Associate Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and between the Inyo County Health and

Human Seruices Behavioral Health Division, referred to herein as Covered Entity ("CE'), and Anne Sippi
Clinic Treatment Group , referred to herein as Business Associate ("8A"). This Agreement is effective as

of Julv 1,2022 , (the "Agreement Effective Date")

RECITALS

CE wishes to disclose certain information to BA pursuant to the terms of the contract between BA and the

California Institute of Mental Health ("CIMH"), herein referred to as ("Contract"), some of which may

constitute Protected Health Information ("PHI") defined below.

CE and BA intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI disclosed to BA pursuant to
the Contract in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public
Law 104-191 ("HIPAA"), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
Public Law 111-005 ("the HITECH Act"), and regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws.

As part of the HIPAA Regulations, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule (defined below) require CE to
enter into a contract containing specific requirements with BA prior to the disclosure of PHI, as set forth
in, but not limited to, Title 45, Sections 164.314(a), 164.502(e) and 164.504(e) of the Code of Federal
Regulations ("C.F.R.") and contained in this Agreement.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this
Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions

a. Breach shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act [42 U.S.C. Section
t792tl.

b. Business Associate shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, the
Security Rule, and the HITECH Act, including but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17938 and
45 C.F.R. Section 160.103.

c. Covered Entity shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule and the
Security Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 160.103.

d. Data Aggregation shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including,
but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

e. Designated Record Set shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule,
including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

f. Electronic Protected Health Information means Protected Health Information that is
maintained in or transmitted by electronic media.



g. Electronic Health Record shall have the meaning given to such term in the HITECT Act,
including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17921.

h. Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule,
including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164,
Subparts A and E.

j. Protected Health Information or PHI means any information, whether oral or recorded in any
form or medium: (i) that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an
individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present or future payment for
the provision of health care to an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect
to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identif the
individual, and shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but
not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501. Protected Health Information includes Electronic
Protected Health Information [45 C.F.R. Sections 160.103, 164.501].

k. Protected Information shall mean PHI provided by CE to BA or created or received by BA on
CE's behalf.

l. Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164,
Subparts A and C.

m. Unsecured PHI shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act and any
guidance issued pursuant to such Act including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17932(h).

2. Obligations of Business Associate

a. Permitted Uses. BA shall not use Protected Information except for the purpose of performing
BA's obligations under the Contract and as permitted under the Contract and Agreement. Further,
BA shall not use Protected Information in any manner that would constitute a violation of the
Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act if so used by CE. However, BA may use Protected Information
(i) for the proper management and administration of BA, (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities
of BA, or (iii) for Data Aggregation purposes for the Health Care Operations of CE [45 C.F.R.
S ections t 64.s 0 4(e)(2XiiXA) and 1 64. 5 04(eX+Xi)1.

b. Permitted Disclosures. BA shall not disclose Protected Information except for the purpose of
performing BA's obligations under the Contract and as permitted under the Contract and
Agreement. BA shall not disclose Protected Information in any manner that would constitute a
violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act if so disclosed by CE. However; BA may
disclose Protected Information (i) for the proper management and administration of BA; (ii) to
carry out the legal responsibilities of BA; (iii) as required by law; or (iv) for Data Aggregation
purposes for the Health Care Operations of CE. If BA discloses Protected Information to a third
party, BA must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable written assurances
from such third party that such Protected Information will be held confidential as provided
pursuant to this Agreement and only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for which
was disclosed to such third party, and (ii) a written agreement from such third party to
immediately notifr BA of any breaches of confidentiality of the Protected Information, to the
extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach [42 U.S.C. Section 17932;45 C.F.R. Sections
t6a.s0a@)QXD, 164.s04(e)(2)(i)(B), 16a.s0a@)QXiiXA) and 164.504(e)(a)(ii)1.

l.

2



c Prohibited Uses and Disclosures. BA shall not use or disclose Protected Information for
fundraising or marketing purposes. BA shall not disclose Protected Information to a health plan
for payment or health care operations purposes ifthe patient has requested this special restriction,
and has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI solely
relates [42 U.S.C. Section 17935(a)]. BA shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in
exchange for Protected Information, except with the prior written consent of CE and as permitted
by the HITECH AcL, 42 U.S.C. section 17935(d)(2); however, this prohibition shall not affect
payment by CIMH to BA for services provided pursuant to the Contract.

d. Appropriate Safeguards. BA shall implement appropriate safeguards as are necessary to prevent
the use or disclosure of Protected Information otherwise than as permitted by the Contract that
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidenliality, integrity and availability ofthe Protected
Information, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. Sections 164.308, 164.310, and 164.312. [45 C.F.R.
Section 16a.50a@)Q)(iiXS); 45 C.F.R. Section 164.308(b)1. BA shall comply with the policies
and procedures and documentation requirements of the HIPAA Security Rule, including, but not
limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.316. [42 U.S.C. Section 17931].

e. Reporting of Improper Access, Use or Disclosure. BA shall report to CE in writing of any
access, use or disclosure of Protected Information not permitted by the Contract and Agreement,
and any Breach of Unsecured PHI of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in
no case later than ten (10) calendar days after discovery [42 U.S.C. Section 17921;45 C.F.R.
Section 1 6a.504(e)(2XiiXC); 45 C. F.R. Section I 64.308(b)1.

f. Business Associate's Agents. BA shall ensure that any agents, including subcontractors, to
whom it provides Protected Information, agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions
that apply to BA with respect to such PHI and implement the safeguards required by paragraph c
above with respect to Electronic PHI [45 C.F.R. Section fta.50a@)QXiiXD); 45 C.F.R. Section
164.308(b)1. BA shall implement and maintain sanctions against agents and subcontractors that
violate such restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation (see 45
C.F.R. Sections 164.530(f) and 164.530(e)(1)).

g. Access to Protected Information. BA shall make Protected Information maintained by BA or its
agents or subcontractors in Designated Record Sets available to CE for inspection and copying
within ten (10) days of a request by CE to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy
Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524 [45 CF.R. Section
ft4.50a@)QXiiXE)1. If BA maintains an Electronic Health Record, BA shall provide such
information in electronic format to enable CE to fuIfilI its obligations under the HITECH Act,
including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(e).

h. Amendment of PHI. Within ten (10) days of receipt of a request from CE for an amendment of
Protected Information or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, BA
or its agents or subcontractors shall make such Protected Information available to CE for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the
Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.526. If any individual requests
an amendment of Protected Information directly from BA or its agents or subcontractors, BA
must notify CE in writing within five (5) days of the request. Any approval or denial of
amendment of Protected Information maintained by BA or its agents or subcontractors shall be
the responsibility of CE [45 C.F.R. Section 164.50a@)Q)GiXF)].

i. Accounting Rights. Within ten (10) days of notice by CE of a request for an accounting of
disclosures of Protected Information, BA and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to
CE the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable CE to fulfill its

J



obligations under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.528, and
the HITECH Act, including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(c), as determined by CE.
BA agrees to implement a process that allows for an accounting to be collected and maintained by
BA and its agents or subcontractors for at least six (6) years prior to the request. However,
accounting of disclosures from an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment or health care
operations purposes are required to be collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to
the request, and only to the extent that BA maintains an electronic health record and is subject to
this requirement. At a minimum, the information collected and maintained shall include: (i) the
date of disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who received Protected Information and, if
known, the address of the entity or person; (iii) a brief description of Protected Information
disclosed and (iv) a brief statement of purpose of the disclosure that reasonably informs the
individual of the basis for the disclosure, or a copy of the individuals' authorization, or a copy of
the written request for disclosure. In the event that the request for an accounting is delivered
directly to BA or its agents or subcontractors, BA shall within five (5) days of a request forward it
to CE in writing. It shall be CE's responsibility to prepare and deliver any such accounting
requested. BA shall not disclose any Protected Information except as set forth in Sections 2.b. of
this Agreement [45 C.F.R. Sections 164.50a@)(2xiD(c) and 165.528].

j. Governmental Access to Records. BA shall make its intemal practices, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of Protected Information available to CE and to the Secretary of
the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the "Secretary") for purposes of determining
BA's compliance with the Privacy Rule [45 C.F.R. Section rca.50a@)QXiDF)]. BA shall
provide to CE a copy of any Protected Information that BA provides to the Secretary concurrently
with providing such Protected Information to the Secretary.

k. Minimum Necessary. BA (and its agents or subcontractors) shall request, use and disclose only
the minimum amount of Protected Information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the
request, use, or disclosure. [42 U.S.C. Section 17935(b);45 C.F.R. Section 164.514(dX3)] BA
understands and agrees that the definition of "minimum necessary" is in flux and shall keep itself
informed of guidance issued by the Secretary with respect to what constitutes "minimum
necessary."

l. Data Ownership. BA acknowledges that BA has no ownership rights with respect to the
Protected Information.

m. Notification of Breach. During the term of the Contract, BA shall notify CE within twenty-four
(24) hours of any suspected or actual breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or
disclosure of PHI of which BA becomes aware and/or any actual or suspected use or disclosure of
data in violation of any applicable federal or state laws or regulations. BA shall take (i) prompt
corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and (ii) any action pertaining to such unauthorized
disclosure required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

n. Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 17934(b), if the
BA knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the CE that constitutes a material breach or
violation of the CE's obligations under the Contract or Agreement or other arrangement, the BA
must take reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation. If the steps are unsuccessful,
the BA must terminate the Contract or other arrangement if feasible, or if termination is not
feasible, report the problem to the Secretary of DHHS. BA shall provide written notice to CE of
any pattern of activity or practice of the CE that BA believes constitutes a material breach or
violation of the CE's obligations under the Contract or Agreement or other arrangement within
five (5) days of discovery and shall meet with CE to discuss and attempt to resolve the problem as

one ofthe reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation.

4



Audits, Inspection and Enforcement. Within ten (10) days of a written request by CE, BA and
its agents or subcontractors shall allow CE to conduct a reasonable inspection of the facilities,
systems, books, records, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use or disclosure of
Protected Information pursuant to this Agreement for the purpose of determining whether BA has
complied with this Agreement; provided, however, that (i) BA and CE shall mutually agree in
advance upon the scope, timing and location of such an inspection, and (ii) CE shall protect the
confidentiality of all confidential and proprietary information of BA to which CE has access
during the course ofsuch inspection. The fact that CE inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right
to inspect, BA's facilities, systems, books, records, agreements, policies and procedures does not
relieve BA of its responsibility to comply with this Agreement, nor does CE's (i) failure to detect
or (ii) detection, but failure to notiff BA or require BA's remediation of any unsatisfactory
practices, constitute acceptance of such practice or a waiver of CE's enforcement rights under the
Contract or Agreement. BA shall notiff CE within ten (10) days of learning that BA has become
the subject of an audit, compliance review, or complaint investigation by the Office for Civil
Rights.

3. Termination

a. Material Breach. A breach by BA of any provision of this Agreement, as determined by CE,
shall constitute a material breach of the Contract and shall provide grounds for immediate
termination of the Contract, any provision in the Contract to the contrary notwithstanding. [45
C.F.R. Section 1 6a.50a(e)(2)(iii)1.

b. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. CE may terminate the Contract, effective immediately,
if (D BA is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, the HIPAA Regulations or other security or privacy laws or (ii) a finding or stipulation that
the BA has violated any standard or requirement of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA
Regulations or other security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in
which the party has been joined.

Effect of Termination. Upon termination of the Contract for any reason, BA shall, at the option
of CE, return or destroy all Protected Information that BA or its agents or subcontractors still
maintain in any form, and shall retain no copies of such Protected Information. If return or
destruction is not feasible, as determined by CE, BA shall continue to extend the protections of
Section 2 of this Agreement to such information, and limit further use of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction of such PHI infeasible. [45 C.F.R. Section
164.504(e)(iD(2(l)1. If CE elects destruction of the PHI, BA shall certify in writing to CE that
such PHI has been destroyed.

4. Disclaimer

CE makes no warranty or representation that compliance by BA with this Agreement, HIPAA, the
HITECH Act, or the HIPAA Regulations will be adequate or satisfactory for BA's own purposes. BA is
solely responsible for all decisions made by BA regarding the safeguarding of PHI.

5. Amendment

The parties acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to data security and privacy are rapidly
evolving and that amendment of the Contract of Agreement may be required to provide for procedures to
ensure compliance with such developments. The parties specifically agree to take such action as is
necessary to implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule,
the Security Rule, and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality of PHI. The parties
understand ad agree that CE must receive satisfactory written assurance from BA that BA will adequately

o

c

5



safeguard all Protected Information. Upon the request of either party, the other party agrees to promptly
enter into negotiations concerning the terms of an amendment to this Agreement embodying written
assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule,
the Security Rule or other applicable laws. CE may tenninate the Contact upon thirty (30) days written
noJice in the event (i) BA does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend the Contract or Agrcement
when requested by CE pursuant to this Section or (ii) BA does not enter not enter into an amendment to
the Conffact or Agreement providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of PHI that CE, in its sole
discretion, deems sufficient to satisff the standards and requirements of applicable laws.

6. Assistance in Litigation of Administrative proceedings

BA shall make itself, and any subconkactors, employees or agents assisting BA in the performance of its
obligations under the Contract or Agreement, available to CE, at no cost toCE, to testiff as witnesses, or
otherwise, in the event of litigation or adminishative proceedings being commenced against CE, its
directors, offtcers or employees based upon a claimed violation of HIPAA by the BA, the HffECH Act,
the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, or other laws relating to security and privacy, except where BA or its
subcontractor, employee or agent is named adverse party.

7. No Third-Party Beneficiaries

Nothing express or implied in the Conhact or Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall anything herein
confer, upon any person other than CE, BA and their respective successors or assigns, any rights,
remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

8. Effect on Contract

Except as specifically required to implement the purposes of this Agreement, or to the extent inconsistent
with this Agreement, all other terms of the Conkact shall remain in full force and effect.

9. Interpretation

The provisions of this Agreement shall prevail over any provisions in the Contact that may conflict or
appeal inconsistent with any provision in this Agreement. This Agreement and the Contract shall be
intgrnreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy
Rule and the Security Rule. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in
favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and
the SecurityRule.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the Agreement
Effective Date.

COVERED ENTITY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

County of Inyo

By:

Print Name: Dan Totheroh Print AI.c r<- 6 \rr r CLr

Title: Chairperson Title: t
fT

t

Date; 0612812022

6

Date: 2 2



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3821  

 

Appointments to the ESAAA Advisory Council 
Health & Human Services - ESAAA 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Appoint Rebecca J. Manross to the Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) Advisory Council 
to an unexpired two-year term ending December 31, 2023, and B) appoint Joel Ryan to the ESAAA 
Advisory Council to an unexpired two-year term ending December 31, 2024.   
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
An Area Agency on Aging (AAA) is required by statute to have an Advisory Council. The purpose of the 
Advisory Council, pursuant to Section 9402 of the Older Californians Act, is to be "a principal advocate 
body on behalf of older individuals within a planning and service area," and "shall provide advice and 
consultation on issues affecting the provision of services provided locally to older individuals." Your 
Board adopted By-laws in October 2012 for the ESAAA Advisory Council with a membership of nine (9), 
including one Board of Supervisors member, appointed annually. The Council had an additional two 
vacancies occur following the resignation of one member and the death of another member, resulting in 
a total of four vacant positions.  The Department has received two letters of interest from community 
members and is continuing to recruit for the remaining two positions.  The letters of interest were 
reviewed by the ESAAA Advisory Council at their meeting of June 14, 2023 and the Council voted to 
recommend to your Board the appointment of the two community members.  The following applicants 
and their identified membership category are submitted for your review: 
  

Name County of 
Residency 

60 yrs 
+ 

Low 
Income 

Supportive 
Service 
Provider 

Health 
Care 

Provider 

Family 
Caregiver 

Private or 
Volunteer 

Leader 

Disabled Other 

Joel Ryan Inyo    X  X   
Rebecca J. 
Manross 

Mono  x     x   

  
The department respectfully requests your Board appoint both Mr. Ryan and Ms. Manross to unexpired 
terms on the ESAAA Advisory Council with Ms. Manross' term expiring December 31, 2023 and Mr. 
Ryan's expiring December 31, 2024.    
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 There is no financial impact associated with this agenda item. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Should your Board decide not to make the appointments as recommended, the ESAAA Advisory 
Council, a 9 member body, would continue to function with 4 vacancies and would have difficulty 
establishing a quorum should a member be unable to attend a meeting. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 6/5/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/6/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 6/9/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3837  

 

Amendment No. 3 to TeleConnect Therapies Contract 
Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lucy Vincent Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and TeleConnect Therapies of 
Avalon, CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $399,040 and extending the term end 
date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
As the contracted Mental Health Plan, we are required to have a certain number of therapists available to 
provide services to our clients.  We have been contracting with TeleConnect Therapies since January 1, 
2021, due to unfilled vacancies.  The Department is requesting approval of the extension of this contract 
while we continue to recruit and hire the staff required to meet the requirements of our contract with the 
Department of Health Care Services. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Mental Health Realignment and Mental Health 
MediCal 

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could decide not to approve this contract amendment with TeleConnect Therapies and we 
would have to put clients on a wait list until we have staff hired and trained.  It would also impact our 
ability to meet network adequacy standards required by the State of California. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. TeleConnect Therapies Contract Amendment No. 3  
  
APPROVALS: 
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 6/5/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/5/2023 
Lucy Vincent Approved - 6/5/2023 
Kimball Pier Approved - 6/8/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/13/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/13/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/13/2023 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/14/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 
   

   

AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO THE  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

TELECONNECT THERAPIES  
FOR THE PROVISION OF TELETHERAPY SERVICES 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Teleconnect Therapies 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Residential 
Treatment Services dated March 16, 2022, for the term from January 2, 2022 to June 30, 2022. 
 
 WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 WHEREAS, the original contract dated March 16, 2022 has previously been amended twice.  
Among other modifications, these prior amendments have extended the Term of the original contract to 
June 30, 2023. 
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 
 
Paragraph 2 (Term) shall be amended to extend the term of the Agreement until June 30, 2024. 
 
Paragraph 3(D) (Limit upon amount payable under Agreement) shall be amended to increase the not to 
exceed amount to Three Hundred Thirty-Nine Thousand Forty Dollars ($339,040). 
 
Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new Schedule of 
Fees, which is attached hereto.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is  ________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 
 





Page 3 
  
  

 

ATTACHMENT B 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO THE  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

TELECONNECT THERAPIES  
FOR THE PROVISION OF TELETHERAPY SERVICES 

 
TERM: 

FROM:  JULY 1, 2022   TO: JUNE 30, 2024 
 

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 
 

Scope of Work Schedule of Fees 
Initial Assessment or Reassessment of patient, including: 
*Review of referral source information and pre-visit 
PHQ9/PHQA, GAD-7, and/or PSC-35 results; 
*50-60- minute Face to Face biopsychosocial interview 
with patient, with some simultaneous EHR documentation 
 

$132 

*Up to 90-minutes additional time to complete written 
initial biopsychosocial assessment report, or reassessment 
report, including medical necessity documentation, in EHR 

$132 
(Charge pertains only to initial 
assessments NOT associated with 
ongoing therapy provided by same 
therapist). 

2nd Initial Assessment or Re-assessment patient visit-45-60 
minutes face to face with patient, and up to 30-additional 
minutes for completion of report in EHR; 
 
To be pre-approved by ICDHHS only for complex cases 
not able to be thoroughly assessed or reassessed within one 
visit. 

$132 

Mental Health Therapy: Including 50-60 minute remote 
face to face time with patient (Minimum 40-minutes with 
children), and up to 30-additional minutes completing 
session progress notes, and/or treatment plans in EHR as 
required. 

$132 

Therapy discharge summary or patient transfer summary 
including review of chart, documentation in EHR and any 
required collaboration with new therapist 

$66 

QA Clinical Chart Review including system review, 
thorough clinical review, and written report to PIQA 
Manger (up to 90-minutes) 

$132 

QA Clinical Chart Review- each additional 30-minutes to 
complete review and report 

$66 

Patient “No-Show” in which the patient does not show for 
a scheduled appointment and does not cancel the 
appointment prior to the scheduled appointment time.  

$66 
(Billing by Contractor to be limited 
to 1 for each 4-hour block of time 



Page 4 
  
  

 

scheduled) 
Therapist attendance at County-required trainings, 
including EHR, documentation, cultural competency, 
and/or other required trainings or meetings, per hour. 

$75 

 
 



County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, thatal a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 3rd day of January 2023 an order was duly made and entered

as follows

In tlte Rooms of the Boatd of Supewircrs

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Marcellin to approve
Amendment No, 2 to the contract between the County of lnyo and TeleConnect Therapies
of Avalon, California, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $199,040,
representing an increase of $70,000 to the contract, and extending the term end date from
1213112022 to 613012023, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
TeleConnect
Therapies
Amendment No. 2

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

cAo
Other HHS
DATE: January 11,2023

I'IrITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 3''d

Day ofJanuary,2023

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supentisors

'uB),,





3rd January 2023

01/03/2023

N/A



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND TELECONNECT TIIERAPIES
FOR THE PROVISION OF'TELETHERAPY SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July 1,2022 TA: Deccmber 31,2il22

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Altachments B & C toAmendment 1 to
Contract between County of lnyo and

Telecon Therapies of Avalon

Scope of Work Schedule of Fees

lnitial Assessment or Reassessment of patient,
including:

*Review of referral source information and pre-visit
PHQ9/PHQA, GAD-7, and/or PSC-35 results;
*50-60- minute Face to Face biopsychosocial

interview with patient, with sorne simultaneous EHR

documentation

Srsz

'Up to 90-minutes additional time to complete
written initial biopsychosocial assessment report, or

reassessment report, including medical necessity
documentation, in EHR

S132

znd lnitial Assessment or Re-assessment patient
visit-45-60 minutes face to face with patient, and up
to 30-additional minutes for completion of report in

EHR;

Io be pre-approved by ICDHHS only for complex
cases not able to be thoroughly assessed or

reassessed within one visit.

$rrz

Mental Health Therapy: lncluding 50-50 minute
remote face to face time with patient (Minimum 40-

minutes with children), and up to 30-additional
minutes completing session progress notes in EHR

as required.

$rrz

Therapy Treatmenl Plan, Discharge Summary or
patient Transfer Summary including review of chart,

documentation in EHR and any required
collaboration

S66

o5t2112019



LV JV-t I I

ClinicalAA ReviewChart systemincluding review,
clinicalthorough writtenandreview, toreport PIQA

Srrz

QA Clinical.Chart Review- each additional 3&
m to review and

$oe

in which the patient doei not
show for a scheduled appointment and does not
cancel the appointment prior to the sch6duled

Patient "No.Shot r"

time.

Seo
(Billing by Contractor to be limited to 1 tor each 4-

hour block of time
at County-req uired trainings,

including IHR, documentation, cultural
an other hour.

Therapist attendance

competency,
s75

Attachments B & C to Amendment 1 to
Contract between County of lnyo and

Telecon Therapies oi Avalon
05121t20't9



I' HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative center in Independence on the l4th day of June 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

In tlte Rooms of the Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

llove! by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by $upervisor Griffiths to approve Amendment No.1 to the agreement between the County of-lnyo and Teleconnect therapies of Avalon, cA,
qqe_a_slng the contract to an amount not to exceed $129,040, representing an increase of
$70'000 to the contract, and extending the term end date from June gO, ZOzZto December 31,
2A2.2, .contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-2029 Budget, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures neinttotaineo.
Motion carried unanimously.

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
Teleconnect
Therapies Contract
Amendment 1

lltlTNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this l4th
poy ofJung_Z02l

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk otthe Board of Snpemisors

{d;'X U'vf,t,/ta*"

Bpvllts

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Otber: HHS
DATE: June 15,2022

By:



AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

TELECONNECT THERAPIES OF AVALON, CALIFORNIA
FOR THE PROVISION OF PSYCHOTHERAPY VIA TELEIT/|EDICINE

WHEREAS, the Coun$ of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County') and Teleconnect rherapies
of Avalon, California (hereinafter rereireo to as "Contractori, nave entereo into an egreemlnt for the
floyigi-o1 or psychotherapy via telemedicine dated Marcir $, niz,rorthe term from 1fi12a22:p
613A12022.

WHEREAS, county and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreemant as set forthbelow;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, orsubtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendmeni or chinge is in writtenform, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreeme"t, 
"iio "itJ"i"ol;il"f,j;r"tAgreementto maintain continuity.

NoW' THEREFORE, County and Gontractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

1' Paragraph 2 0f the Agreement shail be revised as foilows:

"The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, zA2Z to December 3,l, Z1ZZ unlesssooner terminated as provided below. Term may be extended by mutuai*iitt"n consent ofthe parties as described under the AMENDMENT section of this nfireemenf.; 
-

2' Paragraph I ?-oltf'-" Agreement shall be revised to increase the not-to-exceed amount from
$59,040 to $129,040 (one hundred twenty nine thousano forty dollars)

3' Attachment B.shall be replaced with the attached Attachment B. The revised Attachment Bincreases the hourly fee from $12b.00 per hour to $132.00 per hour.

4. The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1, 2022.

All the other lerms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same"

IS|GNATURE PAGE FOLLOWSI

County of lnyo Standard Contract Amendment
page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTYOF INYOAND

TELEGONNECT THERAPIES OF AVALON, CALIFORNIA
FOR THE PROVISION OF PSYCHOTTIERAPY VIA TELEMEDICINE

THEREOF, THE PARTIES HE
June

RETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
2022

R

Dated: 0612312022
gnature

By:By:

23rd
IN WTNESS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO

APPROVED LEGALITY:

AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

County

s
Type or

Oated: Lpl a) L7-

County of lnyo Standard Contract Amendment
page 2

o



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TELECONNECT THERAPIES

FOR THE PROVISION OF TELETHERAPY SERVICES

|ERM:

FROM: July 1, 2822 T(Jl. December 31,2A22

SCHEDULE OT FEES:

Attachments B & C to Amendment 1 to
Contract between County of lnyo and

Telecon Therapies of Avalon

Scope of Work Schedule of Fees
lnitial Assessment or Reassessment of patient,

including:
*Review of referral soutce information and pre-visit

PHQ9/PHQA, 6AD-7, and/or PSC-35 results;
'i50-50- minute Face to Face biopsychosocial

interview with patient, with some simultaneous EHR

documentation

5rrz

*Up to 90-minutes additional time to complete
written initial biopsychosocial assessment report, or

reassessment report, including medical necessity
documentation, in EHR

Srsz

znd lnitial Assessment or Re-assessment patient
visit-45-60 minutes face to face wlth patient. and up
to 30-additional minutes for completion of report in

EHR;

To be pre-approved by ICDHHS only for complex
cases not able to be thoroughly assessed or

reassessed within one visit,

S132

Mental Health Therapy: lncluding 50-60 minute
remote face to face tlme with patient (Minimum 40-

minutes with children), and up to 3O-additional
minutes completing session progress notes in EHR

as required.

S132

Therapy Treatment Plan. Discharge Summary or
patient Transfer Summary including review of chart,

documentation in EHR and any required
collaboration

5eo

45t21t2019



QA Clinical Chart Review including system review,
thorough clinical review, and written report to pleA

Manger (up tq g0-minutesl

$132

OA Clinical Chart Review- each additional 30-
minutes to review and

$oo

Patient "No-Show" in which the patient does not
show for a scheduled appointment and does not
cancel the appointment prior to the scheduled

time.

5es
(Billing by Contractor to be limited to 1 for each 4-

hour block of time
Therapist attendance at County-required train ings,

including EHR, documentation, cultural competency,
other hour

$zs

Attachments B & C to Amendment 1 to
Contr€ct between County of lnyo and

Telecon Therapies of Avalon
a5121t2A19



In the Rnms of the Board of Sltpewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I' HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the county Administrative centcr in Independence on the 2l" dayof December202lan order was duly

made and entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
Teleconnect
Therapies Contract

Moved by Supervisor Roeser and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to approve the agreementbetwgq the County of lnyo and Teleconnect Theiapies of Avalon, CA for the pr;visi; ofpsychotherapy via telemedicine in an amount not to exceed $59,040 for tne perioi oi i"nu.rv1,2022.through June 30, 2022 and authorize the Chairpeison to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried'unanimouslf 4-0, witi suplrvisor
Kingsley absent.

IITITNESS my hand and the seal ol said Board this 2 ft
oayolDecember. 2021

LESLIE L, CHAPMAN
Clerk ofthe Board ofsupentisors

ffi
frrtuX. A4,al,rrtar"-

fouting

cc
Purclnslng
Personpl
Audllor
cAo
Olher. HHS
DATE: January 5, 2022

Ry:



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TELECONNECT THERAPIES

FOR THE PROVISION OF TETETHERAPY SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County,') may have
theneedfortheteletherapvservicesof@(hereinafterreferredto
as "contractor')' and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shallfurnish to the County, upon its request, those services and
work set forth inAttachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.
Requests by the County to the Contraetor to perform under this Agreement will be
made by Marilvn Mann.,whose title is Director. Requests to the Contractor for work or
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the county,s need
for such services. The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any
minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Contractor by the
County under this Agreement. county by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all,
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this
Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this
Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards
established by applicable federal, state, and county laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions include, but are not limited
to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2, TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be fromJsnlary 2J0Z_

1

to .fu e3O 2



unless sooner terminated as provided below. Term may be extended by mutual
written consent of the parties as described under AMENDMENT section of this
agreement.

3. GONSIDERATION.

A' 9ompeneationr County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the
Schedule of Fees (set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in
Attachment A which are performed by contractor at the county,s request.

B' Travel and Per Diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel
expenses or per diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested
by County under this Agreement.

C' No Additional Consideration. Except as expressly provided in this
Agreement, Contractor shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional
consideration' compensation, salary, wages,or other type of remuneration for services
rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shall notbentiled, by virtue of
this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays,
or other paid leavesof absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. The total sum of all
payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work performed under
this Agreement shall not exceed Fiftpnine Thousands and forty Dollars ($bg,040)
(hereinafter referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny
any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and Pavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a
month, an itemized statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which
were done at the County's request. Thisstatementwillbe submitted to the County not later
than the fifth (sth) day of the month, The statement to be submitted will cover the period
from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last day of the
preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work
were performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed

2



on each day. Upon timely receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month,
county shall make payment to contractor on the last day of the month.

F. Federaland State Taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not
withhold any federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments
made by County to Contractor under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

(21 County will withhold California State income taxes from payments
made under this Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Contractor under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars ($1,4gg.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold
any taxes or payments from sums paid by county to contractor under this
Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is the sole
responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The totalamounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld
from payments lo non-California residents, if any, will be repoiled annually to the
lnternal Revenue Service and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To
facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
lnternal Revenue service (rRS) Form w-g upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORK SCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work
identified in Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by
contractor that the perlormance of these services and work will require a varied
schedule. contractor will arrange hislher own schedule but willcoordinate with county
to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will be
pedormed within the time frame set forth by County, Contractor therapists shall have
four (4) scheduled weeks off per year, for which County will not be charged. Time off
will be scheduled with county at least 1-month in advance.

3



5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state,
county, municipalgovernments, for contractor to provide the services and work described
in Attachment A must be procured by Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor
enters into this Agreement or as othena/se may be required. Further, during the term of
this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full
force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to,
driver's licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such
licenses, certificates, and permits will beprocured and maintained in force by Contractor at

n0 expense to the County. Contractor will provide County, upon execution of this
Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute
between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are
required to perform the services identified inAttachment A, County reserves the right to
make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation
in covered transactions by any federal depaftment or agency. Contractor also
warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving federalfunds as listed in
the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non- procurement programs

issued by the General Services Administration available at: http:l/vrnruw.sam.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQUtpltrENT, STAFF, ET CETERA.

County shall provide and maintain all videoconferencing equipment and office
space at the clinic (originating) site and will provide a safe environment for the provision

of teletherapy services to patients as outlined in Aftachment A in this Agreement. County
shall designate an onsite County staff person to assist the mutual Countylcontractor
patients as necessary before, during and afterteletherapy appointments. Contractor shall
provide at the provider (distant) such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles,
reference materials, and telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the
services identified in AttachmentA to this Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse

4



or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by Contractor in procuring or
maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by Contractor

in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. Personal Fropertv of Counly. Any personal property such as, but not

limited to, protective orsafety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to

Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this

Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County. Contractor will use

reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain sueh items while they are in

Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage

to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of Contractols Work and Servicse. Any and all

compositions, publications, plans, designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas,
processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer programs, computer disks,
computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks,

copyrights, or intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced,

assembled, compiled by, or are the result, product, or manifestation of, Contractor's

services or work underthis Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain,

the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,

Contractor will convey possession and tifle to allsuch properties to County.

8. INSURANCE"

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain

insurance of the scopeand amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions

specified in that attachment.

5



9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the
performance of this Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not
as agents, officers, or employees of County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has
no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of County. Except as expressly
provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to exercise any
rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is
to be considered an employee of County, lt is understood by both Contractor and County
that this Agreement shall not under any circumstances be construed or considered to
create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venlure. As an independent
contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing
the work and services to be provided by contractor under this Agreement,

B' Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and
results specified in this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement,
shall not be subjected to County's control with respect to the physical action or activities of
Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C' Contractor, its agents, otficers, and employees are, and at alltimes during
the term of this Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent
contractors, and not as employees of County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify lnyo County and its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage,
expense, costs (including without limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature
arising out of or in connection with Contractor's performance of work hereunder or its
failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the agreement, except such loss
or damage which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of lnyo County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT

Recordg. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the

6

A



various provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances,
regulations, and directions, Contractor shall maintain these records for a minimum of four
(4) years from the termination or completion of this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its
obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by substitute photographs,
microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnsnections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall
have access to any books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to,
financial records of Contractor, which County determines to be pertinent to this
Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and
transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor. Further,
County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or othenrvise evaluate the
work performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRhtltNATtoN.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and
employees shall not unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law,
against any employee, or applicant for employment, or person receiving services under
this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical
handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and
Housing Act (Government Code section 12g0A, et seq.), and the applicable regulations
promulgated thereunder in the California Code of Regulations. Contractor shallalso abide
by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 8S- 352) and allamendments thereto, and all
administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without sause, and at wil, for any
reason by giving to Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel,
Contractor may cancel this Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason
whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent tocancel to County.

7



14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Gontractor. County has relied upon the
skills, knowledge, experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into
this Agreement. Contractor shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of
it, without the express written consent of County. Further, Contractor shall not assign any
monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written consent of
County,

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services
requested by County in a timely manner, or falls in any way as required to conduct the
work and services as required by County, county may declare the contractor in default and
terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written notice to Contractor. Upon such
termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to Contractor for
services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be
waiver of any subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be
construed to be a modification of the terms of this Agreement unless this Agreement is
modified as provided in paragraph twenty_two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state,
and county laws, regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept,
maintained, or accessible by Contractor in the course of providing services and work
under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, or confidential. Contractor agrees to
keep confidential alt such information and records. Disclosure of such confidential,
privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express
written consenl of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor

I



without the County's written consent is sotely and exclusively the legal responsibility of
Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons
receiving public socialservices are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized
disclosure in accordance with Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations Section 20b.50, the
Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,and sections ,t0g50 and
M140.2 of the Welfare and tnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant thereto.
For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining

to beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work
and services under this Agreement.

19. POST AGREEMENT COVENANT.

Each Party agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information
which is gained from the Other Party in the course of providing services and work under
this Agreement, for any personal benefit, grl or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees
for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, not to seek or accept any
ernployment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term of
this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by
virtue of this Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected,

or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall be declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found
in contravention of any federal, state, or county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the
remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application thereol shall not be invalidated

I



thereby, and shatl remain in full force and effect to the extent that the provisions of this
Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDINGLIIYIITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from
various sources. ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one
or more sources, County has the option to cancel, reduce, or modifi7 this Agreement, or
any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying Contractor of the cancellation, reduction,
or modification of available funding, Any reduction or modification of this Agreement made
pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two
(22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted
from, by the mutual consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in
written form and executed with the same formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the
original Agreement to maintain continuity.

10



23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this
Agreement, including change of address of either party during the terms of this
Agreement, which Contraetor or County shall be required, or may desire, to make, shall
be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first class mail to, the
respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Health & Human Services ,Department
1360 North Main $treet, Suite 124 Address
Bishqp, CA 93514 City and State

Contractor:
TeleConnect Therapies Name

P.O. Box 1665 Address
Avalon. cA 90704 City and State

24. ENTIRE AGREEIIJIENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no
representations, inducements, promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties
not embodied herein or incorporated herein by reference, shall be of any force or effect.
Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, discharged, or terminated,
unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

25. SUBCONTRACTORCOMPLIANCEREQUIREMENTS

As a mental health plan subcontractor, Contractor agrees to abide by all rules and
requirements contained within Attachment D.

11



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND TELECONNECT. THERAPIES

FOR THE PROVISION OF TELETHERAPY SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR
HANDS AND SEALSTHIS- 16th DAYOF March, 2A22

couruTY. oF |NYO CONTRACTOR

By
Signature S nature

Dan Totheroh Da,r.r,., C-gD
Print or Type Name Print or Type

Name

Dated: 0311612022 Dated tL- lD-- LI

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY
c Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Auditor

AP PERSONNEL REQU IREM ENTS

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

By:

County R nager

12



t.

ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TELECONNFCT THERAPTES

FOR THE PROVISION OF.TELETIIERAPY SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 1t2tAg2T TO: 6/30 nAZz

SCOPE OF WQRK:

Program Operation
A' County shall determine the number of contracted hours per month for Contractorservices' County will atso identify a contact person for Contractor services atCounty Clinic.
B' County shall provide videoconferencing equipment and consultation space atcounty site tha-t is-compliant with atl cilitornb oHcsl rrrleoidairequirlments.C. Patient Etigibility Criteria:

1. Must be a registered patient of County,2' Must consent to receive telemental h6afth services and consent to allotherprocedures associated with the teletherapy program including sharing ofmedical records_necessary for coordinatibn br p"atient care oJtween'
Contractor and Coung,

3' Must be deemed cliniially appropriate for teletherapy services by Contractor.D' County will schedule patienti for'initial medical necessity screening andassessments an agreed upon scheduling system.E' Prior to initiating services bgunty and cJntiactor shall agree upon procedures forevaluation and treatment of patients who are determined-ny contractoi to n" ,potentialdanger to themselves, to others, or to be gravely disableO anO unable tocare for themselves- Contractor willfollow the agreii upon pro."Jur"r .*needed during each patient's course of care.F' During the CA covlD-19 State or emerg;n;y Declaration therapy services maybe provided by
contractor direcfly to patients in their homes using medical-grade HlpM_

compliant Zoom
soflrnrare, at the request of the County. Contractor will follow procedures

established by County
for patient registration and communication with County staff during this period.G' County will provide the patient with an orientation to the telementaiheaitn systemprior to initial appointment with Contractor.

H' On each date of scheduled service in which a patient is scheduled for ateletherapy appointment in the County mental health clinic, a videoconference

13



connection will be established prior to the patient appointment following an
agreed upon process.

l, Following an initial clinical evaluation patients who are found to meet medical
necessity criteria
for ongoing telemental health services are given regularly scheduled
appointments, as clinically indicated, to be scheduled using the County's
desired scheduling system.

J. lf the Contractor therapist determines that a psychiatric consult is recommended,
Contractor will use the County's system for referrals to psychiatric services. lf the
patient is seen by a psychiatrist, Contractor will consult with psychiatrist as
clinically appropriate to coordinate patient care.

K. lf at any time Contractor believes a patient has transitioned to a lower level of
care, County staff will be notified and appropriate referrals will be made.

L, Consult with ClinicalAdministrator if contractor feels patient's needs cannot be
met by tele therapist.

M. County shall provide Contractor with neces$ary training on Electronic Health
Record system and will provide remote access to system. Contractor will follow
County procedures for clinical documentation.

N. Contractor providers shall have 4 scheduled weeks off per year, for which County
will not be charged. Time off will be scheduled at least 1-month in advance.
During each provider's days off another licensed mental health professionalwill
be available by telephone for patient urgent mental health needs,

O. lf Contractor or County must cancel a date of service due to unforeseen illness,
injury, natural disaster or other unavoidable event, the County will not be billed.
ln the event of a cancellation, the County will be notified as soon as possible to
reschedule patients.

P. County to share all subpoenas andlor authorized written requests for patient
therapy records or therapy reports directly to the Contractor therapist providing
the patient's care for authorization prior to release of any patient records to the
patient or to a third party.

ll. Contractor Responsibilities :

ln addition to Contractor responsibilities outlined above under "Program Operation"
Contractor shall:

A. Provide biopsychosocial and diagnostic assessments for scheduled patients
including a provisionaldiagnosis wlthin business day after initialappointment.

B. Provide a written biopsychosocial assessment report on each patient, using
County-approved format according to County timeline.

C. Complete patient progress note in County EHR system following each date of
service following County timeline.

D. Provide a written patient treatment plan, reassessment, and discharge summary
for each patient following County directed format and timeline.

E. Complete Quality Assurance Clinical Chart reviews including system review,
thorough clinical review, and written report to PIQA Manger, as assigned by
County.

F. Provide proof of annual

14



1. HIPPA privacy and security training
G. Complete county required trainings (i,e. culturalcompetency (totaling 4 hours),

compliance, fraud waste and abuse)

15



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TELECONNECT THERAPIES

FOR THE PROVISION OF TELETHERAPY SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 1t2t2OZZ TO: 6t30 1ZOZ2

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

of Schedule of Fees

*Review of referrat source information and pre_visit
PHQ9IPHQA, GAD-7, andlor PSC-3S results;.50-60- minute Face to Face biopsychosociat
interview with patient, with some'simultaneous EHR
documentation

lnitial Assessment
including;

or Reassessment of patient, $125

to 90-minutesnup
additiona time to com writtenletep

itialtn b osociaiopsych assessment orrt,repo
reassessment includreport, camediing necessity

tn EHR

$125

To be pre-approved by ICDHHS only for complex
cases not able to be thoroughly assessed or

lnznd itial Assessment or Re-assessment patien
0visih45-6 m nutes face faceto with and upatient, p

to 30-additio minnal forutes ol rncompletion report
EHR;

reassessed within one visit.

$125

patient
Mental Health The nc dlu 50-60rapy: minuteing

faceremote faceto time with n m 40-imu(Mi
inm withutes itdch ren and to io30-addit) up nal
nurnl tes sess ioncompleting n arogressp ndlo rotes,

slan ntreatment REH as uired

$125

documentation inreview ofsumma tn
s or tTherapy discharge trangferummary patien $62,50

16



EHR and
therapist

any required callaboration with new

QA Clinical Chart Review including system review,
thorough clinical review, and written report to pleA

to 90-mi

$125

QA Clinical Chart Review- each additional 30-
minutes to review and

$62.50

Patient "No-Show'in which the patient does not
show for a scheduled appointment and does not
cancel the appointment prior to the scheduled

in time

$62.50
(Billing by Contractor to be limited to 1 for
each 4-hour block of time scheduled)

Therap ist attendance at County-required cultural
competency, compliance, fraud waste and abuse,
and/or other trainings, per hour.

$75

17



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TELECONNECT THERAPIES

FOR THE PROVIS|ON OFIETEIHEEATLSERVTCES

TERM

FROM: 11212022 TO: 6/30nA22

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE

PROVISIONS

18



Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for iniuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with theperformance of the work hereunder Uy itte Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINITVIUM SCOPE AND I.IMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General Ltability (CGLJ: IS0 Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an ,,occurrence,,
basis, including products and completed operations, property damlge, bodily injury, sexual
misconduct, and personal & advertising injury with timits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, eitler the general aggregate lirnit shall apply
separately to this project/location flSO CG 25 03 or 25 OaJ or ttre ge,iJrat-aggregate limit shail
be twice the required occurrence limit. The CGL policyshail contain, or be endorsed to contain,
additional insured status as specified as follows.

Additional Insured Satus,Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respeit t; liability arising out
of work or operations performed by or on behalr of ihe iontractor including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. Generailiability.oulrrg"
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance fat least as broad
as ISO Form CG 2a \0 11 85 or if not available, through the addition of both C G Z0 LA, CG Z0
26, CG 2A 33, or CG 20 38; and CG Z0 37 if a later edition is usedJ.

lVorkers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
iniury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on Contractor's letterhead certifying th;t
Contractor has no employees.

Professional Liabiliqr Insurance as appropriate to the Contractor's profession {errors and
omissions, medical malpractice, etc.J, with limit no less than $1,000,i100 per occurrence or
claim, $3,000,000 aggregate. Professional liability insurance coverage is normally required if
Contractor is provided a professional servici regulated by thJ state; however, other
professional contractors, such a computer softwar"e designers and claims administration
providers, should also have professionat liability, Check-with Risk Manag"*"nt if pL is
required.

lyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1.,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate' Cyber liabiliry requirement may be waived if Contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable lnformation fpll] or personal medical
information [PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and
obligations as is undertaken by Contractor in this agreement and shall includg but not be
limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectuil property, including but not limited to
infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of piiur.y violitions, informationthefl damage to or destruction of electronic information, r*leare of private information,
alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. Thepolicy shall provide
coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties ai well as credit

19



monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations. Check with Risk
Management if CL is required.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andfor higher limits than the minimums shown
Sbove Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and./or the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor. Any available insurance proreeds in excess of the
specified minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be availible to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects Inyo County, its offic"rr, offi.i"li,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state tlat coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiverof Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any
insurer of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by vtrtue of th-e payment of any
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees io obtain any endorsement that may be
necessaryto affectthis waiver of subrogation, butthis provisionapplies regardless of whether
or not Inyo County has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention o, prouid" proof of ibility
to pay losses and related investigation.s, claim administration, and defense .ip*nr*, within
the retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to providg that the self-
insured retention may be satisfied by either the narned insured or Inyo'County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a
current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

claims Made Policies {should be applicable only to professional liability)
tf anry of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5J years after completion of the contract of work

2A



3' If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made poliryform with a Retroactive Date prior to the contrict effective date, the contractor mustpurchase "extended reporting" coverage for a rninimum of five [SJ years after completionof contract work

Verification of Coverage
contractor shall furnish 

fnyo county with original certificates of Insurance including allrequired amendatory endorsements (or copies-of the applicabl. p"ii;t ;;;;age effectingcoverage required by this clause) and a copybf the Declaritions andEndorsenient page of theCGL- policy listing all policy endoisements io tnyo County before work begins. However, failureto obtain the requireddocuments prior to the work u"gin;ing shall notwaive the contractor,sobligation to provide them. Inyo county reserves the ,ight to require complete, certified copiesof all required insurance poliiies, including endorseme"nts required by these specifications, atanytime.

Subcontractors
contractor shall require and veri$r that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all therequirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo county is an additionalinsured on insurance required from subconractors.

Special Risks or Gircumstances
Inyo county reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on thenature ofthe risf,, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.-end-

21



Mentat Heatth ptan {MHp}
Subcontractor

Com pliance Req uirements

Disclosures
The. MHP' lnyo Coun$ Mental Heatth, ensures collection of disclosures of ownership,
control, and relationship information for persons who have an ownership or control
interest in the MHf , if applicable, and ensures its subcontractors and networkproviders submit disclosures to the {f1"q.rding the network prouio.i'r (disclosing
entities) ownership and control. (42 C.F.R. Sectioi
455.101 and 104).
As a condition of enrollment, the MHP must require providers to consent to criminal
background checks including fingerprinting when required to do so UV OHCS or by thelevel of screening based on iisk bf fiaud, waste or abuse as determined for that
ggteQlry of provider. (42 C.F.R. g ass.a3a(a).)
The MHP requires prwiders, or iny person with a 5o1o $ more direct or indirect
ownership interest in the provider, to submit fingerprints when appticable. i+z c.r.n. S/155.434(b)( 1 ) and (2)).

The MHP shall ensure that its subcontractors and network providers submit the
disclosures below to the MHP regarding the network provid'ers, (di;b;i;f entities,)
9w1er9hip and control. The subcontractor is required to submit updated Jisclosures
to the MHP upon submitting the provider applicaiion, before entering into or renewing
the network providers'contracts, within 35 d'ays afteiany change inine 

-

subcontractor/network provider's ownership, annually 
",iO 

upo,i r"qr"*t during the re-validation of enrollment process under 42 Cade of federal'negulationr pr* 4g5.1A4.
(MHP Contract, Ex. A, Att. 13)

Disclosures must include:
a) The name and address of any person (individual or corporation) with an

ownership or control interest in the network provider.
b) The address for corporate entities shall include, as applicable, a primary

business address, every business location, and a p.o. Box aoor6rs.c) Date of birth and Sociai Security. Number (in the case of an individual);d) other tax identification number(in ttre case of a corporation with an ownership

ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND TEI-ECONNECT THERAPTES

FOR THE PROVISION OF TELETHERAPY SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 1t2l2O2Z TO: 6130/2A22

22



or control interest in the managed care entity or in any subcontractor in which
. llt_" rnanaged care entity has as percent or more inte'rest);

e) Whether the person (individual oi corporation) with an ownersnip or control
interest in the Contractor's network provideris related to another person w1h
ownership or control interest in the same or any other networf fioilder of the
contractor as a spouse, parent, child, or sibling; or whether the person
(individualgr c.orpggtion) with an ownership oicontrol interest in any
subcontractor in which the managed care ehtity has a b percent or more
interest is related to another persbn with owneiship or cdntroiinterest in the

^ managed care entity as a spouse, parent, child, oi sibling;0 The name of any other disclosing entity in whicir theg) Contractor or subcontracting network provider has an ownership or control
interest; and The name, address, date of birth, and Social Sectiiity Number of
Ty f-?Fging..employee of the managed care entity

h) The MHP shall provide DHCS with alidisclosures blfore entering into a
network provider contract with the provider and annually thereaftir and upon
request from DHCS during the re-validation of enrollment process under 42
Code of Federal Regulations part 4SS.104.

The MHP must submit disclosures and updated disclosures to the Department or
HHS including information regarding certain business transactions w1hin 35 days,
upon request.

1. The ownership of any subcontractor with whom the MHp has had business
transactions totaling more than 925,000 during the 12,month period ending on
the date of the request; and

2. Any significant business transactions betueen the MHp and any wholly owned
supplier, or between the MHP and any subcontractor, during ttre S-Vea'r period

- ending on the date of the request.
3' The MHP must obligate network providers to submit the same disclosures

regarding network providers as noted under subsection 1(a) and 1O; wiinin eS
days upon request.

The MHP shall submit the following disclosures to DHCS regarding the MHp's
management:

1. The identity of any person who is a managing employee of the MHp who has
been convicted of a crime related to federal liealth ..r* ptotr.rr. (+Z C.F,R. S455.106(aX1), (2).)

2. The identity of any person who is an agent of the MHP who has been convicted
of a crime related to federal health care programs. (42 c.F.R. $ 4s5.106(a)(1),
(2).1

Compliance Monitoring

The subcontractor will meet with the lnyo Coung Medi-Cal Compliance Officer to
review the Provider Manual, Compliance Training, Code of Conduct and Conflict of

23



lnterest. The MHP shalt monitor the performance of its subcontractors and networkproviders on an ongoing basis for compliance with the terms of the MHp contract and
shall subject the subcontractors' performance to periodic formal review. 6vf Hp
C-ontract, Ex' A, Att. 8), if the MHi' identifies deficiencies or areas of impiovement, the
MHP and the subcontractor shalltake corrective action. (MHp Contract, Ex. A, At1 g).

a) Social Security Administration's Death Master File

(employees

a at etimprocess, tocontracting
theconfirm and exclusionidentity ofstatus a providers network providers,

subcontractors withs ownershperson' controlorrp interest, ofmanaging employeelagent
MHthe Th is checkincludesP). theng

b)

.602(bx

National nPla and Provider Enumeration NSystem ( PPES)
c ofOffice the) LGeneral istlnspector of Providers EandExcluded ntities(LEl E)

Awaof rdd) System Management (sAM)
e rtment's) Depa Medi-Cal andSuspended ible List MHPnelig (s&r Contract Ex.List)

1Att. 42 CA, F R3; 438 d andss ) 455.436)
the M fiHP nds a th tsat excluded itparty must HCD Sp c42 R.Fnotifyromptly

a) OIG List of Excluded lndividualslEntities (LEIE).
b) System of Award Management (SAM) Excluded Parties List System (EpLS).c) DHcs Medi-catlist of lpnendeo oi tneligibte providers tsafr-isil. 

'-
(42 C,F.R. Sg 438.60S(d), an 4s5.436)

a process to confirm mo no
are on the

P

Fraud Reporting
The MHP, or any subcontractor, to the extent that the subcontractor is delegated
reslonsibility by th9.luHe for coverage of services and payment of claims under the
MHP Contract, shall implement and maintain arrangem6nts or procedures designed
to detect and prevent fraud, waste and abuse that iiclude prompt reporting to DHCS
about the following:

1) Any potentiar fraud, waste, or abuse. (42 c.F.R.s43s.60B( al{Tl;
MHSUDS tN No. 1e-034)

2) All overpayments identified_or recovered, specifying the overpayments
due to.potentiat fraud. (42 c.F.R.g438,608(al,6ld,t; MHsuDS tN No.
1e-034)

3) lnformation about a change in a network provider's circumstances that
may affect the network provider's eligibility to participate in the managed
care program, including the termination of the provider agreement with
the MHp. 42 C.F.R.S 438.608(aX4).)

24



lf the MHP identifies an issue or receives notification of a complaint concerning anincident of potentiar ftaud, waste oirbure, in addition tJnotiffing DHcs, the MHpshallconduct an internal investigation to determin"in" urriaity of the issuelcomplaint,and develop and implement coriective action, if needed.

The lnyo County MedLCal Compliance officer can be reached at 760-g72 -gz7g.

25



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3795  

 

Addendum to Thomas Milam MD, Inc. d/b/a Iris 
Telehealth Agreement 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lucy Vincent Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Addendum to the contract between the County of Inyo and Thomas Milam MD, Inc. d/b/a Iris 
Telehealth of Austin, TX, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $500,000 and extending the 
term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval the Fiscal 
Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The attached amendment extends Inyo County's initial contract executed on 07/01/2022 and terminating 
on 06/30/2023 from 07/01/2023 until 06/30/2024. Thoman Milam d/b/a Iris Telehealth was solicited 
through a formal procurement process and the treating psychiatrist has since developed clinical 
relationships with clients. Behavioral Health has increased the number of hours from 19 hours per week 
to 32 hours per week to meet our DHCS contractual requirement for network adequacy. The contract 
increases the "not to exceed" amount to $500,000 to fund the additional hours. Additionally, the 
contractor is seeking an additional provider who is trained in the treatment of psychiatric disorders of 
children and adolescents, and who is bilingual to meet client needs.  Maintaining this contract to ensure 
continuity of services with the contracted psychiatrist provides for the best level of care for the clients 
served.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Mental Health MediCal and Mental Health 
Realignment 

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
No change in expenditure amount. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could decide not to approve this contract with Iris Telehealth.  Inyo County HHS would have 
to select another vendor to provide telepsychiatry services, as the provision of psychiatry services is 
required as part of our contract with the state. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Iris Telehealth Medical Group Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 5/10/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 5/11/2023 
Lucy Vincent Approved - 5/18/2023 
Kimball Pier Approved - 5/18/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/1/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/5/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/5/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/5/2023 
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 6/5/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 27th day of September 2022 an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
lris Telehealth
Medical Group
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to ratify and approve the
agreement between the County of lnyo and lris Telehealth Medical Group of Austin, TX for the
provision of telepsychiatry services in an amount not to exceed $200,000 for the period of July
1,2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures
being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Totheroh absent.

trVITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 27h

Doy 2022

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerkof the Board of Supenisors

NI

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: HHS
DATE: September 30, 2022

By.



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Telehealth Medical

FORTHE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County'') may have the need for the
Mental Health services of lris Telehealth Mqdjp (hereinafter
referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Contractor to pedorm under this Agreement will be made by Kimball Pier, Ph.D.., I.MFT ,

whose title is: HHS.D..qputv Director of Bl-l Requests to the Contractor for work or
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.
The County makes no guarantee or warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services
or work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this
Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from Contractor the performance of any
services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of
this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be
pefformed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to those which are referred to in this Agreement,

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreem ent shall be from 71112022 to 613012023
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Compensation". County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Atlachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. TravelsIld pql"diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.

C. No additional cqlsidefation. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to nor receive from County any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or
other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Conlractor shall not be
entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

D. Limit upo4 g!ryllrunt pavable under Aqleement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed
Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($ 20qggg_.00 ) (hereinafter
referred to as "contract limit"). County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement
requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. '144

(lndependent Contractor- Provision of Mental Health Services)
Page 1 of 16

07124t2015



E. Billing snd pevment. Contractor shall, each month, timely submit to the County, an itemized

statement ot all iervices and work performed at the County's request as described in Attachment A' This

statement witl be submitted to the County not later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the month. The statement

to be submitted Wll cover the period from the first (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the

last day of the preceding month. This statement Wll identify the date on which the services and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work wltich were performed on each day. Statements

that are timely received by County will be paid to Contractor within 30 days of receipt.

F. Federal and Statetaxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state

income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.
(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this

Agreement to non-California resident independent contractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety'nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or payments from

sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on

such sums ii tne s6te responsibility of Contractor, County has no responsibility or liability for paynent of

Contractor's laxes or assessments.
(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes wilhheld from payments to non-

California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State

Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an

lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County, lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contraclor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will

coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will

be performed within the time frame set forlh by County,

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by

[ontractor and be valid at the lime Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenruise may be required.

Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits

in full force and effect.
B. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,

professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will

be procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide

County, upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, and
permits which are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute

between Contractor and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the

services identified in Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes

of this Agreement.
C. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,

declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any federal

department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from receiving
federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-procurement
Programs issued by the General Services Administration available ai: http://www.sam.qov.

County of lnyo Standard Contraci - No. 144
(lndependent Contractor- Provision of Mental Health Services)

Page 2 of 16
07t24t2019



6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC,

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary lor Contractor to provide lhe services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items, Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor.

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A. PersonglPropertv of eolrnty. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identiflcation cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.
Contraclor will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such items while they are in
Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence.

B. Products of ContractodgVl&d( and $ervlcgq. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of Contractor's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Gontractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and Gounty that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Conlractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing lhe work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees are and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFIGATION

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without
limitation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the

County oflnyo Standard Contract- No. 144
(lndependent Contraclor -Provision of Mental Health Services)

Page 3 of 16 
o7n4tzo1g



agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence orwillful misconduct

of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions.

iontractor shall mainiain these records for a minimum of ten (10) years from the termination or completion

of this Agreement unless otherwise provided in Attachment A. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain

records ls required by this paragraph by substitute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic

reproduction of such records,
B. lnsnections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County, the Department of Health

Care Services (DHCS), Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Seruices (CMMS) or the Health and Human

Services Department shall have access to any books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited

to, financial records of Contractor, which County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the
purposes of making audit, evaluation, examination, excerpts, and transcrlpts during the period such records

are to be maintained by Contractor. Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect,

or otherwise evaluate the work performed or being performed under this Agreement.
C. Document $tandatds for Client ReQqrdS. Contractor shall maintain client records in the

manner described in Attachment C.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not

unlawfully disCriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, color, religion, ancestry,
gender, sexual orientation, age, national origin, or mental or physical handicap. Contractorand its agents,

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated there-under in the

dalifornia Code of Regulations. Contractor shallalso abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-

352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

I3. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at wil[, for any reason by giving to

Contractor ninety 1SO; days' written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement

without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving ninety (90) days' written notice of such intent

to cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not

assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.

Further, Contractor shall not aisign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by

County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by

County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written

notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to

Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contractor - Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page 4 of 1 6
47t24t2419



16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contraclor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Gontractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205,50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accounlability Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

18. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal beneflt,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse pady in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the Counly's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in coniravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the appllcation
thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, redLrce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
Earc (22) (Amendment).

County oflnyo Standard Contract- No. 144
(lndependent Contractor- Provision of Mental Health Services)

Page 5 of 16
0712412019



22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same

formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of iddress of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or Coun$ shall be

requiied or may desire to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served or senl by prepaid first class

mail to the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
HHS - Beh?vioral Health ._

1360 North Main St,, Qte,124
Bishqp. QA 93514

Department
Address
City and State

Contractor:
lris Telehealth Medical Group Name
114 W. 7th Street, Suite 900 Address
Auslin, TX 78701 City and State

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by

reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto.

tilt llll

County of lnyo Standard Contract- No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page 6 of '16

07t24t2019



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AN n Thomas m MD lnn dlhla lric Medicel Groun

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

^-,, IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THE]R HANDS AND SEALS THIS27lh DAy OF S-eptember 
- 

, 
- 

zg_zz.

CONTRACTOR

Dated: 09t27t2022 Thomas Milam, MD
Print or Type Neme

oateo: 08/3112022

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

&"^*r er*,rhl"*
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

( '*'%a,,b,.&&-
CountyAuditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

K.vwu+'-
Personnel Sefvices

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQ

County Risk Manager

County oflnyo Standard Contract- No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page 7 of 16
07t24t2019



AND Thomas Milarn MD,

ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
lnc. d/bla lris Telehealth Medical Group

1

FORTHE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: 71112022 613012023

SCOPE OF WORK

Con]{actor ls: (Check One)

lV An "Orqanizational Providel' as that term is defined in this paragraph. The termlv I "Organiiatronal Provide/' m€ans a provider of specialty mental health services, other than
psyiniatric inpatient hospital services or psychiatric nursing facility services.. An

brganizational Provider provides mental health services to beneficiaries through employees
or by contracting with licensed mental health or registered professionals and other staff,

unleis such staff is legally entitled to a waiver. An Organizational Provider shall be certified
as meeting Short Doyle/Medi-Cal Provisions by County Behavioral Health Services Program
(lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health Division) or State Depadment of Mental Health.

A "Group Provide/' as that term is defined in this paragraph. The term "Group Providei'
means an organization that provides specialty mental health services through two or more

individual providers. Group providers include entities such as independent practice

associations, hospital outpatient departments, health care service plans, and clinics'

An "lndividual Provider" as that term is deflned in this paragraph. The term "lndividual

Provided' means a licensed mental health professional whose scope of practice permits the

practice of psychotherapy without supervision who provides specialty mental health services

direc1y to beneficiaries. lndividual Providers include licensed physicians; licensed social

workeis; licensed marriage, family, and child counselors; and registered nurses certified in

psychiatric nursing by the Board of Registered Nursing. lndividual provider does not include

iic6nsed mental-h6ath professionals when they are acting as employees of any

organizational provider or independent contractors of organizational providers other than the
Contractor.

2. $ervice tg be Provide{.

a. Contractor shall provide mental health services to patients referred in writing to Contractor
by County. ln the referral, County shall state the specific services to be provided to the patient and the

time peri6d over which those services are authorized. Such services may include assessment, individual

or family therapy, group therapy, collateral services, and pharmacological management. Contractor is

authorizbd to pr6vide only those services authorized by County and County shall be under no obligation to

pay for services other than those authorized by County.
b, Referred patients shall be entitled to a limited number of services within a specified time

frame per referral, Contractor understands that in the event a patient has committed through appointment
to seek beyond the maximum number or time frame of approved services, no payment for those additional

services will be granted by County, unless the additional services are specifically authorized by County.

County oflnyo Standard Contract- No. 144
(lndependent Contractor- Provision of Mental Health Services)

Page I of 16
07t2412019



ATTACHMENT A - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Thomas Milam M lnc. T

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM

71112022 613012023
FROM: TO

SCOPE OF WORK

c. Payment shall be at the rates specified in Attachment B. The maximum lime spent per
contact with the patient shall be as specified in Attachment B and payment shall be limited to the time
specified therein. Time spent by Contractor to write in a patient's file, prepare necessary reports, or to
otherwise prepare written documentation arising out of services performed under this conlract shall be
included within the service time limitations specified in Attachment B. The rate specifled in Attachment B
shall be considered to be payment in full for the services provided. Contractor shall at no time seek
compensation from patients. Contractor shall hold harmless the State of California and patients in the
event County cannot or will not pay for services rendered by the Contractor pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement.

d. Contractor agrees to accept at least three referrals for each contract year. Contractor
agrees to schedule initial appointments within ten (10) working days of referrals.

e. Nothing expressed or implied herein shall require the Contractor to provide to the patient,
or order on behalf of the patient, services which, in the professional opinion of the Contractor, are not
required.

3. Qqalifications.

a. Requirements applying to lndividual, Group, and Organizational Providers:
i. Be certified and in good standing to provide services under the California Medi-

Cal Program including those requirements conlained in Article 3, Chapter 3, Subdivision 1, Division 3, of
Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations; and

ii. Be a provider that complies and adheres to Title XIX of the Social Security Act
and conform to all applicable Federaland State statutes and regulations.

b. Terms appllng to Organizational Providers: lt is the duty of the Organizational Provider to
ensure that all licensed staff possess the proper and valid credentials, and comply with the provisions in
(b)(i) and (b)(ii) below"

i. Therapeutic Behavioral Services fTBS)/Case Manaqgment Services (CMS)
Provider. TBS/CMS may be provided to patients referred to an Organizational Provider hereunder
provided TBS/CMS is provided under the direction of a Clinical Head of Service which includes
Physicians, Psychologists, Licensed Clinical Social Workers, Marriage and Family Therapist, or a
Registered Nurse with a Master's degree in Psychiatric Nursing.

ii, Intern in Marriaoe and Famildhetanv or Associate $ocial Worke!.

1. Organizational Providers approved by lnyo County HHS Behavioral
Health Division may use lnterns and/or Associates (l/A) to administer services to patients provided the
following requirements are met:

i. The Organizational Provider must maintain malpractice
insurance for an l/A under its supervision and maintain an employer-employee relationship.

ii. Organizational Providers must, prior to assigning authorized
services, submit to lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health Division the l/A's application, resume, photocopy
of l/A's and Supervisor's license, Responsibility Statement for Supervisors, and proof of insurance
coverage along with a description of the l/A's training program.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

services) Page 9 of 16 
o7n4r2o1g



ATTACHMENT A - Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AN Thomas Mila MedicalG

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM:

7t112022 6t30t2023
FROM: TO

SCOPE OF WORK

2. Every l/A must meet the following criteria:
i. lndividual must be post-masters and be certified by the Board of

Behavioral Science for internship or associate status.
ii. Documented clinical supervision must take place in accordance

with current Board of Behavioral Science requirements for lnterns and Associates.
iii. lndividual supervision will be augmented by two (2) documented

hours of weekly multi-disciplinary group supervision. This supervision will be required for the first six
months of experience and may be required for up to one year.

3. Supervisors must meet regularly to review intern's performance, develop

and schedule training seminar topics, and monitor services provided.
4. Documentation of required supervision shall be provided to lnyo County

HHS Behavioral Health Division upon request.

4. Discrimination Prohibited.

Consistent with the requirements of applicable federal or state law, Contractor will not engage in

any unlaMul discriminatory practices in the admission of beneficiaries, assignments of accommodations,
treatment, evaluation, employment of personnel, or in any other respect on the basis of race, color,
gender, religion, marital status, national origin, age, sexual preference or mental or physical handicap.
Patients referred under this contract shall receive the same level of care as provided to all other patients

served by Contractor.

5. MedicalRecords.

Contractor shall maintain for each patient who has received services, a legible medical record

either typewritten or written in ink, kept in detail and in a standard consistent with appropriate medical and
professional practice licensing and certification requirements, which permits effective internal professional

review, external medical audit process, and which facilitates an adequate system for follow-up treatment.

Patient health records of discharged patients shall be completed and filed within 30 days after termination
of each episode of treatment and such records shall be keptfora minimum of ten (10) years, exceptfor
minors whose records shall be kept at least until one (1) year after the minor has reached the age of 19,

but in no case less than seven (7) years consistent with California Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section

75054. Psychologists are required to maintain patient records for ten (10) years from the patient's

discharge date, or in the case of a minor, seven years after the minor reaches 18 years of age consistent
with Caiifornia Business and Professions Code Section 2919. Contractor shall forward original entrieg to

lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health Division within 24 hours of service provision for incorporation into

client's current chart, if requested by lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health Division. Notwithstanding
paragraph 7(8.) (Terms and Conditions), working notes and test protocols used in preparation of medical

records and reports remain the property of the Contractor.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contractor- Provision of Mental Health Services)

Page 10 of 16
0712412015



ATTACHMENT A - Gontinued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
Milam lnc. d/b/a lris Telehealth Medical

FORTHE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM:

FROM:
711t2022 613012023

SCOPE OF WORK

6. lnsoection Riqhts.

Contractor shall make all books and records pertaining to the goods and services furnished under
the terms of this Agreement available for inspection, examination, fiscal audits, program compliance and
beneficiary complaints review, or copying:

By lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health Division, the State Department of Mental Health,
the State Department of Health Services, the United States Department of Health and
Human Services, the Controller General of the United States, and other authorized
federal and state agencies or their duly authorized representatives.
At all reasonable times at the Provider's normal place of business or at such other
mutually agreeable location in California.
ln a form maintained in accordance with the general standards and lnyo County HHS
Behavioral Health Division standards applicable to such book or record keeping.
For the term and duration consistent with paragraph 5 above, ten {10) years following the
final date of the contract period.

7. ConfidentialitvofBeneficiarvlnformation.

With respect to any identifiable information concerning a patient under this Agreement that is
obtained by the Contractor, the Contractor shall: (a) not use any information for any purpose other than
carrying out the express terms of the Agreement; (b) promptly transmit to lnyo County HHS Behavioral
Health Division all requests for disclosure of such informalion; (c) not disclose, except as othenruise
specifically permitted by the Agreement, any such information to any party other than lnyo County HHS
Behavioral Health Division, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, the State Department of
Health Services, or the State Department of Mental Health without lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health
Division's prior written authorization specifying that the information is releasable under Title 42, CFR,
Section 431.300 et seq,, Section 14100.2, Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted
thereunder; (d) at the expiration or termination of the Agreement, return all such information to lnyo
County HHS Behavioral Health Division or maintain such information according to written procedures sent
lnyo Gounty HHS Behavioral Health Division by the State Department of Health Services for this purpose,

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page 11 of 16

a.

b.

c.

d.

0712412019



ATTACHMENT A . Continued

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AN Thomas Milam lnc. d/b/a lris Telehealth Medical Grou

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM:

FROM
71112022 TO 6t3012a23

B. Patients' Rishls 
coPE oF woRK

Contractor shall comply with applicable patients' rights provisions in W&l Dtvision 5, Part l; Title 9,

California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 4; and other applicable law in the provision of services to
patients hereunder, Contractor shall adopt and post in a conspicuous place a written policy on patient

rights in accordance with Section 7Q707 of Tille 22 of the California Code of Regulations and Section
5325.1 of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code. Complaints by patients and/or beneficiaries with regard to
substandard conditions may be investigated by the County's Patients' Right Advocate, County or State
Department of Mental Health, or by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organization, or
such other agency, as required by law or regulation. Contractor is responsible for posting lnformation on
grievance and appeal processes at all facilities and accessible to individuals and their beneficiaries
receiving services at the facility. Contractor shall make available for use by patients or beneficiaries at
Contractor sites, without requiring either written or verbal request, both grievance and appeal forms and
lnyo County Mental Health self-addressed envelopes.

9. Compliance Wilh Apnjicable Law.

Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of statutes, regulations, and other
applicable law, and, to the extent consistent with applicable law, with all applicable State of California and
Federal policies, including, without limitation:

(a) W&|, Divisions 5, 6, and 9;
(b) California Code of Regulations, Title 9;

(c) California Code of Regulations, Title 22;
(d) Bronzan-McCorquodale Act, Short-Doyle and Short-Doyle/Medi-Cal policies, including without

limitation, such policies as set forth in applicable DMH Letters and applicable Cost
Reporting/Data Collection ('CR/DC") Manual, and as reflected in County's contract with the
State Department of Mental Health for the provision of Medi-Cal funds.

(e) As part of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to enter into the attached Gounty of lnyo HIPPA
Business Associate Agreement.

10. finanpialRecords and Reports*

Contractor shall prepare and maintain accurate and complete appropriate financial records regarding
the costs and charges for services rendered to patients hereunder. Contractor shall retain such records
for each patient until the latest of the date which is (a) at least seven (7) years from the last date of service
to which the records pertain or (b) the date on which all relevant State of California and Federal audit
findings are resolved. The provisions of this section are in addition to the other provisions regarding
record keeping which are set forth in this Agreement. Contractor shall provide to lnyo County HHS
Behavioral Health Division such financial and other reports regarding lndigent Patient Services and other

services provided to Patients as lnyo Gounty HHS Behavioral Health Division shall reasonably request in
writing related to lnyo County HHS Behavioral Health Division's fulfillment of its BMA or Short-Doyle/Medi-
Cal reporting obligations.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contractor - Provision of Menlal Health Services)

Page 12 of16
07t24t2019



ATTACHMENT A - Gontinued

AGREE]I'ENT BETWEEN GOUNTYOF INYO

AND Thomas Milam MD, lnc. d/b/a lris Telehealth MedicalGrou p

FoR THE PRovIsIoN 6p TELEPSYCHIATRY SERVICES

TERM

FROM:
7t1t2022

TO:
6130t2023

SCOPE OF WORK:

A. Contractor will provide an average of 19 hours per week of psychiatric evaluations for the purposes of prescribing
medically appropriate medications and medication management. Contractor shall possess a valid medical license to
practice psychiatry via telemedicine or in person in the State of California. Psychiatric services will be provided in
mutually agreed upon blocks of lime scheduled in advance. During these blocks, patients can be scheduled to be seen
as a tradilional pre-scheduled appointment or, if psychiatric services are provided on site in person, patients may be
seen on a walk-in basis. During the blocks of time agreed upon for services, in the case of a no-show, Contractor will
allow for a substitution. Patients will be seen in a predetermined setting, primarily in our outpatient clinic in Bishop or in
the jail, but may also be seen in other settings such as the home or in a community sefting as long as privacy can be
maintained.

B. Adult patient scheduling during the agreed upon hours of service will occur in twenty (20) minute sessions for retuming
and known patients and sixty (60) minute sessions for new adult patienls and psychiatric evaluations. Contractor agrees
to provide psychiatric medication evaluations and medication management for children and adolescents on a case by case
basis depending upon the needs of the patient and the Contracto/s scope of practice. Conlractor will discuss treatment
plan and reasons for declining to see a particular child or adolescent with the child's legal caregivers and with the clinical
staff. Scheduling for children and adolescents will be during the agreed upon hours of service will occur in thirty (30)
minute sessions for returning and known patients and sixty (60) minute sessions for new child patients and psychiatric
evaluations. Clinicians will also receive thirty (30) minutes of administrative time each day. Clinician shall provide
required documentation of services in County's electronic heallh record (EHR) and will prescribe medications using the
County's prescribing system.

C. Contractor will participate in interdisciplinary meetings and may be asked to consult in other meetings for the purposes
of care coordination. These meetings may take place outside the scheduled blocks of time reserved for patient care, but
will be ananged in advance. Contractor will be paid ihe agreed upon hourly rate of $213 from July 1,2022 until December
31,2022,and $217 per hourfrom January 1,2A23 until June 30,2023.

D. ln general, Contractor will not be required to sign requests for any type of disability assistance or general financial
assistance for patients, however Contractor will consider such requests on a ease by case basis and will consider such
requests in the context of diagnosed mental illness and prognosis.

E. Contractor may be asked to provide clinical supervision for lnyo County Behavioral Health staff at mutually agreed
upon times for which Contractor will be paid at the agreed upon hourly rate of $213 from July 1,2022 until December 31,
2O22,and$217 per hourfrom January 1,2023 until June 30,2023.

F. Contrac'lor will communicale with lnyo Counly Behavioral Health Services nurses regarding scheduling of patients or
with designated schedulers. and schedulers by telephone, or HIPAA compliant messaging. Contracto/s telemedicine
platform will also meet all applicable standards.

G. lnyo County BHS may request emergency consullation however, Conlractor is not available to remain on stand-by for
emergency calls. Contractor will not be scheduled for on-call hours.

County of lnyo Standard Contracl 'No. 144
(lndependent Contractor - Provision of Mental

Health Services) Page '13 of 16

07/2412019



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
114D Thomas Milam UlD. lnc. d/b/a lris Telehealth Medical Groyp - -FORTHE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM:

FROM:
71112022 613012023

SCHEDULE OF FEES

See Attached Schedule of Fees

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page 14 of 16
07t24t2419



lnyo County HHS-Behavioral Health
Mental Health Telemedicine Services

Rates of Reimbursement

Year One (or Years 1-4)
Rates by Provider Type

(if the rate types listed don't applv leave blank or replace)

Rate Description Psychiatrists
Psychiatric Nurse

Practitioners
Other

(Describe)
Other

(Describe)

PailV AllJnclusive Rate

(This Rate is for a schedule of
services provided between 8:00
a,m. through 5:00 p.m. Monday
through Sunday, with a maximum
schedule of 40 hours of service per
week)

2020 - $205/hour
2021 - $209/hour
2022 -$213lhour
2023 - $217lhour

2020 - $1 3S/hour
2021 - $139/hour
2022 - $143/hour
2023 - $147lhour

$ /hour $-/hour

Weekend CallRate

(This rate is for the provider being
scheduled for services from
Saturday at 5:00 p.m. through
Monday at 8:00 a.m., when the
provider is scheduled for less than
eight hours of services on
Saturday or Sunday)

$375/night $275lnight $ /night $_/night

Weeknioht Call Rate

(This rate is for the provider being
scheduled for services from 5:00
p.m. Monday through 8:00 a.m.
Saturday, no matter whether the
provider is scheduled for services
Monday through Friday)

$325/night $22Slnight $_/night $ /night

Overtime Rate
(This rate is for hours of services
scheduled above 40 hours per
week between 8:00 a.m. through
5:00 p.m. Monday through
Sundav)

$235/hour $1 55/hour $ /hour $-lhour

lnyo agrees to pay this rate to lris Telehealth during periods when telecommunications equipment failure and/or
internet access interruption is due to factors originating from lnyo's location. lris Telehealth agrees to not bill lnyo when

telecommunications equipment failure and/or internet access interruption is due to factors originating from

Psych iatrist's location.

Any time required by lnyo for "onboarding," including, but not limited to, orientation and training in lnyo's EMR, shall be

billed at the same rate as services billed for that clinician.

lnyo may purchase telepsychiatry equipment from lris Telehealth at a mutually agreed upon price. Additionally, lnyo

may request that Contractor perform a site-visit and provide on-site training and equipment installation at a mutually



agreed upon fee. lnyo may request that Contractor provide ongoing technical support for telepsychiatry equipment at a

mutually agreed upon rate.



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO
Thomas Milam MD, lnc. d/b/a lris Telehealth Medical

FORTHE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

FROM: 711t2022 613012023

STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES
DOCUMENTATION STANDARDS FOR CLTENT RECORDS (ATTACHEDI

County oflnyo Standard Contract- No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page '15 of 16
0712412019



Stre ngl he n i n g lles i I ie nce & It''e I I - It e i ng i n O w' (' o nt nu n i ty

Inyo Counfy l{calth and Human Services- Bchavioral Health Division
Policies an(l Procedures

Criteria for Access to SMHS, Medical Necessity and other Coverage Requirements
And Documentation Standards

Vcrsion 1.0 Efl'cctive 512512022

REF'trRENCES:

flehavioral t{ealth lnfirrrnaticrn Noticc (BI IIN) No: 2 I -073,
Behavioral l-lealth inforrnation Notice (Bf ilN) No: 22-019
CA WtC section 14184.402

DEFINTTIONS:
ICRIIS - Inyo County Behavioral Hcalth Seryiccs
DIICS I)cpartrnent of Health and Social Serviccs - State of Califbrnia
SN'll"ts - Specialty Mcntal Ilealth Scrvices
DV1C---Drug Medi-Cal

POLICY

Pursuanr to Wcllale ancl Institutions Code section l4l 84.402(a), fbr individuals 2l years of etge or oldcr,
a service is "rneclically necessary" or a "medical neccssity" whcn it is reasonable and necessary [o

protcct lii'e, to plevent significant illness or signilicant disability, orto alleviate sevcrc pain as sct fbrth

in Wclt'arc and Institutions Codc sectiott 14059.5.

For individuals under 21 years olagc, a service is "nrcdically necessary" or a "tnedic,al trccessity" i{'the

servicemeetsthestandaldssetforlhinsection 1396d(r)(5)ofTitle42o{'the UnitedStatcsCode.This
section requires provision of all Medicaid-covel'able serviccs neccssary lo corrcct <lr ameliorate a mcntal

illness or corrclition discovcred by a screening service, wltethel or not such scrvices are coverccl under'

the State Plan. Furthelmore. federal guidance fkrm thc Centers lbr Medicale & Medicaid Servises

makes it cleal that mental health scrv'ices need not be curative or restorative to atncliorate a metttal

health contiition. Selvices that susl.ain, sllpport, itnprove, or make morctolcrable a mental health

sondition are considered to ameliora[e thc nrental health condition are thus medicall-v necessaty atrd

covered as IlPSD'l' scrviccs.

Services providcd to a bcncflciary lltust be mcdically necessary and clinically airpropriate to acldress the

beneliciary's plesenting condition.

Criteria lbr Adult tseneficiaries to Access the Spccialty Mental Health Selvices Dclivery System:

F.or bene llciaries 2 I years of age or older, a counly mental he alth plan shalI providc covered specialty

rnental health scrviccs fbr bcneficiaries who meet both ol-the ftrllowing critctia, (l) and (2) below:



(l) The beneficiary has one or both of the lbllor,ving:
a. Signiticant inrpairment. where impairment is defined as distress. disability, or dysl'unctitx in

social, occupational, or other inrportant activities.
b. A reasonable probability of significant cleterioration in an important area of lil'e functioning.

AND

(2) 'I-he bene ficiary's condition as described in paragraph ( l) is due to either of the follou,ing:
a. A diagnosed mental health disorder, according to the criteria of the cument editions of the

Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders and the International Statistical Classification ol
Diseases and Related Flealth Problenrs. (ttlD-10)

b. A suspected mental disordcr that has not yet been diagnosed.

Criteria for Beneficiaries under Age 2t to Access the Specialty Mental Health Services Delivery
System:

For enrolled beneflciaries under 2 I years of age, a county nrental health plan shall provide all medically
necessary spccialty mental health services rcqnired pulsuanl. to Section 1396d(r) of Title 42 o1'the
tJnitcd States Code. Covered specialty meutal health services shall bc provided to enrolled beneflciaries
who meet e ither of the following criteria. (l) or (2) belor,v:

(l) 1"he beneficiary has a condition placing them at high risk fbr a rlental health disorder clue to
experience of trauma evidenccd by any of the fbllowing: scoring in the high-risk range under a

trauma scrcening tool approved by the department or involvernent in the child wclfare system,
juvenile juslice involvernent, or experiencing hornelessness.

(2) 'lhe beneficiary meets both of the f'ollowing requirements in a) and b), below:
a) Thc beneficiary has at least one of thc following:
i. A significant impairment
ii. A reasonable probability oi'significanl deterioration in an important arca of liie

functioning
iii. A reasonable probability of'nr:t progressing dcvelopmentally as appropriate .

iv. A need lor specialty mental health serviccs, regardless of'prescnce of impairmcnt, that
are not insluded within the mental health bene fits that a Medi-Cal managed care plan is required
to provide, AND

b) The beneficiary's condition as dcscribed in subparagraph (2) above is due to one
of the fbllowing:

i. A diagnosed mental healtl"r disorder, according to the criteria of the current edilions of
the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of lVlentaI Disorders and the Intcnrational Statistical
Classification ol' Diseases and Reiated Flealth Problenrs.

ii. A suspcctcd mental health disorder that has not yct been diagnosed.
iii. Significant trauma placing the benetlciary at risk of a future mcntal health condition,

based cln the assessment of'a licensed mental health prulbssional.

IIa beneficiaty under age2l meets the criteria as described in (l) above, the beneficiarv mects
criteria to access SMTIS; it is not necessary to establish that the bene{iciary also mcets the
criteria in (2) above.

2



Aclditignal Coverage Recluiremcnts and Clarificalions This criteria tbr a benellciaty tcl access the

SMHS delivcry system (except for psychialric inpaticnt lrospital and psychiatric health facility
selvices) set Jbrth above shall not be construed to excludc covcrags [or, ot'reimbursenrent of, a

clinically applopriate and covered nrental heallh Lrrevention, screcning, assessnrent, treahllent, or

recovery sei.vice under any of the ibllowing circutnstances:

r Serviccs werc provided prior to dctermining a diagnosis, including clinically
appropriate and covered set'vices provided during the assesstnent proccss.

. l'he prevention, screening. assessment. tl'eatmcnl, or rccovcry servicc was llot included

in an individual tleatnrent plan.

. 'l'hc bcnellcialy has a co-occurring substance use disordet"

r A neurocognitive disorder (e .g., dernentia) or a substanse-related and addictivc

disorcler (e.g., stirnulatlt usc disolder) arc not "rncntal health disorder.s" ftlr the purpose ol'

determining whether a beneficiary mecis criteria tbr access to the SMI IS de livery systcm.

lisyever, I\4HPs must cover SMHS for bene ficiaries with any of tltese disordcrs ii'thel'also have

ii mcntal health disordcr (ol suslrectcd mental hcaltlr disorclcrs nol yet diagnoscd) and tne et

cliteria foi SMI IS as desclibed above.

In cases where serrrices are provided duc tcr a suspeotcd menlal health disorder thal has not yet

bee n diagnoscd or duc to traurra as notcd alrove . options are available in the tll\4S approved

ICD-10 diagnosis codc list. For cxample, thesc inclnde codes for "Other spccilied" and

"UnspccifiecJ" disorders," ot "Factols influencitrg health status and cotttact with health setvices"

(i.e., Z co<les). DHCIS may provide additional claritication and tcchnical assistance rcgarding thc

ruse cll'Z codes.

Bencflciiiries 2l years o{'age and ovcl with mild to moderate disffess or mild to tnodcrate

impairmcnt olrnental. enrotional, or behavioral firnctioning rcsulting fiom mental health

clisorders, as deflned by thecurrent Diagnostic and Statistical Manualof Mental Disorders;

. Beneficiaries under agc 21, lo thc cxtcnt eligible for se rvices through the Medicaid FIPSD'|

benefit as described above, regardless of level oldistrcss or impailmettt or thc presencc of a

diagnosis;
r Beneficiaries of any age witlr potential rnental health disorders not yct diagnoscd.

DTICS witt publish additional guidancc regarding thc CaIAIVI No Wrong Door policies lor

menral health services in Medi-Cal as set lbrth in Wcllarc and lnslitutions Codc 14184.402.

COMPLIANCE: Ml lPs shall implenrent thc criteria lbr access to SMHS established above

eflbctivc January 1.2022, update IVIFIPs policies and procedurcs as needctl to cnsure compliancc

w*ith this policy e llbctive January 1.2022, and cornmunicate these updates to providers as

nesessary.

l



In addition, MIIPs slrall update malcrials to ensure the critcria lbr SMHS fbl individuals under
2l years of age and fbr adults is accuralelv reflectecl. including nraterials rcf'lecting the
rcsponsibility of Medi-Cal MCPs and thc FFS delivery systern fbr covering NSMI IS.ICBHS
shall set standards and irnplement processes that will support underslandirrg of, and compliance
with, documentation standards sct lbrth in this section and any standards set by IIIBI{S. tcilf ls
lnay monitor perlormance so thal the docurrentation of care providcd will satisly the
requirements set fiorth below.

The documetttation standards for beneficiary care are rninimum standards to support claims l'or
the delivery o1-specialty mentalhealth services. All standards shall be addressed in the
beneficiary t'ccord; however, there is no rcquirement that the records havc a specific documcnl or
section addressing these topics,

PROCEDUREAND DOCUMENTATTON STANDARDS

(1) Stanrtardized Assessment Rcquirements:

A. SMHS Assessment procedures
a.) MHPs shall require providers to usc unilcnn assessment domains as identilied below. For

berreficiaries under the age of'21 . thc Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS)
Assessntent tooI may be utilized to help iniblm the assessnrent dourain lequircmcnts.

b.) 'fhe time period for providers to complete an initial assessment and subsequent assessnlents
fbl SMHS shall bc within two weeks (14 days) of initial intake and orientation according to
accepted standards ol' practice.

c.) Services prr:vided p rior to determ ination oi' a d iagnos is, during thc assessrrr ent" or prio r to
determination of rvhether NSMFIS oI SIVFIS access sriteria are met are covered and
t'eimbursable, even if'the assessment ultimately indicatcs thc beneficiary docs not meet
criteria fbr SMHS

d.) 
.fhc 

assessment shall include a typed or legibly printed namc, signature of the servi{re
provider and date of signature.

c.) The assessrnsnt shall includc the provider's determination of medical necessity ancl

recommendation lbr services. -[he problem list and progress note requircrncnts identif red

below shall support the rnedical necessity of cach service provided.
11) The diagnosis, Mental Status Fixam (MSE), rnedication history, and assessment of lelevant

conditions and p.sychosocial factors a{fecting the benefrciary's physical and mental health
must be cornpleted by a provider, operating in his/her scope oi-practice under Clalilbrnia
State law, who is licensed" registered, waivered, and/or under the direction of a licensed
menlal health prolessional as defined in the State Plan.

g.) 1-he l\'lental I Ie alth Plan (MF{P) may designate certain other quali{ied providers to contribute
to the asscssment, including gathcring the bene{iciary's rnental health and medical history,
substance exposure and use, and identilying strengths, risks, and barriers to achieving goals.
(Cal. Codc Ilegs., tit. 9, {i 1840.344; California Statc Plan, Sec.3, nft. 3.1-A, Sr.rpp.3, pp.
2rn-p;California State Plan Section 3, Att.3.l-B, Supp.2, pp. l5-17)

4

B. DMC and DMC-ODS Assessments



a. Courrties shall require providers to use the American Society o{'Addiction Medicirre (ASAM)

Criteria asscssrnent fbr DMCI and DMC-ODS benet'iciaries.

b. The asscssrneltt shall includc a typed or legibly printed name, signature of thc service provider

and date of signature.
c. The asssssment shall include the provider's determination of rnedical necessity and

recommendation fbr services. Thc problern list and progtess note requirements identified bclow

shall supporl the medical necessity ol'each service provided'

c|. Coveled arrd clinically appropriate DMC and DNIC-ODS services (except fbr rcsidential

lrcatmenf services) are Mecli-Cal reimbursable lor up to 30 days lbllowing tlre lirst visit with a
l.iccnsed Practitioner of the Healing Arrs (L,PlIA) or registcrcd/certifled coltnselor, whether or

not a diagnosis fbr Substance-Related and Addictive l)isorders liorn thc current Diagnostic and

Statisticat Manual (DSM) is established, or up to 60 days if the beneficiary is under age 21, or if
a provider documeuts lhat the client is expericncing honielessness and therefiore requires

additional time to complete the assessment.

e. Il'a be ne ficiary withdrarvs fionr trcatment prior to establishing a t)SM diagnosis lbr

Substance-I{elatcd and Addictive l)isorders, and latcr returns, the 30-day or 60-day time period

starts over. Assessments shall be updatcd as clinically appropriate when the bcneficiaty's

conclition changes. Additional infbrmation on assessmettt requiretnents can be fbund in BlllN
2l-ail (DMC) and BHIN 21-07s (DMC-ODS).

{2) SMHS Assessment l)omtin ltequirements
-l-he 

SMI-IS asses.sltlelil shall include thc follorving scvcn reqLrited dotnains. Providers shall

docunient the dontains in the SMHS assessurent and keep thc assessment in beneliciary's

rnedical record.
I)omain l: . Presenting Prclblem(s) . Current Mental Status . History of Prcsetrting

Pro b lcnr (s)' Benefi c iaty-ldenti tied I m pairmen t(s)

Domain 2: 'Traunta
Domain 3: ' Behavioral llealth History'Comorbidity
Domain 4: , Medical Ilistory . Current Medications . Conrorbidity rvith Behavioral

Ilcalth l)omain 5: . Sooial and {,ile Circumstances. Culture/Religion/Spirituality
Dontain 6: ' Strengths, Risk Behaviors, and Safety Factors

Domain 7: . Clinical Summary and Reconrnrendations . Diagnostic lmpression' Mcdical

Nccessity Detcrrnination/Level of Carc/Access Criteria

(3) SMHS, DMC, and DMC-ODS Problem List
A. The provider(s) responsible {br the beneficiary's care shall create and maintain a

ploblem list.
B. l-he problem tist is a tist oi'symptoms, oonditions, diagnoscs, and/or risk factors

icienti{ied through assessment. psychiatric diagnostic evaluation, crisis encountcrs. or other types

ol' service encolluttirs.
C. A problenr iclentilied during a service encounter ie.g., crisis intervcntion) may be

a{dressed by ihe service plovider (within their scope of practice) durirrg that service encoltuter.

and subsequently added to the problem list.
D. Thc probleur list shallbe updateclott an ongoing basis to rc{lect the current

presentation of' the bcneficiary.

)



E.'fheproblem list shall includc, but is not lirniteclto, the fbllowing:
. Diagnoses identilied by a provider asting within theil scope of practice. if any.

Diagnosis-specific speciiiers fioln the current DSM shall be included with the diagnosis, when
applicable.

' Problems identiticd by a providcr acting within their scope of practice, if'any.
. Problens or illnesses identified by the bene{iciary andlor significant support person, il

any.
. The name and title of tlie providerthat identifietl, added. orrernoved the problem. and

the date ihe problem was identified, addcd, or removed.

F. Providets shall add to or remove problems fiom the problenr list when there is a relevant
change to a beneficiary's condition,
G. DI{CS does not require the problem list to be updatecl within a specific tinrefrarne or have a
recluirenrent about how liequerrtly the problcrn list should be updated attcr a problem has initially
heen added. However, providers shzrll update the problcm list within a reasonable time and in
accordancc 

"vith 
generally acceptcd standards of practice.

Progress Notcs
A. Providers shall create progress notcs tbr the provision of'all SMHS, DMC and DIVIC-ODS
services. liach progress note shall provide sufllcient detail to support the service code selected
for the service type as indicated by tlre service code dcscription.
B. Progrcss notes shall include:

. The type ofservice rendered.

. A narralive describing the seruice, including how the service addressed the
beneficiary's behavioral health need (e.g.. symptom, condition, diagnosis, and/or risk factors).

. The date that thc service r,vas provided to the beneficiary.

. Duration of the service, including travel and docunrentation tirne.

' l-ocation of the beneficiary at thE tirne o{'receiving the service.
. A typed or legibly printed nameo signature ol'the service provider and date of signaturc

' ICD l0 code.3
. Curren[ Procedural 'l"erminology (CPT) or llealthcare Common Procedure Coding

System (l-ICPCS) code.

' Next steps including, but not limited to, planned action steps by the provider or by the
bene ticiaty, collaboration with the beneficiary, collaboration with other provider(s) and any
update to the problem Iist as appropriate.

C. Providers shallconrplcte progress notcs within 3 business days of providing a service with the
exception of'notcs for crisis services, which shall be completed within 24 hours.

D. Providers shall complete a daily progress note for services that are billed on a daily basis,
such as residential and day treatment services (including thelapeutic ioster care, day lrcaturcnt
intensive, and day rehabilitation). Weekly summaries will no longcr be required fbr day
rehabilitation and day treatment intensive.
H,. Whcn a group service is rendered, a list o1'participants is requircd to be documented and
maintained by the plan or provider. Should more than one prrtvider render a group service, one
progress note nray be completed {br a group session and signed by one provider. Wliile one

6



progress note with one provider signaturc is aoceptatrle {br a group activily whe re multiple
providers are involved, the progress note shall clearly docutttent thc spccific involvcurcnt and the

specific alnount of timc of involve ment tll" each prov ider of the gloup activity, including

documentation time. Alt other progl'oss notc requircments listcd above shall also be met.

(5) Treatnrent and Care Planning Requiremcnts:

Eff'ective July l. 2022,DllCS removetl client plan rcquirements ll'onr SMHS and lreattneut plan

requirements fionr DI\,lC and DMC-ODS, with the exce;:tiott o{'cotttitrued requiremetrts

specilically noted in Attachment I (See DFtCIS BHIN 22-019). Scveral olthese care plan

requireme nts rernain in efl'ect due to applicable federal regulations or guidance '

A. Targetcd Case Managemcnt (TCM): 'l-argcted case management services within SMHS

reciuirc the developntent (and periodic revision) of a specilic carc plan lhat is based on the

intbrmation collected.l Thc TCM care plan:
. Specilies the goals, treatment, sen,ice activities, and assistance to address the ncgotiated

objectives of thc plan and the nredical. social, educational and otlter seruices needed by the

beneficiary;
. Inchides activities such as eusuring the active participation ol'the beneiiciaty, and

worlting with the bcneficiary (or the beneficialy's authorized health care decision maker) and

others to develop those goals;
.ldenlifies acourse of action to rcsponrl to the assessed neecls of the benef'iciary; and
. Includes dcvelopment ol'a transition plan when a beneliciary has ashicved the goals of'

tlie care plan. l'hese required e lcnrcnls shall be provided in a natrative format in lhe

beneficiary's progress notes.

li. Pcer Support Services: Peer support scrvices nrust be bascd on an approved plan o1'czrre.

C-. Additional Treatmcnt altd Carc Plan Requiremcnts

(6) Telchealth Consent: If a visit is provided ftrough telchcalth (synchronous attdio or video) or

telephone, the hcalth care provider is requirecl to conl'irm consent fi.rr the telehealth or telephone

service, in writing or verbally, at least once prior to initiating applicable health care services via

telehealth to a Medi-Cal bene{iciary: an explanation that bcncllciaries have the right to access

covered services that rnay be delivered vi:r telehealth through an in-person. flace-to-face visit; an

explanation that use of telehealth is voluntary and that oonsent lbr the use of telehealth can be

rvithdrarvn at any time by the Medi-L'al beneficiary without a{l'ecting their ability lo access

covered Medi-Cal services in thc future; an explanation of the availability of Mcdi-C]al coverage

fbr transportation services to in-person visits when othcr available resources have been

reasonably exhausted; and the potenlial limitatious or risks related to rece iving setvices throrrglr

telehealth iis cornparetl to an in-pcrson visit, to the exfentany lirnitations or risks are identilred

fry thc provider.'I-he provider must document in the patient record the provisiur of this

I Fol valid Medi-Cal clainrs, appropriate ICD-10 and IICPCS/Ci'T codcs must appear in the clinical record, associated witlt

eacl cncounter antl consisteut rvith the descliption irr the plogress rtole. h'or lurtherguidance on coding during the assesslnerlt

process, refer to the Codc Selcction Prior to Diagnosis tsHIN. Behavioral Ilealth Infbrmation Notice No.: 22-019 Page 8

April2?,2022throughihe asscssrnent.seetheClaliforniaStatePlan,Sec.3,Att.3.l-A,Supp. l,pp.tt-17; 42C.F'R.$
440. t69(dX2) and 42 C.F.R. $ 441.18 for mole specitic guidance.

7



in{brmation and the patient's vcrbal or writte n acknowlcdgrnent tliat the infbrrnation r,vas

rece ived.

D. Other rcquirements tnd standards

l). All entries to the beneficiary record shall be legible.
2) All entlies in the bencficiary record shall includc:

a)'l'lie date o l'service;
b) The signature of the person ploviding the scrvice (or e lectronic equivalent); the

person's fype of profcssional degree, licensure ol job title; and the relevant identification
number, ifapplicablc.

c) 'l'he date the docurncntation rvas entered in the bene{iciarn record.

3) ICBHS shallhave a wt'itten deflnition of what constitutes a long term care beneficiary
(Progress I louse residents).
4) ICtsHS shall require proviclers to obtain and retain a written mcdication consent form signecl
by the beneficiary agrecing to the administration of psychiatric rnedication. 

-l"his 
docurrentation

shall irrclude, butnotbe limited to, the rcasons lbr taking such niedications; reasonahlc
altcrnative treafments available, if any; the type, range of lrequcncy and anrount. method (cral or
injection), and duratiotr of taking the medication; probable side effbcts;possible addirionalsidc
eflbcts which may occur to benellciaries taking such medication beyond three (3) months; and
that the conscnt, once givcn. may be withdrawn at any time by the bene{iciary. ICBIIS shall
implement procedures to deliver carc to and coordinate services fbr all ol'its beneticiaries. (42
C.F.R. s 438,208(b).) 1'hese procedures shall meet Dcpartnrent requilenrents and shall do the
lollowing:

I ) Finsure that each beneficiary has an ongoing source ol'care appropriate to his or her nseds and
a perscrn or entity fclrmally designated as prirnarily rcsponsible fbr ooordinating the services
accessed by the bencficiary. 'l-he bene{lciary shall be provided inlornration on lrow to oontaot
thcir designated person or entity. (42 C.F'.R. $ 43S.20S(bXl).)
2) Coordinate the serviccs ItIBHS furnishes to the bcne{iciary between settings of care, including
appropriate discharge planning for short temr and long-term hospital and institutional stays.
Coordinate the services TCBI IS furnishes to the bcneficiary with the services the benefrciary
receives fi'om any other managcd cale organization, in IrFS Medicaid, fi'orn commlinity and
social support providcrs. and othsr hurnan services agencies used by its beucficiaries. (42 C.f.'.R.

$ 438.208(bX2Xi)-(iv), Cal. Code Regs., rir. 9 g 1 8 t 0.4 15.)
3) ICBI'f S shall share with the Department or other managed care entities serving the beneficiary
the results o1'any identilication ancl assessment o{'that bcncficiary's needs to prevent duplication
of'those activitics. (42 C.F.I{. { 438.208(bX4).)
4) Ensule that each provider tunrishing seruices to bencficiaries maintains and shares, as

appropriate, a bcne{lciat'y health record in accordance with plolcssionalstandards. (42 C.F.R. {i
438.208(LlXs).)

5) Ensure ihat, in the course of coordinating care. each beneficiary's plivac'y is protected in
accordance with alllbderaland state privacy laws, including but not limited to 45 C.F.R. $ 160

8



and $ 164, subpa(s A and E, to the exlcnt that sush provisions are applicable. (42 C.F,I{. $

438.208(b)

B. ICBIIS shall enter into a Mernorandunt ol'Understanding (MOU) with any Medi-Cal managcd care

plan serving ICBHS's beneficiaries. ICBHS shall notifo the Deparlment in writing if ICBIIS is unabie to

enter into an MOI"I or if an MOL] is terminated, providing a description of the ICBHS's good faith

effbrts to enter into or maintain the MOU. The MHP shall monitor the e fTec.tiveness of its MOU with

Medi-Cal managed care plans. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 9, $ 1810.370.)

C.ICBHS shalI implement a transition olcare policy that is consistentwith federalrequirernents and

complics with the Department's transition of care policy. (42 C.1"'.R. $ 418.62(bXl)-(2).)

IMPLEME,NTATION: Counties shall implcrncnt the documentation requirements establishcd in this

BHIN effbctive Juty 1,2022. -fhe implementation shall includc updating policies and procedures, as

lvell as supporting materials {br triennial (SMLIS) or annual (DMC/DMCODS) revicws to ensure

compliance. Counties strall conrnrunicatc these updates to ploviders as ncc€ssary

DTSCIPLINARY ACTION:

If clirrical and case management staff are out olcompliarrcc with any of the abovc rcquit'ements and

standards, a request fbr assistance in creating protected time ntttst be arranged imrnediately with the

Ctinical Administrator or the Deputy l)irector ol'Behavioral Flealth Ser"vices. Repeated incidents oinon-
compliance will rcsult in disciplinary action according to Inyo County Division of Behaviorat I'lealth

and Substance Use Disorders Programs - Poticy and Procedure 7,1 Code of Conduct and Disciplinary

Action

9



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTVOF INYO
AllFt Thnmae m [Ull) lnr d/h/a lric Medical Groun

FROM:

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES

TERM:

71112022 613012023

SEE ATTACHED INSURANGE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 144
(lndependent Contraetor Provision of Mental Health

Services) Page'16 of 16
07n4no19



Attachment D; 2O22 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the du ration of the contract insu rance against claims for injuries

to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the

work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General tiability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an

"occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury

and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 52,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general

aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this

project/location (lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required

occurrence limit. For contracts involving work with or service to minors (i.e., people under the age

of 18 in California), sexual assault and misconduct ("SAM") coverage is required with Iimits no less

than those listed in this paragraph for other types of loss. The general liability policy shall contain,

or be endorsed to contain, additional insured status. Proof of additional insured status must be

submitted along with a certificate of insurance showing general liability coverage limits. See

"Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

2. Automobile liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any

auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code S (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less

than S1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage, Provision may be woived

with signed letter on controctor's letterheod certilying that no auto or mobile equipment will be

used for/during the execution of the contract. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,

and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily

injury or disease. Provision may be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certilying

that contractor hos no employees. See "Other lnsurance Provisions" below.

4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) lnsurance appropriate to the Contractor's

profession, with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $3,000,000 a88regate.

Check with Risk Management if Professional Liability is required for the contract to which these

requirements are attached.

5. Cyber Liability lnsurance, with limits not less than S1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. Provision

may be waived if contractor will not be receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable

information (Pll) or personal medical information (PMl). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to

respond to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreernent and shall

include, but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but

not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations,

information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information, release of private

information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The policy shall

provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as

credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations, Professional

liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage'

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimu ms shown above, lnyo

County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for Professional Services 20220602



AttachmentD= 2O22 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions

Additional Insured Status: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in
connection with such work or operations, General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an
endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or if not
available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later
edition is used).

Primory Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be
primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects lnyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by lnyo County,
its officers, officials, employees, orvolunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not
contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
'Tollowing fo rm" ot broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying
Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional lnsureds,
whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to
contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Notice of Cancellotion: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

Waiver ol Subrogotion: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss

under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has received a

waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentionsz Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. lnyo
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability
to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.
The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be

satisfied by either the named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess liability
policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds $25,000 unless
approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole responsibility of

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for Professional Services 202206A2



Attachmen t D: 2O22 Insurance Require ments for Professional Services

Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the lndemnified

Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund

the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SlR) provision that limits the

satisfaction of the SIR to the Named, The policy must also provide that Defense costs, including the

Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfy the SIR or deductible. lnyo County reserves the right to
obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification.

Acceptobitity ol lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the

state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Made Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

t. TheRetroactiveDatemustbeshownandmustbebeforethedateofthecontractorthebeginningof
contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years

after completion of the contract of work.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with

a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase "extended

reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish lnyo County with original certificates and amendatory

endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required bythis clause and

a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all

policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and Endorsements

pages are to be received ad approved by lnyo County before work commences. However, failure to obtain

the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's obligation to provide

them. lnyo County reserves the right to require cornplete, certified copies of all required insurance

policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. lnyo County reserues the

right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience,

insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Subcontroctors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all

the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that lnyo County is an additional insured on

insurance required from subcontractors.

Duration of Coveroge: CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but not

limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years for
Completed Operations liability coverage. Such lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance

must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.

Speciol Risks or Circumstonces: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including

limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for Professional Services 20220642



COUNTY OF INYO
HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Business Associate Agreement ("Agreement") is

Human Services Behavioral Health Division, referred

Milam MD,Inc. dlblaIlis Telehealth Medical Group,

This Agreement is effective as of July 1,2022

R&CIIALS

CE wishes to disclose certain information to BA pursuant to the terms of the contract between BA and CE,

herein referred to as ("Contract"), some of which may constitute Protected Health Information ("PHI")
defined below.

CE and BA intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI disclosed to BA pursuant to
the Contract in compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public
Law 104-191 ("HIPAA"), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
Public Law 1 I 1-005 ("the HITECH Act"), and regulations promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (the "HIPAA Regulations") and other applicable laws.

As part of the HIPAA Regulations, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule (defined below) require CE to
enter into a contract containing specific requirements with BA prior to the disclosure of PHI, as set forlh
in, but not limited to, Title 45, Sections 164.314(a), 164.502(e) and 164.504(e) of the Code of Federal
Regulations ("C.F.R.") and contained in this Agreement.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this Agreement,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Definitions

a. Breach shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act 142 U.S.C. Section
t792tl.

b. Business Associate shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, the Security
Rule, and the HITECH Act, including but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17938 and 45 C.F.R,
Section 160.103.

c. Covered Entity shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule and the Security
Rule, including, but not limited to,45 C.F.R. Section 160.103.

d. Data Aggregation shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including,
but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

e. Designated Record Set shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule,
including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

f. Electronic Protected Health Information means Protected Health Information that is maintained
in or transmitted by electronic media.

made by and between the Inyo County Healthand

to herein as Covered Entity ("CE"), and Thomas

referred to herein as Business Associate ("8A").
(the "Agreement Effective Date").



g. Electronic Health Record shall have the meaning given to such tenn in the HITECH Act,
including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17921.

h. Health Care Operations shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule,
including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.

Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 764,
Subparts A and E.

j. Protected Health fnformation or PHI means any information, whether oral or recorded in any
form or medium: (i) that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an

individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present or future pal,rnent for
the provision of health care to an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect to
which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual,
and shall have the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited
to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501. Protected Health Information includes Electronic Protected Health
Information [45 C.F.R. Sections 160.103, 164.501].

k. Protected Information shall mean PHI provided by CE to BA or created or received by BA on
CE's behalf.

l. Security Indent shall have the same meaning given to such term at 45 C.F.R. Section 164.304

m, Security Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 C.F,R. Parts 160 and 164,
Subparts A and C.

n. Unsecured PHI shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act and any
guidance issued pursuant to such Act including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17932(h).

2. Obligations of Business Associate

a. Permitted Uses. BA shall not use Protected Information except for the purpose ofperforming BA's
obligations under the Contract and as permitted under the Contract and Agreement. Further, BA
shall not use Protected Information in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy
Rule or the HITECH Act if so used by CE. However, BA may use Protected Information
(i) for the proper management and administration of BA, (ii) to carry out the legal responsibilities
of BA, or (iii) for Data Aggregation puposes for the Health Care Operations of CE [45 C.F.R.

Sections 1 64. 5 0 4 (e) (2Xi iXA) and I 64. 5 0 4(eXaXi )1 .

b. Permitted Disclosures. BA shall not disclose Protected Information except for the purpose of
perfonning BA's obligations under the Contract and as permitted under the Contract and
Agreement. BA shall not disclose Protected Information in any manner that would constitute a

violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act if so disclosed by CE. However, BA may disclose
Protected Information (i) for the proper management and administration of BA; (ii) to carry out the
legal responsibilities of BA; (iii) as required by law or as permitted by 45 C.F.R. Section 164.502Q);

or (iv) for Data Aggregation purposes for the Health Care Operations of CE. If BA discloses
Protected Information to a third party, unless the disclosure is required by law, BA must obtain,
prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable written assurances from such third party that
such Protected Information will be held confidential as provided pursuant to this Agreement and

only disclosed as required by law or for the purposes for which was disclosed to such third party,
and (ii) a written agreement from such third party to immediately notify BA of any breaches of
confidentiality of the Protected Information, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of such breach

142 U.S.C. Section 17932; 45 C.F.R. Sections 16a.504(e)(2)(i), fta.Sja@)QxiXB),
rca.s0a@)QXii)(A) and t 64.504(e)(a)(ii )1.

2



c. Prohibited Uses and Disclosures. BA shall not use or disclose Protected lnformation for
fundraising or marketing purposes. BA shall not disclose Protected lnfotmation to a health plan for
payment or health care operations purposes ifthe patient has requested this special restriction, and

has paid out of pocket in full for the health care item or service to which the PHI solely relates [42
U.S.C. Section 17935(a)1. BA shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for
Protected Information, except with the prior written consent of CE and as permitted by the HITECH
Act, 42 U.S.C. section 17935(d)(2); however, this prohibitiori shall not affect payment by CE to
BA for services provided pursuant to the Contract.

d. Appropriate Safeguards. BA shall implement appropriate safeguards as are necessary to prevent
the use or disclosure of Protected Information otherwise than as permitted by this Agreement that
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of the Protected
Information, in accordance with 45 C.F.R. Sections 164.308, 164.310, and 164.312. 145 C.F.R.
Section 16a.504(e)(2XiiXB); 45 C.F.R. Section 164.308(b)1. BA shall comply with the policies and
procedures and documentation requirements of the HIPAA Security Rule, including, but not limited
to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.316. [42 U.S.C. Section 17931].

e. Reporting of Improper Access, Use or Disclosure. BA shall report to CE in writing of any access,

use or disclosure of Protected Information not permitted by the Contract and Agreement, and any
Breach of Unsecured PHI of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in no case

later than ten (10) calendar days after discovery [42 U.S.C. Section 17921;45 C.F.R. Section
164.50a@)QXiiXC); 45 C.F.R. Section 164.308(b)1. BA shall report to CE any Security Incident
of which BA becomes aware.

f. Business Associateos Agents. BA shall ensure that any agents, including subcontractors, to whom
it provides Protected Information, agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply
to BA with respect to such PHI and implement the safeguards required by paragraph c above with
respect to Electronic PHI [45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(e)(2XiiXD); 45 C.F.R. Section 164.308(b)].
BA shall implement and maintain sanctions against agents and subcontractors that violate such
restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such violation (see 45

C.F.R. Sections 164.530(0 and 164.530(eXt)).

g. Access to Protected Information. BA shall make Protected Infonnation maintained by BA or its
agents or subcontractors in Designated Record Sets available to CE for inspection and copying
within ten (10) days of a request by CE to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy
Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524 145 CF.R. Section
l6a.50a@)QXiiXE)1. If BA maintains an Electronic Health Record, BA shall provide such
information in electronic format to enable CE to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH Act,
including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(e).

h. Amendment of PHI. Within ten (10) days of receipt of a request from CE for an amendment of
Protected Information or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, BA or
its agents or subcontractors shall make such Protected Information available to CE for amendment
and incorporate any such amendment to enable CE to fuIfilI its obligations under the Privacy Rule,
including, but not limited to,45 C.F.R. Section 164.526.If any individualrequests an amendment
of Protected Information directly from BA or its agents or subcontractors, BA must notifu CE in
writing within five (5) days of the request. Any approval or denial of amendment of Protected
Information maintained by BA or its agents or subcontractors shall be the responsibility of CE [45
C.F.R. Section I 64.s04(e)(2XiiXF)1.

Accounting Rights. Within ten (10) days of notice by CE of a request for an accounting of
disclosures of Protected Information, BA and its agents or subcontractors shall make available to
CE the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable CE to fulfill its

t
J



obligations under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.528, and
the HITECH Act, including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(c), as determined by CE.
BA agrees to implement a process that allows for an accounting to be collected and maintained by
BA and its agents or subcontractors for at least six (6) years prior to the request, However,
accounting of disclosures from an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment or health care

operations purposes are required to be collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to the

request, and only to the extent that BA maintains an electronic health record and is subject to this
requirement. At a minimum, the information collected and maintained shall include: (i) the date of
disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who received Protected Information and, if known,
the address of the entity or person; (iii) a brief description of Protected Information disclosed and
(iv) a brief statement of purpose of the disclosure that reasonably infotms the individual of the basis

for the disclosure, or a copy ofthe individuals' authorization, or a copy ofthe written request for
disclosure. In the event that the request for an accounting is delivered directly to BA or its agents

or subcontractors, BA shall within five (5) days of a request forward it to CE in writing. It shall be

CE's responsibility to prepare and deliver any such accounting requested. BA shall not disclose
any Protected Information except as set forth in Sections 2.b. ofthis Agreement [45 C.F.R. Sections
164.s04(e)(2xiD(c) and I 65.5281.

Governmental Access to Records. BA shall make its internal practices, books and records relating
to the use and disclosure of Protected Information available to CE and to the Secretary of the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (the "Secretary") for purposes of determining BA's
compliance with the Privacy Rule [45 C.F.R. Section Ka.504(e)(2xii)(H)]. BA shall provide to
CE a copy of any Protected Information that BA provides to the Secretary concurrently with
providing such Protected Information to the Secretary.

k. Minimum Necessary. BA (and its agents or subcontractors) shall request, use and disclose only
the minimum amount of Protected Information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the request,

use, or disclosure. [42 U.S.C. Section 17935(b); 45 C.F.R. Section 164.514(dX3)] BA understands
and agrees that the definition of 'ominimum necessary" is in flux and shall keep itself informed of
guidance issued by the Secretary with respect to what constitutes "minimum necessary."

l. Data Ownership. BA acknowledges that BA has no ownership rights with respect to the Protected
Information.

m. Notification of Breach. During the term of the Contract, BA shall notify CE, without unreasonable
delay and in no case later than ten (10) calendar days after discovery, ofany suspected or actual
breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI of which BA becomes aware
and/or any actual or suspected use or disclosure ofdata in violation ofany applicable federal or state

laws or regulations. BA shall take (i) prompt corrective action to cure any such deficiencies and (ii)
any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by applicable federal and state laws
and regulations.

n. Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 17934(b), if the

BA knows of a pattern of activity or practice of the CE that constitutes a material breach or violation
of the CE's obligations under the Contract or Agreement or other arrangement, the BA must take
reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation. If the steps are unsuccessful, the BA must

terminate the Contract or other arrangement if feasible, or if termination is not feasible, report the

problem to the Secretary of DHHS. BA shall provide written notice to CE of any pattern of activity
or practice of the CE that BA believes constitutes a material breach or violation of the CE's
obligations under the Contract or Agreement or other arrangement within five (5) days of discovery
and shall meet with CE to discuss and attempt to resolve the problemas one of the reasonable steps

to cure the breach or end the violation.

4



o. Audits, fnspection and Enforcement. Within ten (10) days of a written request by CE, BA and

its agents or subcontractors shall allow CE to conduct a reasonable inspection of the facilities,
systems, books, records, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use or disclosure of
Protected Information pursuant to this Agreement for the purpose of determining whether BA has

complied with this Agreement; provided, however, that (i) BA and CE shall mutually agree in
advance upon the scope, timing and location of such an inspection, and (iD CE shall protect the

confidentiality of all confidential and proprietary information of BA to which CE has access during
the course of such inspection. The fact that CE inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to
inspect, BA's facilities, systems, books, records, agreements, policies and procedures does not
relieve BA of its responsibility to comply with this Agreement, nor does CE's (i) failure to detect

or (ii) detection, but failure to notify BA or require BA's remediation of any unsatisfactory
practices, constitute acceptance of such practice or a waiver of CE's enforcement rights under the

Contract or Agreement. BA shall notifu CE within ten (10) days of learning that BA has become
the subject of an audit, compliance review, or complaint investigation by the Office for Civil
Rights.

3. Termination

a. Material Breach. A breach by BA of any provision of this Agreement, as detennined by CE, shall
constitute a material breach of the Contract and shall provide grounds for immediate termination
of the Contract, any provision in the Contract to the contrary notwithstanding. [45
C.F.R. Section I 6a.s0a(e)(2)(iii)1.

b. Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. CE may terminate the Contract, effective immediately,
if (i) BA is named as a defendant in a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, the HIPAA Regulations or other security or privacy laws or (ii) a finding or stipulation that
the BA has violated any standard or requirement of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA
Regulations or other security or privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in
which the party has been joined.

Effect of Termination. Upon termination of the Contract for any reason, BA shall, at the option
of CE, return or destroy all Protected Information that BA or its agents or subcontractors still
maintain in any form, and shall retain no copies of such Protected Information. If retum or
destruction is not feasible, as determined by CE, BA shall continue to extend the protections of
Section 2 of this Agreement to such information, and limit further use of such PHI to those purposes

that make the retum or destruction of such PHI infeasible. [45 C.F.R. Section l6a.50a(e)(iix20].
If CE elects destruction of the PHI, BA shall certiff in writing to CE that such PHI has been

destroyed.

4. Disclaimer

CE makes no warranty or representation that compliance by BA with this Agreement, HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, or the HIPAA Regulations will be adequate or satisfactory for BA's own purposes. BA is solely
responsible for all decisions made by BA regarding the safeguarding of PHI.

5. Amendment

The parties acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to data security and privacy are rapidly evolving
and that amendment of the Contract of Agreement may be required to provide for procedures to ensure

compliance with such developments. The parties specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to
implement the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule, the Security
Rule, and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality of PHI. The parties understand ad

agree that CE must receive satisfactory written assurance from BA that BA will adequately

c

5



safeguard all Protected Information. Upon the request of either party, the other party agrees to promptly
enter into negotiations concerning the terms of an amendment to this Agreement embodying written
assurances consistent with the standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule,
the Security Rule or other applicable laws. CE may terminate the Contract upon thirty (30) days written
notice in the event (i) BA does not promptly enter into negotiations to amend the Contract or Agreement
when requested by CE pursuant to this Section or (ii) BA does not enter not enter into an amendment to the

Contract or Agreement providing assurances regarding the safeguarding of PHI that CE, in its sole
discretion, deems sufficient to satisfu the standards and requirements of applicable laws.

6. Assistance in Litigation of Administrative Proceedings

BA shall make itself, and any subcontractors, employees or agents assisting BA in the performance of its
obligations under the Contract or Agreement, available to CE, at no cost to CE, to testifli as witnesses, or
otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced against CE, its
directors, officers or employees based upon a claimed violation by BA of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the
Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, or other laws relating to security and privacy, except where BA or its
subcontractor, employee or agent is also named as an adverse party.

7. No Third-Party Beneficiaries

Nothing express or implied in the Contract or Agreement is intended to confer, nor shall an1'thing herein
confer, upon any person other than CE, BA and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies,
obligations or liabilities whatsoever.

8. Effect on Contract

Except as specifically required to implement the purposes of this Agreement, or to the extent inconsistent
with this Agreement, all other terms of the Contract shall remain in full force and effect.

9. Interpretation

The provisions of this Agreement shall prevail over any provisions in the Contract that may conflict or
appear inconsistent with any provision in this Agreement. This Agreement and the Contract shall be
interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy
Rule and the Security Rule. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in
favor of a meaning that complies and is consistent with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the
Security Rule.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the Agreement
Effective Date.

COVERED ENTITY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

County of Inyo Thomas Milam MD. Inc. d/b/a Iris Telehealth Medical Group

Title

By:

Digilally signed by Stephanie

SteOhanie J2;'1fts1sy rantstey
Date: 2022.09.07 1 3:42:55 -07'00'

Diqitallv siqned bv Thomas Milam,

Thomas Milam. MD vo
t5y: __' Dalet 2o22.09.oa'l1t'12147 -o4'oo'

Print Name Stephanie Tanksley Print Name: Thomas Milam

lnyo County PIQA Manager/HIPAA Officer ,,,,". Chief Medical Officer

D^t".09107122

6

Date 0910812022



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3514  

 

Anthem Housing & Homelessness Incentive Program 
(HHIP) Agreement 

Health & Human Services - Fiscal 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director - Public Health Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Blue Cross of California Partnership 
Plan (Anthem Blue Cross) for the purpose of building partnerships and addressing housing and 
homelessness on behalf of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, servicing Alpine, Inyo, and Mono 
counties, in an amount not to exceed $120,668 for the period of November 1, 2022 to December 31, 
2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care (ESCoC) provides services and implements homelessness 
prevention programs throughout  Inyo, Mono, and Alpine Counties for the purpose of coordinating 
services and providing funding for non-profit providers and local government agencies to house or re-
house individuals, youth, and families who are experiencing homelessness. 
 
Inyo County Health and Human Services agreed to take the role of Collaborative Applicant on behalf of 
the ESCoC, as well as the lead agency for the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS), in 
May 2022, and has worked with the Department of Housing and Urban Development and California's 
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency (BCSH) to become the designated administrative 
entity.  This designation allows the department to apply for funding on behalf of the ESCoC region. 
 
The ESCoC has worked collaboratively with the two Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) in the 
region, Anthem Blue Cross and California Health and Wellness, to develop a Housing and 
Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) Plan in each county that will enable both plans to draw down 
incentive funding from the CA Deaprtment of Health Care Services (DHCS) and invest the funds locally 
for the purpose of improving service coordination. The incentive funds can be used to improve CoC 
infrastructure, including improvements to the existing Homeless Management Information System 
(HMIS) and associated Coordinated Entry System to ensure seamless entry into, and access to, a 
variety of services provided by CoC partners and the MCPs.   
 
The Department requests your Board to approve the HHIP Agreement between Inyo County and Anthem 
Blue Cross so that incentive funds can be drawn down and administered locally on behalf of the ESCoC 
region.  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 055900 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4498 
Recurrence One Time funding  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
These monies will be deposited into a trust until allowable expenses are paid out of the CoC budget 
(055900). 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to enter the agreement with Anthem Blue Cross. Doing so would mean that 
Inyo, Alpine and Mono Counties would not receive additional funding to support integration of this 
Managed Medi-Cal Plan into the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care and associated Coordinated Entry 
System. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, including Mono County, Alpine County, Mammoth Lakes Housing, 
and other partner agencies that serve individuals who are homeless or who are at risk of becoming 
homeless. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County HHIP Anthem Grant Agreement - Alpine, Inyo, Mono Counties 
  
APPROVALS: 
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 3/15/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/15/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/6/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/6/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/7/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

1 
 

Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program Agreement 
BETWEEN BLUE CROSS OF CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP PLAN, INC.  

AND 

Inyo County Health and Human Services Agency 

 
THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) by and between Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, Inc. 
and its affiliates (“Anthem”) and the Inyo County Health and Human Services Agency (HHIP Grantee”) 
is effective upon the date of complete execution of the Agreement (the “Effective Date”). The scope of 
services, reporting, and funding details are included in Exhibit A.  
 
WHEREAS: The Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) is a two-year incentive program 
from the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) that allows Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans 
(MCP’s) to earn funds by working with community organizations to build partnerships and address 
housing and homelessness. As part of HHIP, Anthem is making investments to community partners - 
“HHIP Grantees” to address identified gaps and needs and meet HHIP metrics.  

 
 

AGREEMENT: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows. 
 

1. Anthem and HHIP Grantee each desire to participate in HHIP (the “Program”) geared towards 
improving partnerships and addressing housing and homelessness among Medi-Cal members. 
HHIP Grantee agrees to perform the services, and agrees to program goals, metrics and objectives 
as specified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 
2. To the extent any provision contained in this Agreement conflicts with the terms and conditions 

of HHIP Grantee Agreement with Anthem, then HHIP Grantee Agreement shall control. 
 

3. The parties acknowledge and agree that all information related to the Program created and/or 
furnished by one party to the other party as a result of this Agreement is proprietary and 
confidential.  HHIP Grantee and Anthem agree not to use such proprietary and confidential 
information except for the purpose of carrying out their obligations under this Agreement.  
Neither party shall disclose any proprietary and confidential information to any person or entity 
without the other party’s express written consent, except as required pursuant to applicable law, 
regulatory requirements or legal order, in which case such party shall immediately notify the 
other party of the receipt of any such request for disclosure prior to the disclosure. 

 
4. The Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and will be in force until the DHCS 

incentive phase out fiscal year 2024-2025 from the Effective Date unless the Agreement is earlier 
terminated as specified in Exhibit A.  

 



   

2 
 

5. Either party may terminate this Agreement with or without cause on thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice to the other party.  This Agreement will automatically terminate upon one or more 
of the following events: 

 
a. Termination of HHIP Grantee Agreement with Anthem; or      
b. HHIP Grantee fails to meet requirements and measurements as outlined in Exhibit A. 

 
6. The parties hereto represent to each other that to their knowledge this Agreement (i) has been 

validly executed and delivered, and (ii) has been duly authorized by all corporate action necessary 
for the authorization. 

 
7. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of 

California. 
 

8. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of HHIP Grantee and Anthem and will not be construed 
to give rise to or create any liability or obligation to, or to afford any claim or cause of action to, 
any other person or entity. 

 
10. Each party agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other party from and against any 

and all liability, loss, claim, damage or expense, including defense costs and legal fees, incurred 
in connection with a breach of any representation and warranty made by a party in this 
Agreement, and for claims for damages of any nature whatsoever, arising from a party’s 
performance or failure to perform its obligations hereunder.  

 
11. Provider agrees that HHIP funds cannot be used for long-term “room and board” costs which is 

defined as long-term rental assistance. This does not include shelter operations or shelter costs, 
short-term or emergency rental assistance, housing related costs for housing lease-up, capital 
funds for permanent affordable or supportive housing development or rehab, or housing 
development operating subsidies.  

 
12. The funding for this Agreement is subject to Anthem’s receipt of HHIP funds from DHCS.  
 
  



   

3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed. 
    

Inyo County Health and Human Services Agency BLUE CROSS OF CALIFORNIA PARTNERSHIP 
PLAN, INC. (Anthem Blue Cross) 

 
 
Signature:____________________________ 
 
 

 
Signature:____________________________ 
 

 
Name:_______________________________ 
 
 

 
Name:_______________________________ 
 

 
Date: _______________________________ 
 
 

 
Date: _______________________________ 
 

 

  



   

4 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
HHIP is for Anthem California Medicaid business-only. Unless otherwise defined in this Agreement, all 
defined terms shall have the meanings set forth in the DHCS HHIP All Plan Letter (APL).  
  
Under the Program, Anthem will advance funds (See Total Grant Amount) as a grant to assist Anthem 
with meeting HHIP metrics during the Program measurement periods. If the Program Agreement between 
Anthem and HHIP Grantee is terminated for any reason during the duration of this Agreement, Provider 
understands and agrees that it will repay the Grant in full.   
 
1. Grantee Information:  
 

Grantee Name: Inyo County Health and Human 
Services Agency 

Primary Contact for Grant:  
Name: Anna Scott 
Email: HHS-Admin@inyocounty.us 
Phone: 760-873-3305 

Grantee Address:  
1360 N. Main St., Bishop, CA 93514 

County(s) Served: Alpine, Inyo, Mono 
 

 

2. Description of Grant/Investment: The Inyo County Health and Human Services Agency serves 
as the administrative entity for the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care (CoC), including 
administering the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and Coordinated Entry 
System (CES). Funds will support the following at the Inyo County Health and Human Services 
Agency on behalf of the Eastern Sierra CoC: 

 
• Enhanced staffing capacity for coordinating with Anthem on HHIP activities.   
• Costs for the CoC to complete the 2023 Point In Time Count.  
• Operations costs and enhancements to the Homeless Management Information System 

(HMIS) and Coordinated Entry System (CES). This includes enhanced staffing capacity 
and necessary technology upgrades/reporting requirements to meet HHIP metrics.  

• Flexible housing funds to support unit lease up and other housing lease up costs including 
furniture and other move in costs.  
 

3. HHIP Measures to be Impacted: The following HHIP measures are intended to be successfully 
impacted/achieved by the grant. The grantee has reviewed and understands the definitions and 
expectations of the intended impacted DHCS HHIP metrics below:  

Priority Area 1: Partnership and Capacity to 
Support Referrals for Services 

Priority Area 2: Infrastructure to 
Coordinate and Meet Member 
Housing Needs 

Priority Area 3: Delivery of 
Services and Member Engagement 

☒ 1.1 Engagement with the CoC ☐ 2.1 Connection with street medicine 
team (DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 3.3 MCP members experiencing 
homelessness who were successfully 
engaged in ECM 

☒ 1.2 Connection and Integration with the local 
Homeless Coordinated Entry System (DHCS 
Priority Measure) 

☒ 2.2 MCP Connection with the local 
Homeless Management Information 
System (HMIS) (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☒  3.4 MCP members experiencing 
homelessness receiving at least one 
housing related Community Supports 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

https://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/Documents/MMCDAPLsandPolicyLetters/APL2022/APL22-007.pdf


   

5 
 

☐ 1.3 Identifying and addressing barriers to 
providing medically appropriate and cost-
effective housing-related Community Supports 

☒  3.5 MCP members who were 
successfully housed (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☒ 1.4 Partnerships with counties, CoC, and/or 
organizations that deliver housing services with 
whom the MCP has a data sharing agreement 
that allows for timely information exchange and 
member matching (DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐  3.6 MCP members who remained 
successfully housed (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☒ 1.6 Partnerships and strategies the MCP will 
develop to address disparities and equity in 
service delivery, housing placements, and 
housing retention (aligns with HHAP-3) 

 

4. Grantee Deliverables/Reporting: Grantee is agreeing to work in partnership with Anthem Blue 
Cross on achieving HHIP metrics identified above.  

During HHIP Measurement Period 1 (5/1/22-12/31/22) with reporting to Anthem by 
February 1, 2023 grantee will do the following:  

• Participate in monthly HHIP Implementation meetings with Anthem and 
partners.  

• Provide Anthem with process on how Anthem staff can volunteer for the Point In 
Time Count by December 1, 2022.  

• Develop CES strategies for Anthem involvement focused on CalAIM services 
and work with Anthem to craft narrative for HHIP measure 1.2 Alpine, Inyo, and 
Mono Counties for submission 1. Integrate new strategies into CoC CES Policies 
and Procedures. Strategies should include how to increase connection between 
the CES including increasing referrals for ECM and CS services. 

• Develop strategies (in alignment with the CoC) to address disparities and 
promote equity and identify Anthem’s role in these strategies. With Anthem, 
craft narrative strategies for HHIP measure 1.6 for Alpine, Inyo, and Mono 
Counties for submission 1. 

• Facilitate “view only” access to the Homeless Management Information System 
(HMIS) for Anthem care coordination staff and provide training to new users to 
gain their license.  

• Work with Anthem to develop program model for deployment of flexible 
financial assistance for housing lease up.  
 

During HHIP Measurement Period 2 (1/1/23-10/31/23) with reporting to Anthem by 
December 1, 2023 grantee will do the following: 

• Participate in monthly HHIP Implementation meetings with Anthem and 
partners.  

• Identify Anthem as a funder/partner of the PIT Count in community messaging, 
materials, and the final public report distributed to the community.  

• With Anthem develop a plan for creating HMIS “alerts” for member housing 
status changes with timeline to implement by October 31, 2023. 



   

6 
 

• Begin implementation of CES strategies for Anthem involvement. Begin making 
referrals through CES for ECM and CS services. With Anthem craft narrative for 
HHIP measure 1.2 for Alpine, Inyo, and Mono Counties for submission 2.  

• Begin implementation of equity strategies with Anthem. With Anthem craft 
narrative for HHIP measure 1.6 for Alpine, Inyo, and Mono Counties for 
submission 2.  

• Disperse flexible financial assistance for housing lease up. For Anthem members 
receiving services, refer eligible members to ECM and/or CS services. Provide 
the names of Anthem members who were permanently housed through the use of 
funds.  

• Implement HMIS technology solutions for Anthem to receive alerts on members 
when there is a housing status change. Initiate data sharing agreements as 
appropriate.  

 

5. Anthem Responsibilities:  
a. Identify a point of contact to serve as a liaison for HHIP grant.  
b. Participate as necessary in any planning activities, system/program design, or any other 

necessary meetings to implement activities being funded by the HHIP grant. 
c. Distribute funds to HHIP grantee based on Disbursement Intervals below.  
d. Periodically meet with HHIP grantee to monitor progress on achieving anticipated HHIP 

metrics. Engage with HHIP grantee on strategies to improve/address challenges to 
meeting HHIP metrics.  

 
6. Total Grant Amount: $120,668  

The following table includes breakdowns of grant activities between two counties (For Anthem 
internal use). 

Activity  Alpine County Inyo County Mono County 
CoC Infrastructure for HHIP and 
HMIS/CES Enhancements $1,749 $29,366 $19,397 

PIT Count Support $1,273 $21,364 $14,112 
Flexible Financial Assistance for 
Housing Lease Up $1,156 $19,422 $12,829 

Totals $4,178 $70,152 $46,338 
 
 

7. Effective Date: 11/1/22-12/31/2023 
 

8. Disbursement Intervals: The total grant will be dispersed using the following intervals: 
 

• $60,334 upon execution of the HHIP grant agreement 
• $60,334 upon delivering plan to Anthem outlining the process to implement HMIS 

“alerts” for members housing status changes.  

 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3515  

 

California Health and Wellness Housing and 
Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) Agreement 

Health & Human Services - Fiscal 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Anna Scott, HHS Deputy Director - Public Health Marilyn Mann, HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and Health Net, LLC and California 
Health and Wellness Plan for the purpose of building partnerships and addressing housing and 
homelessness on behalf of the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, servicing Alpine, Inyo, and Mono 
counties, in an amount not to exceed $78,417 for the period of January 1, 2023 to October 31, 2023, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care (ESCoC) provides services and implements homelessness 
prevention programs throughout  Inyo, Mono, and Alpine Counties for the purpose of coordinating 
services and providing funding for non-profit providers and local government agencies to house or re-
house individuals, youth, and families who are experiencing homelessness. 
 
Inyo County Health and Human Services agreed to take the role of Collaborative Applicant on behalf of 
the ESCoC, as well as the lead agency for the Homeless Management Information System (HMIS), in 
May 2022, and has worked with the Department of Housing and Urban Development and California's 
Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency (BCSH) to become the designated administrative 
entity.  This designation allows the department to apply for funding on behalf of the ESCoC region. 
 
The ESCoC has worked collaboratively with the two Medi-Cal Managed Care Plans (MCPs) in the 
region, Anthem Blue Cross and California Health and Wellness, to develop a Housing and 
Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) Plan in each county that will enable both plans to draw down 
incentive funding from the CA Deaprtment of Health Care Services (DHCS) and invest the funds locally 
for the purpose of improving service coordination. The incentive funds can be used to improve CoC 
infrastructure, including improvements to the existing Homeless Management Information System 
(HMIS) and associated Coordinated Entry System to ensure seamless entry into, and access to, a 
variety of services provided by CoC partners and the MCPs.   
 
The Department requests your Board to approve the HHIP Agreement between Inyo County and 
California Health and Wellness so that incentive funds can be drawn down and administered locally on 
behalf of the ESCoC region. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 055900 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4498 
Recurrence One Time funding  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
These monies will be deposited into a trust until allowable expenses are paid out of the CoC budget 
(055900). 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to enter the agreement with California Health and Wellness. Doing so 
would mean that Inyo, Alpine and Mono Counties would not receive additional funding to support 
integration of this Managed Medi-Cal Plan into the Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care and associated 
Coordinated Entry System. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Eastern Sierra Continuum of Care, including Mono and Alpine Counties, Mammoth Lakes Housing, 
CILS, Wild Iris 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CA Health and Wellness HHIP Grant Agreement Letter  
  
APPROVALS: 
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 3/15/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/16/2023 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/6/2023 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/6/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/7/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Marilyn Mann Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 1 

 
 
 

IPP Q22022-0355 Burgess Brothers Restaurant LLC 

3/21/23 
 
Marilyn Mann 
Health and Human Services Director 
Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services 
1360 North Main Street, Suite 201 
Bishop, California 93514 
 
Dear Marilyn: 
 
Health Net, LLC ("Health Net'') and California Health & Wellness Plan (“CHW”), sometimes 
collectively referred to as “the Health Plan” are pleased to inform you that it has approved an 
incentive payment pursuant to the Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”), Title 42, Section 438.6(b) 
and the California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) Housing and Homelessness 
Incentive Program in the amount of $78,417 to Inyo County Department of Health and Human 
Services, ("Grantee") on the terms and conditions of this Incentive Letter and Agreement 
("Agreement"). 

This Agreement is made and entered into effective January 1, 2023 (“Effective Date”), by and 
between the Health Plan and Inyo County Department of Health and Human Services (“Grantee”) 
for the Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program.  

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Tax Exemption Status. If Grantee is exempt from state and/or federal taxation, Grantee will 
provide The Health Plan proof of such exemption upon The Health Plan’s written request. If the 
Grant is a taxable event for Grantee, Grantee agrees to pay all taxes associated with the Grant 
and Grantee will indemnify the Health Plan against any such taxes. 
 
2. Purpose of Grant. Grantee agrees to use the entire Incentive exclusively to support the 
specific goals, objectives, activities, and outcomes stated in Exhibits A, B and C. Grantee may 
not use any part of the Grant, including any interest earned thereon, for any other purpose 
without the prior written approval of the Health Plan. In no event shall Grantee use any of the 
funds from this Grant to (a) support a political campaign, (b) support or attempt to influence 
any government legislation, except making available the results of non-partisan analysis, study 
or research, or (c) grant an award to another party or for any purpose other than one specified 
in Section 170(c)(2)(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended.  
 
3. Term of Grant. The grant period is from January 1, 2023 through October 31, 2023 (the 
“Project”). Grantee shall fulfill all outlined grantee activities/deliverables/outcomes on or 
before the end of the grant period. 



 
 
 

Page 2 

 
 
 

 
4. Return of Incentive Funds. The Health Plan reserves the right to discontinue, modify or 
withhold payments to be made under this Agreement or to require a total or partial return of 
any funds, including any unexpended funds under the following conditions: (i) if the Health 
Plan, in its sole discretion, determines that the Grantee has not performed in accordance with 
this Agreement or has failed to comply with any term or condition of this Agreement; (ii) if 
Grantee loses its status as an eligible Grantee under Paragraph 1 above; (iii) if Grantee fails to 
complete and/or achieve the specified grantee activities/deliverables/outcomes outlined in 
Exhibit A, B, or C; or (iv) such action is necessary to comply with the requirements of any law or 
regulation applicable to Grantee or to the Health Plan or to this Incentive. 
 
5. Reports, Records, Audits and Site Visits. Grantee shall submit written progress report(s) to 
the Health Plan in accordance with the due dates stated on the Incentive Summary in Exhibit A, 
B, and C. The Health Plan is authorized to conduct audits, including on-site audits, at any time 
during the term of this Incentive and within four years after completion of the Project. Grantee 
shall allow the Health Plan and its representatives, at its request, to have reasonable access 
during regular business hours to Grantee’s files, records, accounts, personnel and client or 
other beneficiaries for the purpose of making such audits, verifications or program evaluations 
as the Health Plan deems necessary or appropriate concerning this Incentive. Grantee shall 
maintain accounting records sufficient to identify the Incentive and to whom and for what 
purpose such funds are expended for at least four (4) years after the Incentive has been 
expended. 
 
6. Representations. Grantee acknowledges, represents, and agrees (i) that it acts completely 
independently of the Health Plan and is solely responsible for any and all activities of Grantee 
including without limitation those activities that are supported by the Grant, and (ii), to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Health Plan, its 
affiliates, officers, directors, trustees, employees and agents from and against any and all 
claims, liabilities, losses, taxes and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising from, 
or in connection with, the Project and any act or omission of Grantee, its employees, or agents, 
in applying for, accepting, receiving and expending the Incentive. 
 
7. Other Obligations. Grantee acknowledges that the Grantee has no obligation to the 
Company in consideration for the Incentive, other than to (i) publicly recognize the Health Plan 
as a sponsor of the Project in all public hearings, public events and media sessions, (ii) 
collaborate with the Health Plan to enhance public awareness of the Health Plan's sponsorship 
of the Project, (iii) placement of the Health Plan's name and logo and a brief description of the 
Health Plan's sponsorship in all relevant marketing materials, collateral, social media and similar 
public communications stating that the Project was made possible through the generous 
support of the Health Plan, (iv) permit the Health Plan to use Grantee’s name, trademark, logo 



 
 
 

Page 3 

 
 
 

and other identifies in communications and publications (including internet, radio, television, 
etc.) in furtherance of the Health Plan’s efforts to inform others of its connection to the Project, 
and (v) provide the Health Plan with audio, visual and/or written testimonials that promote the 
Health Plan’s connection to the Project. 
 
8. Independence of the Parties. Neither the Incentive nor this Agreement shall be deemed to 
create any relationship of agency, partnership or joint venture between the parties, and 
Grantee shall make no such representation to anyone. If any portion of this Agreement is found 
to be illegal or invalid, it shall not invalidate the remaining portions of the document, provided 
the essential purposes for which each party has entered into this Agreement can still be 
achieved. 
 
9. Equal Employment Opportunity. Grantee agrees to comply with and be bound by the 
nondiscrimination and affirmative action clauses contained in: Executive Order 11246, as 
amended, relative to equal opportunity for all persons without regard to race, color, religion, 
sex or national origin; the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, relative to the 
employment of qualified handicapped individuals without discrimination based upon their 
physical or mental handicaps; the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, 
as amended, relative to the employment of disabled veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era, 
and the implementing rules and regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Labor in Title 41, 
Part 60 of the CFR. 
 
10. Immigration Act Requirements. Grantee shall comply during the term of this Agreement 
with the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and any regulations 
promulgated thereunder. Grantee hereby certifies that it has obtained a properly completed 
Employment Eligibility Certificate (INS Form I-9) for each worker performing services related to 
the program described in the Evaluation Plan. 
 
11. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall supersede any prior and contemporaneous oral 
and written understandings or communications between the parties and it constitutes the 
entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may 
not be delegated, assigned, amended, or modified except upon the written consent of both 
parties hereto. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 



 
 
 

Page 4 

 
 
 

 
Martha Santana-Chin             
Medicare & Medi-Cal President                 
Health Net      

 
 
Agreed to:  Marilyn Mann 
 
Signature:  _________________________________________________ 
 
Name:   _________________________________________________ 
 
Title:   _________________________________________________ 
 
Date:   _________________________________________________ 
  
  



 
 
 

Page 5 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

INCENTIVE NUMBER:   01-08-05 DATE AUTHORIZED: 3/21/23 

ORGANIZATION NAME:   Inyo County Department 
of Health and Human Services 

AMOUNT:  $1,782 

GRANT PERIOD: January 1, 2023 – October 31, 2023 

PROJECT CONTACT, TITLE:  Marilyn Mann, Health and Human Services Director 

TELEPHONE:    760-873-3305 EMAIL:    mmann@inyocounty.us 

COUNTY: Alpine 

HEALTH NET/CHW INCENTIVE CONTACT:  Amber Kemp, Vice President, Medi-Cal Regional Lead 
EMAIL:  amber.kemp@cahealthwellness.com 

HHIP INCENTIVE PURPOSE:   
As designed, the DHCS Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) is an incentive program that aims 
to improve health outcomes and access to whole person care services by addressing housing insecurity and 
instability as a social determinant of health for the Medi-Cal population.  The goals of HHIP are to:  
 

1. Reduce and prevent homelessness; and,  
2. Ensure Medi-Cal managed care plans (MCPs) develop the necessary capacity and partnerships to 

connect their members to needed housing services. 

  

DESCRIPTION OF GRANT/INVESTMENT: 
Funds will support CoC infrastructure & capacity, the 2023 Point in Time (PIT) Count, and flexible financial 
assistance to support housing lease up activities.  Investments will help to drive CoC engagement and 
participation in supporting achievement of HHIP measures for Alpine, Inyo, and Mono counties.     

HHIP MEASURES TO BE IMPACTED: 
The following HHIP measures are intended to be successfully impacted/achieved by the grant. The Grantee has 
reviewed and understands the definitions/expectations of the intended impacted DHCS HHIP measures below: 

Priority Area 1: Partnership and 
Capacity to Support Referrals for 
Services 

Priority Area 2: Infrastructure 
to Coordinate and Meet 
Member Housing Needs 

Priority Area 3: Delivery of 
Services and Member 
Engagement 

☒ 1.1 Engagement with the CoC ☐ 2.1 Connection with street 
medicine team (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☐ 3.1 Percent of MCP 
members screened for 
homelessness/risk of 
homelessness 



 
 
 

Page 6 

 
 
 

☒ 1.2 Connection and Integration with 
the local Homeless Coordinated Entry 
System (DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 2.2 MCP Connection with the 
local Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐ 3.2 MCP members who 
were discharged from an 
inpatient setting or have been 
to the emergency department 
for services two or more times 
in a 4-month period who were 
screened for homelessness or 
risk of homelessness 

☐ 1.3 Identifying and addressing 
barriers to providing medically 
appropriate and cost-effective housing-
related Community Supports 

☒ 3.3 MCP members 
experiencing homelessness 
who were successfully 
engaged in ECM 

☒ 1.4 Partnerships with counties, CoC, 
and/or organizations that deliver 
housing services with whom the MCP 
has a data sharing agreement that 
allows for timely information exchange 
and member matching (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☒  3.4 MCP members 
experiencing homelessness 
receiving at least one housing 
related Community Supports 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐ 1.5 Data sharing agreement with 
county MHPs and DMC-ODS 

☒  3.5 MCP members who 
were successfully housed 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 1.6 Partnerships and strategies the 
MCP will develop to address disparities 
and equity in service delivery, housing 
placements, and housing retention 
(aligns with HHAP-3) 

☒  3.6 MCP members who 
remained successfully housed 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

 

GRANT AMOUNT BREAKDOWN & DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDING 
The following table includes a breakdown of grant funding by HHIP Investment Plan activity: 
 

HHIP Investment Plan Activity Funding Amount Primary HHIP 
Measure Impacted 

Supporting CoC Infrastructure & Infrastructure  $746 2.2 

Supporting the Point-in-Time (PIT) Count $543 1.1 

Supporting Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing Lease 
Up Activities  

$493 3.5 

The Health Plan will disburse the grant award in two (2) installments.   
 



 
 
 

Page 7 

 
 
 

To be eligible for funding, Grantee must submit one (1) copy of Grantee’s W-9 form and such other 
documentation reasonably requested by the Health Plan. 
 
The Health Plan will make the first payment in the amount of $1,336.50 (75% of the grant award) within 
approximately ninety (90) calendar days of the receipt of Grantee’s completed Agreement. 
 
The Health Plan will make the second payment in the amount of $445.50 (25% of the grant award) by June 1, 
2023, or within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt and approval of the Grantee interim progress report, 
whichever is later. 
 
The Health Plan shall have no obligation to provide any additional funding or incentive support to Grantee 
under this Agreement or for any other purpose.  Grantee shall refrain from using any portion of the Incentive 
for costs not approved under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Capital campaigns; 

• Endowments; 

• Annual drives or fundraisers; 

• Operating deficit or debt retirement; 

• Services or costs previously funded by the Health Plan other duplicative funding source; or  

• Direct services billable to the Health Plan, and/or other miscellaneous lines items. 
 

GRANTEE ACTIVITIES/DELIVERABLES/OUTCOMES & REPORTING: 
Grantee is agreeing to work in partnership with the Health Plan on achieving/impacting the indicated HHIP 
measures identified above. 
 

During HHIP Measurement Period 2 (1/1/23-10/31/23), with reporting due to the Health Plan by December 1, 
2023, Grantee will do the following: 
 

HHIP Investment Plan Activity    GRANTEE ACTIVITIES/DELIVERABLES/OUTCOMES 

Supporting CoC Infrastructure & Capacity • Participate in monthly HHIP Implementation 
meetings with CHW and partners 

• Develop strategies (in alignment with the CoC) to 
address disparities and promote equity and 
identify CHW’s role in these strategies 

• Partner with CHW to craft narrative for HHIP 
measure 1.6 submissions 

• Enhance/upgrade HMIS to facilitate “timely alerts” 
for MCPs when a member experiences a change in 
housing status 



 
 
 

Page 8 

 
 
 

• Enhance CES to facilitate referrals to CalAIM ECM 
and CS for members experiencing homelessness 

• Provide access to HMIS for CHW staff  

• Support coordination of persons experiencing 
homeless into CalAIM ECM and CS 

Supporting the Point-in-Time (PIT) Count • Increase staffing/volunteer capacity for the PIT 
Count 

• Purchase of supplies and incentives  

• Provide CHW will information on how CHW staff 
can volunteer for PIT Count 

• Report to CHW on how HHIP funds 
supported/enhanced the 2023 PIT Count  

Supporting Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing 
Lease Up Activities  

• Funds will support housing lease up activities 
including deposits, landlord incentives, furniture, 
etc. Funds will compliment and not duplicate 
CalAIM housing-related Community Supports 

• Partner with CHW to develop program model for 
deployment of flexible financial assistance for 
housing lease up and disperse funds 

• For CHW members receiving services, refer eligible 
members to ECM and/or CS services 

• Provide the names of CHW members who were 
permanently house using these funds 

 
The Health Plan may request additional reporting during the Grant Period and up to one (1) year after the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
The Health Plan may change the reporting due date based on changes or communications from DHCS’s 
submission timeframe. The report will document progress and provide data in accordance with the progress 
report template provided by the Health Plan and include any other requirements imposed by DHCS.   
The reporting obligations of this Article shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

RECOGNITION:  
Grantee agrees to place the Health Net or CHW logo, name, etc. on all related materials for the Grantee’s 
Project as a sponsor and/or funder for this program.  The Health Plan will work with the Grantee to determine 
which logo (Health Net or CHW) shall be used.  In addition, Health Net or CHW will be acknowledged on the 



 
 
 

Page 9 

 
 
 

Grantee’s website, media related materials and digital tools as a funding partner where appropriate as well as 
in relation to this program. If applicable, Health Net or CHW as specified, will be listed as a Grantee funder at 
the appropriate level including but not limited to a donor wall, annual reports, newsletters, etc. Grantee agrees 
to submit to the Health Plan for review on the use of the logo and/or name on all materials in advance.  
 
For the avoidance of doubt, in the event the Health Plan changes its name or logo in the future, all displays of 
such by Grantee shall use the then-current versions. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 10 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

INCENTIVE NUMBER:   01-09-06 DATE AUTHORIZED: 3/21/23 

ORGANIZATION NAME:   Inyo County Department 
of Health and Human Services 

AMOUNT:  $53,688 

GRANT PERIOD: January 1, 2023 – October 31, 2023 

PROJECT CONTACT, TITLE:  Marilyn Mann, Health and Human Services Director 

TELEPHONE:    760-873-3305 EMAIL:    mmann@inyocounty.us 

COUNTY: Inyo 

HEALTH NET/CHW INCENTIVE CONTACT:  Amber Kemp, Vice President, Medi-Cal Regional Lead 
EMAIL:  amber.kemp@cahealthwellness.com 

HHIP INCENTIVE PURPOSE:   
As designed, the DHCS Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) is an incentive program that aims 
to improve health outcomes and access to whole person care services by addressing housing insecurity and 
instability as a social determinant of health for the Medi-Cal population.  The goals of HHIP are to:  
 

1. Reduce and prevent homelessness; and,  
2. Ensure Medi-Cal managed care plans (MCPs) develop the necessary capacity and partnerships to 

connect their members to needed housing services. 

  

DESCRIPTION OF GRANT/INVESTMENT: 
Funds will support CoC infrastructure & capacity, the 2023 Point in Time (PIT) Count, and flexible financial 
assistance to support housing lease up activities.  Investments will help to drive CoC engagement and 
participation in supporting achievement of HHIP measures for Alpine, Inyo, and Mono counties.     

HHIP MEASURES TO BE IMPACTED: 
The following HHIP measures are intended to be successfully impacted/achieved by the grant. The Grantee has 
reviewed and understands the definitions/expectations of the intended impacted DHCS HHIP measures below: 

Priority Area 1: Partnership and 
Capacity to Support Referrals for 
Services 

Priority Area 2: Infrastructure 
to Coordinate and Meet 
Member Housing Needs 

Priority Area 3: Delivery of 
Services and Member 
Engagement 

☒ 1.1 Engagement with the CoC ☐ 2.1 Connection with street 
medicine team (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☐ 3.1 Percent of MCP 
members screened for 
homelessness/risk of 
homelessness 



 
 
 

Page 11 

 
 
 

☒ 1.2 Connection and Integration with 
the local Homeless Coordinated Entry 
System (DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 2.2 MCP Connection with the 
local Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐ 3.2 MCP members who 
were discharged from an 
inpatient setting or have been 
to the emergency department 
for services two or more times 
in a 4-month period who were 
screened for homelessness or 
risk of homelessness 

☐ 1.3 Identifying and addressing 
barriers to providing medically 
appropriate and cost-effective housing-
related Community Supports 

☒ 3.3 MCP members 
experiencing homelessness 
who were successfully 
engaged in ECM 

☒ 1.4 Partnerships with counties, CoC, 
and/or organizations that deliver 
housing services with whom the MCP 
has a data sharing agreement that 
allows for timely information exchange 
and member matching (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☐  3.4 MCP members 
experiencing homelessness 
receiving at least one housing 
related Community Supports 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐ 1.5 Data sharing agreement with 
county MHPs and DMC-ODS 

☒  3.5 MCP members who 
were successfully housed 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 1.6 Partnerships and strategies the 
MCP will develop to address disparities 
and equity in service delivery, housing 
placements, and housing retention 
(aligns with HHAP-3) 

☒  3.6 MCP members who 
remained successfully housed 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

 

GRANT AMOUNT BREAKDOWN & DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDING 
The following table includes a breakdown of grant funding by HHIP Investment Plan activity: 
 

HHIP Investment Plan Activity Funding Amount Primary HHIP 
Measure Impacted 

Supporting CoC Infrastructure & Infrastructure  $22,474 2.2 

Supporting the Point-in-Time (PIT) Count $16,350 1.1 

Supporting Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing Lease 
Up Activities  

$14,864 3.5 

The Health Plan will disburse the grant award in two (2) installments.   
 



 
 
 

Page 12 

 
 
 

To be eligible for funding, Grantee must submit one (1) copy of Grantee’s W-9 form and such other 
documentation reasonably requested by the Health Plan. 
 
The Health Plan will make the first payment in the amount of $40,266 (75% of the grant award) within 
approximately ninety (90) calendar days of the receipt of Grantee’s completed Agreement. 
 
The Health Plan will make the second payment in the amount of $13,422 (25% of the grant award) by June 1, 
2023, or within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt and approval of the Grantee interim progress report, 
whichever is later. 
 
The Health Plan shall have no obligation to provide any additional funding or incentive support to Grantee 
under this Agreement or for any other purpose.  Grantee shall refrain from using any portion of the Incentive 
for costs not approved under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Capital campaigns; 

• Endowments; 

• Annual drives or fundraisers; 

• Operating deficit or debt retirement; 

• Services or costs previously funded by the Health Plan other duplicative funding source; or  

• Direct services billable to the Health Plan, and/or other miscellaneous lines items. 
 

GRANTEE ACTIVITIES/DELIVERABLES/OUTCOMES & REPORTING: 
Grantee is agreeing to work in partnership with the Health Plan on achieving/impacting the indicated HHIP 
measures identified above. 
 

During HHIP Measurement Period 2 (1/1/23-10/31/23), with reporting due to the Health Plan by December 1, 
2023, Grantee will do the following: 
 

HHIP Investment Plan Activity    GRANTEE ACTIVITIES/DELIVERABLES/OUTCOMES 

Supporting CoC Infrastructure & Capacity • Participate in monthly HHIP Implementation 
meetings with CHW and partners 

• Develop strategies (in alignment with the CoC) to 
address disparities and promote equity and 
identify CHW’s role in these strategies 

• Partner with CHW to craft narrative for HHIP 
measure 1.6 submissions 

• Enhance/upgrade HMIS to facilitate “timely alerts” 
for MCPs when a member experiences a change in 
housing status 



 
 
 

Page 13 

 
 
 

• Enhance CES to facilitate referrals to CalAIM ECM 
and CS for members experiencing homelessness 

• Provide access to HMIS for CHW staff  

• Support coordination of persons experiencing 
homeless into CalAIM ECM and CS 

Supporting the Point-in-Time (PIT) Count • Increase staffing/volunteer capacity for the PIT 
Count 

• Purchase of supplies and incentives  

• Provide CHW will information on how CHW staff 
can volunteer for PIT Count 

• Report to CHW on how HHIP funds 
supported/enhanced the 2023 PIT Count  

Supporting Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing 
Lease Up Activities  

• Funds will support housing lease up activities 
including deposits, landlord incentives, furniture, 
etc. Funds will compliment and not duplicate 
CalAIM housing-related Community Supports 

• Partner with CHW to develop program model for 
deployment of flexible financial assistance for 
housing lease up and disperse funds 

• For CHW members receiving services, refer eligible 
members to ECM and/or CS services 

• Provide the names of CHW members who were 
permanently house using these funds 

 
The Health Plan may request additional reporting during the Grant Period and up to one (1) year after the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
The Health Plan may change the reporting due date based on changes or communications from DHCS’s 
submission timeframe. The report will document progress and provide data in accordance with the progress 
report template provided by the Health Plan and include any other requirements imposed by DHCS.   
The reporting obligations of this Article shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

RECOGNITION:  
Grantee agrees to place the Health Net or CHW logo, name, etc. on all related materials for the Grantee’s 
Project as a sponsor and/or funder for this program.  The Health Plan will work with the Grantee to determine 
which logo (Health Net or CHW) shall be used.  In addition, Health Net or CHW will be acknowledged on the 



 
 
 

Page 14 

 
 
 

Grantee’s website, media related materials and digital tools as a funding partner where appropriate as well as 
in relation to this program. If applicable, Health Net or CHW as specified, will be listed as a Grantee funder at 
the appropriate level including but not limited to a donor wall, annual reports, newsletters, etc. Grantee agrees 
to submit to the Health Plan for review on the use of the logo and/or name on all materials in advance.  
 
For the avoidance of doubt, in the event the Health Plan changes its name or logo in the future, all displays of 
such by Grantee shall use the then-current versions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Page 15 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT C 
HOUSING AND HOMELESSNESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM FUNDING SUMMARY 

 

INCENTIVE NUMBER:   01-10-07 DATE AUTHORIZED: 3/21/23 

ORGANIZATION NAME:   Inyo County Department 
of Health and Human Services 

AMOUNT:  $22,947 

GRANT PERIOD: January 1, 2023 – October 31, 2023 

PROJECT CONTACT, TITLE:  Marilyn Mann, Health and Human Services Director 

TELEPHONE:    760-873-3305 EMAIL:    mmann@inyocounty.us 

COUNTY: Mono 

HEALTH NET/CHW INCENTIVE CONTACT:  Amber Kemp, Vice President, Medi-Cal Regional Lead 
EMAIL:  amber.kemp@cahealthwellness.com 

HHIP INCENTIVE PURPOSE:   
As designed, the DHCS Housing and Homelessness Incentive Program (HHIP) is an incentive program that aims 
to improve health outcomes and access to whole person care services by addressing housing insecurity and 
instability as a social determinant of health for the Medi-Cal population.  The goals of HHIP are to:  
 

1. Reduce and prevent homelessness; and,  
2. Ensure Medi-Cal managed care plans (MCPs) develop the necessary capacity and partnerships to 

connect their members to needed housing services. 

  

DESCRIPTION OF GRANT/INVESTMENT: 
Funds will support CoC infrastructure & capacity, the 2023 Point in Time (PIT) Count, and flexible financial 
assistance to support housing lease up activities.  Investments will help to drive CoC engagement and 
participation in supporting achievement of HHIP measures for Alpine, Inyo, and Mono counties.     

HHIP MEASURES TO BE IMPACTED: 
The following HHIP measures are intended to be successfully impacted/achieved by the grant. The Grantee has 
reviewed and understands the definitions/expectations of the intended impacted DHCS HHIP measures below: 

Priority Area 1: Partnership and 
Capacity to Support Referrals for 
Services 

Priority Area 2: Infrastructure 
to Coordinate and Meet 
Member Housing Needs 

Priority Area 3: Delivery of 
Services and Member 
Engagement 

☒ 1.1 Engagement with the CoC ☐ 2.1 Connection with street 
medicine team (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☐ 3.1 Percent of MCP 
members screened for 
homelessness/risk of 
homelessness 



 
 
 

Page 16 

 
 
 

☒ 1.2 Connection and Integration with 
the local Homeless Coordinated Entry 
System (DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 2.2 MCP Connection with the 
local Homeless Management 
Information System (HMIS) 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐ 3.2 MCP members who 
were discharged from an 
inpatient setting or have been 
to the emergency department 
for services two or more times 
in a 4-month period who were 
screened for homelessness or 
risk of homelessness 

☐ 1.3 Identifying and addressing 
barriers to providing medically 
appropriate and cost-effective housing-
related Community Supports 

☒ 3.3 MCP members 
experiencing homelessness 
who were successfully 
engaged in ECM 

☒ 1.4 Partnerships with counties, CoC, 
and/or organizations that deliver 
housing services with whom the MCP 
has a data sharing agreement that 
allows for timely information exchange 
and member matching (DHCS Priority 
Measure) 

☒  3.4 MCP members 
experiencing homelessness 
receiving at least one housing 
related Community Supports 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☐ 1.5 Data sharing agreement with 
county MHPs and DMC-ODS 

☒  3.5 MCP members who 
were successfully housed 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

☒ 1.6 Partnerships and strategies the 
MCP will develop to address disparities 
and equity in service delivery, housing 
placements, and housing retention 
(aligns with HHAP-3) 

☒  3.6 MCP members who 
remained successfully housed 
(DHCS Priority Measure) 

 

GRANT AMOUNT BREAKDOWN & DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDING 
The following table includes a breakdown of grant funding by HHIP Investment Plan activity: 
 

HHIP Investment Plan Activity Funding Amount Primary HHIP 
Measure Impacted 

Supporting CoC Infrastructure & Infrastructure  $9,606 2.2 

Supporting the Point-in-Time (PIT) Count $6,988 1.1 

Supporting Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing Lease 
Up Activities  

$6,353 3.5 

The Health Plan will disburse the grant award in two (2) installments.   
 



 
 
 

Page 17 

 
 
 

To be eligible for funding, Grantee must submit one (1) copy of Grantee’s W-9 form and such other 
documentation reasonably requested by the Health Plan. 
 
The Health Plan will make the first payment in the amount of $17,210.25 (75% of the grant award) within 
approximately ninety (90) calendar days of the receipt of Grantee’s completed Agreement. 
 
The Health Plan will make the second payment in the amount of $5,736.75 (25% of the grant award) by June 1, 
2023, or within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt and approval of the Grantee interim progress report, 
whichever is later. 
 
The Health Plan shall have no obligation to provide any additional funding or incentive support to Grantee 
under this Agreement or for any other purpose.  Grantee shall refrain from using any portion of the Incentive 
for costs not approved under this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Capital campaigns; 

• Endowments; 

• Annual drives or fundraisers; 

• Operating deficit or debt retirement; 

• Services or costs previously funded by the Health Plan other duplicative funding source; or  

• Direct services billable to the Health Plan, and/or other miscellaneous lines items. 
 

GRANTEE ACTIVITIES/DELIVERABLES/OUTCOMES & REPORTING: 
Grantee is agreeing to work in partnership with the Health Plan on achieving/impacting the indicated HHIP 
measures identified above. 
 

During HHIP Measurement Period 2 (1/1/23-10/31/23), with reporting due to the Health Plan by December 1, 
2023, Grantee will do the following: 
 

HHIP Investment Plan Activity    GRANTEE ACTIVITIES/DELIVERABLES/OUTCOMES 

Supporting CoC Infrastructure & Capacity • Participate in monthly HHIP Implementation 
meetings with CHW and partners 

• Develop strategies (in alignment with the CoC) to 
address disparities and promote equity and 
identify CHW’s role in these strategies 

• Partner with CHW to craft narrative for HHIP 
measure 1.6 submissions 

• Enhance/upgrade HMIS to facilitate “timely alerts” 
for MCPs when a member experiences a change in 
housing status 



 
 
 

Page 18 

 
 
 

• Enhance CES to facilitate referrals to CalAIM ECM 
and CS for members experiencing homelessness 

• Provide access to HMIS for CHW staff  

• Support coordination of persons experiencing 
homeless into CalAIM ECM and CS 

Supporting the Point-in-Time (PIT) Count • Increase staffing/volunteer capacity for the PIT 
Count 

• Purchase of supplies and incentives  

• Provide CHW will information on how CHW staff 
can volunteer for PIT Count 

• Report to CHW on how HHIP funds 
supported/enhanced the 2023 PIT Count  

Supporting Flexible Financial Assistance for Housing 
Lease Up Activities  

• Funds will support housing lease up activities 
including deposits, landlord incentives, furniture, 
etc. Funds will compliment and not duplicate 
CalAIM housing-related Community Supports 

• Partner with CHW to develop program model for 
deployment of flexible financial assistance for 
housing lease up and disperse funds 

• For CHW members receiving services, refer eligible 
members to ECM and/or CS services 

• Provide the names of CHW members who were 
permanently house using these funds 

 
The Health Plan may request additional reporting during the Grant Period and up to one (1) year after the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
The Health Plan may change the reporting due date based on changes or communications from DHCS’s 
submission timeframe. The report will document progress and provide data in accordance with the progress 
report template provided by the Health Plan and include any other requirements imposed by DHCS.   
The reporting obligations of this Article shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 

RECOGNITION:  
Grantee agrees to place the Health Net or CHW logo, name, etc. on all related materials for the Grantee’s 
Project as a sponsor and/or funder for this program.  The Health Plan will work with the Grantee to determine 
which logo (Health Net or CHW) shall be used.  In addition, Health Net or CHW will be acknowledged on the 



 
 
 

Page 19 

 
 
 

Grantee’s website, media related materials and digital tools as a funding partner where appropriate as well as 
in relation to this program. If applicable, Health Net or CHW as specified, will be listed as a Grantee funder at 
the appropriate level including but not limited to a donor wall, annual reports, newsletters, etc. Grantee agrees 
to submit to the Health Plan for review on the use of the logo and/or name on all materials in advance.  
 
For the avoidance of doubt, in the event the Health Plan changes its name or logo in the future, all displays of 
such by Grantee shall use the then-current versions. 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 20, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3814  

 

Subaward Agreement with the California Fire Safe 
Council for $20,000 

County Administrator - Emergency Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Kristen Pfeiler, Wildfire Preparedness Coordinator  Kristen Pfeiler, Wildfire Preparedness Coordinator  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve the subaward agreement with the California Fire Safe Council for $20,000 to be used 
for capacity-building, and authorize the Emergency Services Manager to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This capacity building grant is from the Regional Forestry and Fire Capacity Program and Southern 
California Edison through the California Fire Safe Council clearinghouse.  These funds will be used to 
help Fire Safe Councils with training, events, project implementation, and outreach that will lead to 
community participation and recruitment of new members. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded: CFSC, RFFC, SCE Budget Unit 023700 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4599 Other 
Agencies 

Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Receive grant award of $20,000. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your board could choose not to receive these funds from CFSC; however, it is not recommended as 
these funds are being used to increase capacity to implement wildfire-related projects and recruit, train, 
and sustain their volunteers. 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
The 40 Acres Fire Safe Council, the Independence Fire Safe Council and the Wilkerson Fire Safe 
Council 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. CA Fire Safe Council Grant Application 
2. CA Fire Safe Council Subaward Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Kristen Pfeiler Created/Initiated - 6/14/2023 
Mikaela Torres Approved - 6/15/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/15/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/15/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/15/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/15/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 






























	 Call to Order (Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu
	3) Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litiga

	 Open Session
	4) Pledge of Allegiance
	5) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	6) Introductions - The following new employees will b
	7) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	8) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	9) Film Commissioner Contract Extension for FY 2023-2
	Agenda Request Form
	Film Commissioner - Jesse Steele FY 22-23

	10) Amendment No. 3 to Contract with The Ferguson Grou
	Agenda Request Form
	Ferguson Group Contract
	Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 1
	Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 2 
	Ferguson Group Contract Amendment 3

	11) Appoint Authorized Representative for Federal Broa
	Agenda Request Form

	12) Anne Sippi Clinic Contract Amendment No. 1
	Agenda Request Form
	Anne Sippi Clinic Contract Amendment No. 1

	13) Appointments to the ESAAA Advisory Council
	Agenda Request Form

	14) Amendment No. 3 to TeleConnect Therapies Contract
	Agenda Request Form
	TeleConnect Therapies Contract Amendment No. 3 

	15) Addendum to Thomas Milam MD, Inc. d/b/a Iris Teleh
	Agenda Request Form
	Iris Telehealth Medical Group Contract

	16) Anthem Housing & Homelessness Incentive Program (H
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County HHIP Anthem Grant Agreement - Alpine, Inyo, Mono Counties

	17) California Health and Wellness Housing and Homeles
	Agenda Request Form
	CA Health and Wellness HHIP Grant Agreement Letter 

	18) Subaward Agreement with the California Fire Safe C
	Agenda Request Form
	CA Fire Safe Council Grant Application
	CA Fire Safe Council Subaward Agreement


	 Regular Agenda
	19) Update on the Northern Inyo County Local Hospital 

	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	20) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	21) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r


	Signature 1: 
	Name 1: 
	Title 1: 
	Date 1: 
		2023-04-17T10:23:18-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




